FRIDAY

A23

Debenhams plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Aleading
international,
multi-channel brand

(IR

11/01/2013 #2
COMPANIES HOUSE

1

ZU1REB"

91




Business model
Understanding Debenhams

Debenhams is a leading international, multi-channel brand which is available
in 92 countries through stores or online. We put our customers at the heart

of everything we do and are truly passionate about the products that we sell,
half of which are exclusive to Debenhams.

Adiverse supply chain Aunique, differentiated and exclusive product offer
Our sourcing strategy 15 based on “night product, nght country” Delivermg a compelling customer proposiion is a key part of
We have been drect souraing for many years resulong i our strategy Our offer 1s umque through acombination of own

long-standing relationships with supplers around the world brands international and concession brands It 1s exclusive
China/Hong Kong remains our largest sourcmg hub whalst through core and designer own brands which account for
other countnes like Bangladesh are growimg, Atall imes we almost halfof everything that we sell Ttisdifferentrated

need to meet our customers' expeciations that every one of through Designess at Debertharms, a portfolio of diffusion

our products 1s manufactured in a factory which s socially brands from some of the UK s top fashion designers We also
etincal and quality assurance comphant, give our custormers the wide choice of product categones that
they expect from a department store

Direct vs indirect sourcing Unique mix of brands Wide dwice of product categories

L

Country % % Salesbtry brand % Own bought sales by category %

China/Hong Kong 50 Direct 65 Own bought core brands 259 Womenswear 17 6

India 12 o Indfrect 35 Ownboughtdesignersbrands 172 Menswear 13 8

Bangladesh 9 Own bought international Childrenswear 9. g

Vietnam 5 brands 3 06  Lingerie 6. 3

Romania § Concessfonsfconsignment  23.3  accessories 140

Turkey 4 Health & beauty 22 8

Palkistan 3 Home & fumiture 115

Cambodia 2 Sports & leisure O 5

1z B R 14

SriLanka 2 Other ‘o2
‘oactia 1

Epypt 1

Rest of world 4

65% 76.7%

Direct sourcmgtn 2012 2012 0wnbought sales rmx

Read more about trends in sustamable sourcing Read more about “Delivenng a compelhng
mn the Sustainality Review on page 48 customer proposahon” on page 20




Giving customers around the world more ways toshop
The Debenttarns brand trades through 239 stores n 28
countries and 15 avatlable onhne m 67 countrnes Customers
can also shop through smartphones tablet computers and
other mobile devices as well as more tradittonal sales channels
such as catatogues and by telephone Qur flexible approach
means that we can tailor our product range to meet the
demands of a particular local market or channel

Storenumbers

UK

International - kreland 11 Iaternational 5034
International - Demmark 6
International - franchises 68

Sales by chanmel trend

Ry - <= _ ~IEOR Tl 41%
6.8%
93%
[:] Instore
. Ontne

Channel £m %
Instore (UK and
international) 24574 907
Online (UK and
international) _ _2506 93

239

Stores trading the Bebenhamsbrand

Read more about how we are "Focusingon
UK retail” “Increasing avaitabihty and choice
through mutn-chammel and Expanding the
brand mternationally” on pages16to 19,
pages24to27and pages28to31

A family department store withsomething for everyone
Debenhams 1s a farmily department store that operates

at the heart of the communities m which we are present

Our customer base reflects our farmily onentation In 2012 we
gained markes share in key categones including wormenswear,
menswear premum health & beauty and home & fumaiture
Qver the past year we have focused commumncations with

our customers on the “Life Made Fabulous™ therne

Frequency of visit
%
Daily 2
2 3times aweek a8
Onceaweek 2
Once a fortnight 17
Once amonth 23
Evary couple of months 17
Less often 12
Market shareby age Market share gains in 2012
%
Under 20 24 Tatalclothing 4
20 24 years 35 Womenswear 0
25-34years 55 Menswear _ +
3544 years 58 Childrenswear -
45 54 years 57  Health & beauty L4
55 64 years 63 Home & furniture 'y
65+ 52  Source Kantar NPD GIK

Source Kantar Worldpanel Fashion
market share data 24 weeks to
2 September 2012

4.0

Averageage of Debenhams customer

Read more about how we commumicate with
our customersthrough ourmarketimg activities
on page 22




Gross transaction value*

£2./bn +2.6%

Revenue*

£2.2bn +2.5%

Profit before tax*

£158.3m: +4 2%

Basiceamnings pershare*

9.8p +14.0%
3.3p +10.0%

*52weeks to 1 Septernber 2012 vs 52 weeks 1027 August 2011
52 weeks 1o | September 2012 vs 53 weeks to 3 Septernber 2011

Note

The 2012 financial year compnsed 52 weeks to 1 September 2012 whereas the 2011 financal
year comprised 53 weeks to 3 September 2011 The board believes that 1n order to have a proper
understanding of the performance of the businiess, in marny cases it 1s more approprate to
compare the 52 weeks of the 2012 inanaial year with the first 52 weeks of the 2011 inanoal
year (the 52 weeks to 27 August 2011). The basis on which compansons are made1s cleary
stated throughout thus Annual Report and Accounts Further detatls are set out in the Chief
Finanaal Officer's review on pages 34 to 38
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Nigel Northridge, Chairman
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Resilient performance in challenging markets

2012 was a year of celebration across the
UK for many reasons, not least the Queen’s
Diamond Jubilee and the hosting of
enormously successful Olympicand
Paralympic Games. For retailers, however, it
was one of the most challenging years on record.




Dear sharcholder

2012 was a year of celebration across

the UK for many reasons, not least the
Queens Diamend Jubilee and the hosting
of enorrnously successful Olympic and
Paralympic Games. For retailers, however,
1t was one of the most challenging years
on record

A warrn autumn/winter season was followed
by a wet spring/sumimer season which
depressed consurmer demandin an already
fragile environment. Despite this, [ am
delighted totell you that Debenhams not
only weathered these difficult conditions but
came out in good shape Our like-for-like sales
performance during the year was by far the
strongest for anumber of years and we
delivered our fourth successive year of

profit before tax growth”

Thus was Debenhams first year under
Michael Sharp'sleadership Asavastly
expenenced retaler with an unparalleled
knowledge of and passion for Debenhams,
the board was confident in Michaet s ability
todevelopand execute a successful sirategy
that would write the next chapter in
Debenhams history This has undoubtedly
been the case The strategy to create a leading
multl-channel, international brand 1s centred
around the four pillars, about which you can
read more on pages 16 to 31 Our stakeholders
-ncluding our customers employees,
suppliers and of course sharehclders - have
responded well to this clear articulation of
strategy and consistent dehivery against it
and we beheve that our performance 1n 2012
15clear evidence that the strategy 1s working.

We are aware that capital allocationis a
subject at the forefront of many shareholders’
rmnds The first prionty for the use of capital
1n Debenharns is to mnvest 1n the strategy that
Michael laid out in October 2011 Having
reinstated the dnadend in Apnil 2011, we
announced m October 2011 that we would
commence along-term share buyback
programme n the second half of the year
This decision was based on the board s belief
that there1s little benefit to the business of
sustaining leverage below one times net debt
to EBITDA and that a share buyback
programme 15 the most flexible method to
retum cash to shareholders The buyback
started in Apri 2012 and by the end of the
financial year we had completed the imnal
tranche of £20 mulion The programme will
continue n the 2013 financial year

*52 weeks to | Septernber 2012 vi 52 weeks to 27 August 20011

Debenhams Corporate Governance Report
can be found on pages 58 to 62 of thus Annual
Report and the Rermuneration Report on
pages 66074

During the year, there were a number

of changes tothe board Havingjained
Debenhams at the beginming of Novernber
2011, Sumon Hermck was appointed Chief
Finanaal Officer at the Annual General
Meeting in January 2012, replacing Chnis
Woodhouse whorestgned from the board
on that day Adam Crozier stepped down
from the board at the end of the financal
year, having served as a non-executive
director for more than six years We thank
Chirs and Adarn for their cornrmtment to
thebusiness Following Adan's resignation,
Denrus Millard assumed chairmanship of
the Remuneration Commuttee and Mark
Rolfe succeeded Dennis as chairman of the
Audit Commuitee

In October 2012 we announced the
appointment of Peter Fitzgerald tothe
board as anon-executive director Peter
has extensive expenencein helping retail
businesses to succeed online with market
leaders Amazon and Google Welook
forward to his contmbunon

Tosucceed as wehave doneinsucha
difficult year has only been achueved through
the dedication and hard work of the many
thousands of people who work for
Debenhams mourstores our head office
locations, our mternational offices and our
logistics and print operaticns We do not take
thelr support and enthusiasm for our
business for granted The board thanks each
of themn for the trernendous effort they made
1n 2012 and looks forward to another
successful yearin 2013

Nigel Northridge
Chairman

Qverview

StTategy review
Finance and nsk ieview
Sustamability
Governance

AcCcounis
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2012 performinance
Key performance indicators

Group financial KPIs

All compansons for 2011 are for
the 52 weeks to 27 August 2011
unless otherwise stated

& Debenhams ple Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Gross transaction value

Gross transacton value (GTV)1sa
measure of overall salesin the business
and includes sales from own bought
brands and concession brands The board
beheves that GTVisagood guide to the
overall level of activity in the Group

29012 pariormance

Debenhams reported an increase in
GTVof26%1n 2012 Thiswasdnven
by like-for-like sales growth in stores
and onhne in the UK and international
businesses as well as new store space

Further information
« Finance review p3s

Profit before tax

Profit before tax1s the board s principal
measure of profitability The use of
headline profit before tax has now been
discontinued as explained in the finance
review on page 35

2012 performance

Profit before tax grew by 4 2% 1 2012
versus the pnor year The mawn dnvers
of growth were ngher sales and
asmaller interest charge asaresult

of reciuced net debt and lower funding
costs following refinancing of the
bank facihties in July 2011

01 I T F153%m

All numbers are before exceptionals

Further information
« Finance review p35

Like-for-like sales

Like-forike sales measures the annual
sales performance of stores that have
been open for one year or more The board
therefore views 1t as a useful indication of
orgarnuc sales growth across the business

2012 performance

Like-forlike sales increased by 16%1n
2012, the first ttrme 1t has grown mn the past
five years This was a good performance
given the difhicult market conditions that
prevailed throughout the year Further
details on the dnvers of hke-for-hke sales
growth can be found on pages 36

2008
2009

2010 flat
-0 3% [l 2011
2012 +E6HK,

Furtherinformation
» Finance review p35

Net debt

Net debtis the KPIused by the board to
measure balance sheet strength It 1s vital
that the Company has the nght capital
structure to suppoit its strategic objectives.

2012 performance

Net debtcontinued to fall in 2012,
ending the year £15 million lower than
last year despite higher capex, payment
of both the 2011 final dividend and 2012
intenm dividend and the £20 mulhon
imnal tranche of the long-term share
buyback programme

2010 £517m
(ZuF TR |

Further information
Finance review p37




Strategic KPIs

All compansons for 2011 are for
the 52 weeks to 27 August 2011
unless otherwise stated

Opening new stores in the UK wall
continue tobe adnver of sales growth
as detailed on page 18 Debenhams
generates a strong return on nvestment
On new stores, averaging c40% for

the 35 stores opened since 2007

2012 performarnce

Two new stares were opened dunng
2012 The UK store portfolio comprised
154 stores at year end. The contracted
store pipeline at the end of the year
stood at 18 stores scheduled to open
over the next five years The first of these
Chesterfield, opened in Septernber 2012

2008

KPI
UK stores

138
23012 - ~ U154

Further information
» Strategy review pl8

Increasing availability and
choice through multi-channel
-online sales

Cnline sales are a good indcator of the
performance of Debenhams multi-
channelbusiness You can read more
about the developments i this fast
EIOWIIIE area on page 26

2012 performance

2012 was another year of strong growth
inonline sales Group sales increased by
39 8%, drniven by increased choice of
products, brands and ways toshopand
a54% ncrease 1n the number of visits
to debenhaims cormn. The medim-term
sales target for onhine 1s £600 mitlion

KPi

Ontinesales

piilit ) E421m

[ 2009 FTUY

2010 £104.1m |

201 £179.2m |

F3012] - [E250%m0)|

Further information
* Sirategy review p26

Overview

Strategy review

Finance and nsk review

Sustanability

Governance

Accounts

Al &[5

Delivering a compelling
customer proposition
-ownbought sales mix

Akey part of Debenhams unique
dufferentiated and exclusive customer
proposttion s the high percentage of sales
generated by own bought brands

2012 performance

Group own bought sales mix was 76 7%
n 2012, down shightly from 771% last year
largely due to abetter performance from
some concession brands the addibon

of new concessions in modermised UK
stores and concession expansion onhne

Debenhams international activities
compnse stores that we own in Denmark
and the Republic of Ireland, the franchise
stores and internaticnat onhne

2012 performance

The number of intermatonal stores
ncreased by four in 2012 due to franchise
store openungs At theend of the year, the -
Debenhams brand traded from 85 stores
m27countries sixin Denmark, 11 the
Republic of Ireland and 68 franctuse
stores1n 25 countnes.

Furtherinformation
+ Strategy review p30
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Market overview

Putting our performance in context

Market metrics
Figurel

, UK consumer confidence

Market conditions in 2012

Market conditions remamned challenging
throughott 2012 Macroeconomc factors
were compounded by unseasonal weather
throughout the year witha warm, dry
autumn followed by a cold, wet spring

and surnmer The surnmer of 2012 saw an
unprecedented number of special events
ncluding the Queen's Diamond Jubilee
and the Olympic and Paralymipic Games

Consumer contfidence
Consumer confidence in the UK remamed n
negative termtory throughout 2012 (figure 1),
causmg Nick Moon, Managing Director
of GfK Social Research, to comment that
confidence has never been solow for solong,
even during the dark days of the 20082009
recession " The widely reported “feel good
factor from the various events that took
place dunng the summer did not translate
mto discermble improvements 1n consumer
confidence data

High streetsales

High street sales showed a fair degree

of volanlity tn 2012, as measured by the
BRC-KPMG Retail Sales Momtor (figure 2)
The year-on-year percentage change
inlike-for-like sales declined in the
unseasonably warm autumn months of
Qctober and November 2011 but recovered
n Decermber as peak trading finally got
underway Apnl saw a sharp drop, although
this 1s only to be expected given the very
strong performance associated with the
Royal Wedding in that month last year
June showed some growth, possibly dniven

Figure3

Monthly average cotton prices (US cents per pound)

150

100 \———'_——\__

50

W

0

by the long Diamond Jubilee weekend but
the Olympic and Paralympic Gamesn July
and August do not appear to have driven
like-for-like sales growth on UK high streets

Input costs

After a volatile year 1n 2011, input costs were
far more stable in 2012 As canbeseenin
figure 3 cotton prices fell sigrificantly from
their 2010/11 mghs leading to lower cotton
fabric pnees dunng the course of the year
Other fabnc costs such as viscose, polyester
and wool have also fallen There 155t
pressure orinput costs, however, fromrising
labour rates The Chinese government s five
year plan willincrease minimum wages by
13% perannum Labour costs are alsornsing
inother countnes, particularly Bangladesh
Frejght rates have remmained broadly flat with
some shipping lines reducing tonnage due
tofalling demand Sterhng has appreciated
aganst the main SCUTCINE CUITETICIES
nciuding the Chinese yuan, US dollar

and Indian rupee

UK clothing market

The total market for clothing, footwearand
accessonesgrew n 2012 In the 24 weeks
to 2 September 2012, tincreased by 03%
This was largely a result of increases
average prices which offset adeclinein
volume as shownmn figure 4 Amongst

the major product categones, the size of
the womenswear market dechined whilst
menswear and childrenswear both grew

Sepll Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr

(Source GIK Consumer Confidence Index Score)

Figure 2

UK hugh street sales (% change year-on-year)

50

May lun Jul Augl2

(Source- Nattonal Cotten Council of Amenca A® Index}

Figure 4

Sepll Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr

UK clothing market overview |

May hn Jul Augi2

25 %
o Total clothing/footwear/accessory umts sold -30
25 Total clothing/footwear/accessones average price 33
o Total market for clothing/footwearfaccessones 03
11 Oct Nov Dec Jan Fi
Sep d an Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Augiz (Source- Kantar Worldpanel fashion market share 24 weeks to 2 September 2012 vs 201)
e 1 FL Sales % change vs LY —— Totalsales % change vsLY

(Source BRC KPMG Relail Sales Morater)
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Al RIB| W

Our conclusions

Debenhams performed wellin 20121 a
market that was challenging on many levels
Like-for-ltke sales growth of 1 6% for the year
clearty outperformed both the UK high street
and clothing sector Weachieved this
through meeting our customers' needs,
especially when footfall was at 1ts highest
around key events as well as month ends
Webegan tosee the benefit of lower
commodty prices in the final months of
the year although niflation in other areas

of the supply chain, especially labour costs,
will requure careful management.

We agree with the sentiments expressed

1 Verdict'soutlook for the UK retail market
1n 2013 and there are clear correlatons
between these trends and the four pillars

of Debenhams' strategy Ourumique,
differenttated and exclusive custorner
proposition helps us to get the price/

product equation nght Our buyingand
merchandising and supply chain teams

who have many years of expenence of
direct sourcing and have developed
long-standing relationships with many of
our supplers witl help us to manage input
costs The development of a true customer-
focused multi-channel model which focuses
omimproving chaice, avalability, convenienice
and service for custommers willhelp to
opumuse all sales channels, whether store
based or otherwise Finally we are investing
ITIOTE 111 COMIMUNICAtING Ol Propesition
and have a proven record of dnving sales
and mproving the perceptions of the
Debenhams'brand through this investment.
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Chief Executive’s veview
Delivering a clear and consistent strategy

Michael Sharp. Chief Executive My first year as Chief Executive of
Debenhams has been both hugely

rewarding and hugely challenging.

12 Debenhams plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012




My first year as Chief Executive of Debenhams
has been both hugely rewarding and hugely
challenging We made significant progress

i many areas of the business whulst at the
same time facing what could be seen asa
"perfect storm " Consumer confidence was
already fragle before the warm autumn/
winter and wet Sprng/summer seasons
dented demand further The sumimer saw
anunprecedented number of special events
including the Queens Diamond Jubilee

and the London Olympics and Paralympics
whch threatened to change consumer
behaviour At Debenhams, we focused

on controlling factors that were within

our power taking a flexible and pragmatic
attitude towards trading in ight of the market
conditions Ibeheve this was a successful
approach as the results for the financal

year demonstrate

Aclear and consistent

Throughout 2012 we focused on the
relentlessimplementation of the four pillars
of the strategy that [ set gut in October 2011
tobuwld a leading international, mult-
channelbrand AsIsaid inlast year's Annual
Report, almost every major retatler has

the same ambition so why do T believe
Debenhams can succeed? We already havea
strong brand equity We have a broad base of
customers in terms of age and demographics
We have a unique and differentiated product
offer whach grves our custormners a market-
leading choice of brands and products

We give our custormers lots of different ways
to shop through many different channels
We already have a wide international reach
By the end of 2012 the Bebenhams brand
traded from 239 stores 1n 28 countries

and was avallable online1in 67 countres.
You can read about the progress we made

1n 2012 and future drvers for growthin
each of the four pillars on pages 16 to 31

The right team to deliver

One of my prionties dunng my first year was
to ensure we have the night teamn with the
capability and capacty to deliver the strategy
I irrnly believe we have the best group of
retailers in the UK today

I made a umber of changes to the senior
management team during 2012 and at the
same time redefined some of the key roles
to improve clanty, align them more fully
with our strategy and allow for faster
implementation of best practice across
the business

We welcomed Stmon Hermick to Debenhams
n Novemmnber 2011 and he subsequently
toolcup the role of Chuef Financial Officer

m Jamuary 2012 As welkas his finance

role, Simon heads our systems and

logistics activities

Mike Goringjoined us as Retail Directorin
January 2012 Mikes role bnngs together for
the first tumie the operahion of all Debertharns
stores, whether owned or franchised, UK or
international, and store development As

such, Mike's responsibiities arealigned to
the first and fourth pillars of the strategy
“Focusing on UK retail” and “Expanding
the brand intemationally”

Group Trading Director Suzanne Harlow,
who has been with Debenhams since 1994,
leads our buying and merchandising
activities which are crucial to any business
with an extensive own brand programme
Suzanne s responsible for the development
of the brand and product strategy that
underpins the segond pillar “Delivening a
cormpelling customer proposition ' During
the past vear Suzanne has also assumed
responsibility for the sourcing and supply
chain functions

Richard Cristofoll joined Debenhams as
Marketing Director mn 2011, the first serior
markelrg appointment to the executive
commuttee Richard has beenmnstrumental in
the changes we have made to communicating
the proposition, another key tenet of the
second pillar of our strategy

Nikda Zamblera has been HR Director since
2004 Inabusiness that employs 30.000
people, attracting retaning and rewarding
our peaple 1s of paramount importance We
have recently launched the first employee
chmate survey

It1s not just the semor team which hasbeen
strengthened We are imvesting in people
across the busmess, ncluding the teams

in buying and merchandising, marketing,
customer analytics, systerns and logistics

Highlights of the year

Overall I was very pleased with our
performance which I believe 1s evidence that
the strategy 1s starting to work. In particular
I'was delighted with our ike-for-like sales
performance At16%, this wasby far the
strongest ike-for-like sales since Debenhams
became a public company in 2006 Tophne
growth has been the missing part of cur story
inrecent years We delivered this by focusing
onwhat customers wanted when they
wanted it We played mto key calendar events
- notjust Chnistmas but also Valentines Day
Easter, Mother's Day and the Diamond
Jubilee - when footfall was at its highest.

The store modermsation programine

also contnbuted sales growth Eighteen
modermisancns were completed between
January and September 2012 This1s more
stores than we have ever undertaken before
1 asingle year and 1t 15 testament to our
planning and execution that we kept
disruphion to a mnimum

We saw continued strong progress m our
multi-channel business wiuch grew faster
than the market n 2012 Online sales
micreased by 39 8% dunng the yearto
£2506 million and on a three year basis
have grown by 355%

52 weeks to] Septernber 2012 vs 52 weeks
to 27 August 2011

Querview
Strategy review
Finance and risk teview

el B EAFS K

Sustamnability

Governance

Accounts
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Chief Execulive's review conrinued
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Focusing on UK retail

I'was also pleased with ourinternational
businesses The franchise stores performed
well with seven new store openings in 2012
and a contracted new store pipeline of
21stores Qur Damsh department store
chain Magasin du Nord had asuccessful
year, delivenng hke-for-hke sales growth
despite aslowing of the local economy The
environment 15 still chfficult inthe Republic
of Ireland but we behieve we are gaiming
market share International online has also
been expanded sigruficantly The number
of countries we deliver to fromdebenhams
com outside the UK has expanded from
seven to 66 and we have launched alocal
language website In Germany

For a number of years we have been seelang
to expand our non-clothing business and

we saw further progress in this area in 2012
Non-clothing accounted for 45% of gross
transaction value 1n 2012 Health & beauty1s
akey part of our non-clothing offer and our
prermium health & beauty sales increased by
11%, ahead of the market which grew at 8%
(source- NPD, 52 weeks toend August 2012)
We have also seen traction in areas where we
have been specihcally targeting market share
growth such as womens footwear where
market share has increased by 40 basis

Improving uninvested

corestores

Accelerating store '
meodemisations

Opening new stores

Delivering a compelling customer proposition

Brand and product
strategy

Instore execution

Communicating
the proposition
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points fo 2 5% over the year (sotirce Kantar
52weeksto2 Septernber 2012 vs 2011)
Home sales have alsc held up wellina
difficult market driven by onhne which
now accounts for over 20% of all home sales

We have begun to see some real resuits
from the *Life Made Fabulous" marketing
campaign that ran throughout 2012 Not
only havesales of featured hines been very
strong, but cur mdependently conducted
brand research suggests that atitudes
towards Debenhams are changing in
avery positive way

In Apnl, wecommenced a long-termn share
buyback programme and subsequently
purchased £20 mullion of shares We expect
tobuy backup to £40 million of shares over
the next 12months

Next steps: future growth drivers
Whulst [ am pleased with the great progress
made over the past year, [am more excted
about what 15 to come next You canread
more about future growth drniversin all four
pillars but I would ughlight a few areas
where 1 am impatient for success

Iwould include amongst these the work we
are doingon what we call “single view of the
customer” which will give us aclearer

More choice
and better availability

More ways toshop

Improving the

Increasing availability and choeice through multi-channel

S ———|

International
franchise stores

Owned international
assets

International online

Expanding the brand internationally

1
i




perspective on shopping patterns and
customer behaviour Oneof the benefits
of this will be more tallored marketing

to indivichual customers because we will
have a betterunderstanding of how they
shopand willbe able to personalise our
commurnicatons to thern Infact we

are strengthemng our gverall customer
strategy and insight capability

With the success of the stores we have
modermised over the past two years,

['would hike to have all the outstanding store
modermsations - including Oxford Street -
completed more quickly But we are working
at full capacity and so our target remains
Chnstmas 2014 to complete the core store
modernisations, after which we will have
arolling programme of 10-12 stores a year

We also need to improve our delivery
promise for custorners who shopontiine

The groundwork has been done with the
completion of the Sherburn distribution
centre and the conversion of Peterborough
to a fulfilment centre but we will start to gam
real momenturn next year as third party
fulfilrnent contracts end and we bning the
majority of onhne fulilment in-house,
thereby allowing us to reduce delivery times
and offer abetter range of delvery options

Cverview

Strategy review

France and nsk review

Sustainabuity

Governance

Accounts

sl &lels]w

Outlook for 2013

We believe that customers are toa large
extent acclmatised to the new economuc
reality We donot anticipate a sigruficant
change 1n the economicenvironment over
the course of 2013 but we expect to make
further progress during the year as our
strategy delivers further benefits We will
always manage cash, costs, stocks and
margins closely but we are commutted

to continue investing m key areas of the
business to deliver long-term sustainable
growth as well as further returns of capital
to dnve shareholder value

Michael Sharp
Chief Executive

= .
A e 0y
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From left to nght Nikki Zamblera HR Director,
Simon Herrick Chief Finanaal Officer Richard
Cristofoli Marketing Director, Michael Sharp

Chief Execunve, Mike Goring Retall Director,
Suzanne Harlow G:oup Trading Director J
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© Improving uninvested
core stores
We are dnving sales ahead
of moderrisation by focusing
on basic retail standards and
tmproving chote

© Accelerating store
modernisations
18 stores were rnodermnsed in
2012 All remamning uninvested
core stores will be modermsed
by Christrnas 2014

© Opening new stores
New stores n the UK could
provide an additionat £1 ilion
of sales The pipeline stands at
18 stores over the next five years
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Sirategy review contimied
Focusing on UK retail

Improving uninvested core stores

At the end of 2012, there were 30 uninvested
core stores in the UK portfolio of 154 stores
All of these stores, none of which 1sloss-
makang, will be modermused over the next
two years but we are taking action ahead

of this tomprove thetr performance and

to put these stores 1n the best possible
position to benefit from modernisation
Thus actionis a question of focus rather than
incumng addinonal costs or capital spend.

Amongst theimtiatives we take are
reviewing managemeiit teams, undertaking
space opftrmusation work to ensire each
product category trades from an appropnate
amount of space, replacing choice that may
havebeen lost through concesston closures
over the past few years and improving
presentation standards In some cases we
hold a pre-modermisation sale to dnve sales
and counteract the impact of disruphion from
moderisanon work.

In 2012 westarted to see an unprovement
1n the performance of the urninvested core
stores as we undertook these actions

We will continue to pursue this programme
until all these stores have been modermised

Accelerating store modemisations

We modermse stores for a nurnber of reasons
tomeet customers demands for a modern
and contemporary place to shop; to 1mprove
perceptions of the Debenhams brand, to
improve choice to suit the needs of local
markets, and to buld a stronger relationshup
with our internanonal brands and
concessions Our thorough planning process
expertise ln unplementation and strong
capitat discipline result in a modernisation
programme that 1s delivenng increases in
sales and market share and a good return
onmnvestment

154

UK storesat the end of 2012

10.9m

Total UK trading space (sq ft)

We operated 154 stores1n the UK at theend

of 2012 trading from a total of 109 mullion sq fr
Qur stores vary in size from 13 000 1o 200000
sq frand arelocated in hugh streets town
shopping centres, regional shopping centres
and retail parks
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It 15 ot Just as case of tmproving a store’s
infrastructure: i order to achieve acceptable
returns, store modernisations need to give
customerssomethung different We add

new product offer through addmonal brands
and categones We remix space based on
performance, ideal adjacencies and ease

of shopping as well as the Groups overatl
strategy We imnvest in the health & beauty
department, We reclaim space from
back-of-house where possible and we
upgrade restaurants, WCs and other services.

In 2012 we modermised 18 stores in two
tranches, one starting in January and the
second 1n May, and spent some £32 mullion
m total, averaging £20-25 persq ft This was
the most stores we have ever undertaken in
asingte year

The 32 stores which have been modemised
over the past two years are perforrmng well.
On average these stores have recorded a sales
increase in the first year after completion of
€ 6% It1s particularly pleasing to note that for
those stores which have completed two years
since medernisation, we have seena sales
uphft in the second year of an average c.15%
Previous modermusation programmes have
generally achieved a one year increase, after
which stores performinline with the rest

of the estate We beheve the second year
uplift 1s due to the extensive nature of the
modermisation work we are undertaking as
well asbeing a function of the investment

n health & beauty which can take more
than 12 months to translate into higher sales
Return on investment 1s averaging 15%

The remaimng 30 ununvested core stores
will becompleted in tune for Christmas 2014
with 15 taking place 1n each of 2013 and 2014
Amongst these 1s Oxford Street which will be
transformed inside and out by October 2013
Tt wnll become a true company flagship,
showeasing the best of everything that
Deberihams has to offer and a beacon for
mnternational expansion

18

Store modernisations 2012

30

Moderusations over next two years

We are transforming our UK porifolio
by moderrusing all uninvested core
stores 32 have already been completed.
Theremairung 30 wall be completed by
Chnstrnas 2014, mcluding Oxford Street

Opening new stores

Debenhamsis one of very few UK retailers
with a space expansion strategy We believe
we could operate up to 225 stores in the UK,
an mcrease of 70 stores over the current estate
These stores could add £1 tilhon of sales

and offer econormies of scale which should
provide margin enhancerment over tirme

Stores will continue to be the largest channel
for the majonty of custorners despite the
expected growth in onlineshopping. As
such they form a key cornponent of the
multi-channel shopping environment

and we know that customers who live

near a store spend more online

We have astrong track record of creating
value fromnew store openings The 35 stores
opened stnce 2007 have delivered an average
return on nvestment of c40% We employ
robust acquisihon cnteria to-ensure every
new store has the nghtlocaton, the nght
developer, the nght type and size of store

and the right deal sothat it can achieve these
superior levels of rehm.

Of the 70 potential opportunities in the UK,
attheend of 2012 18 were contracted and
are expected to openn the next five years
These stores total 845,000 sq ft of rading
space and have predicted sales in excess of
£150 mullion at matunty One hasalready
opened (Chesterfield in Septernber 2012)
with Lichfield due to open in March 2013

Discussions are ongoing onancther
25opportunities

18

New store pipeline

£150m

Potential additional sales from prpeline

Wehavea track record of delivenng strong
financialreturns from new stores The average
return oninvestment of the 35 siores opened
dunng thelast five years1s c 40% Newslores
could add £1 billion of sales in the UK
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1. Modernising Oxford Street

QOur viston 1s to create abranded
environment that redefines Debenharns
11 the Oxford Street store and beyond

2.1Improving uninvested core stores
We saw an improvernent i the

performance of uninvested core stores 1n
2012 by focusing on basic retan! standards

3.Opening new stores

Designer at Debenhams Ashley Thomas
opens our new storemn Chesterfieldin
Septernber 2012 Another 17 stores will
open over the nex: five years
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© Brand and product strategy
We offer our customers a
unique, differentiated and
exclusive collection of brands,
products and categones

© Instore execution
Raising standards of visual
merchandising and product
presentation remforces
Debenhams asamodern and
contemporary place toshop

© Commmnicating the
proposition
Our marketing and PR activities
are fully jomed up and we are
spealang with one voice acToss
all media under the banner
of "Life Made Fabulous”
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Strategy review continued

Delivering a compelling customer proposition

Brand and product strategy

Our brand and product strategy gives
customers a umgque exclusive and
differentiated chowce Itis umque through the
combination of own brands, international
brands and concession brands 1t 1s exclusive
through our core own brands and Designers
at Debenhams which together account for
half of everythung we sell. It 1s differentiated
through Designers at Debenhams, which
two-thirds of cur customers tell usisan
important reason they shop with us

An area of focus1n 2012 has been the further
development of our non-clothing business,
particularlynareas such as health & beauty,
footwear and accessones where there is clear
market share momentum. Non-clothing
sales accounted for 49% of total sales dunng
the year, providing the balance and resthence
whichs aninherent strength of the
department store rnodel We are targeting
further growth in non-clothing sales and
market share going forward.

Newness and product innovation are

ey to dehvenng a compelhng customer
proposition. We added several newbrands
tothe portfolioin 2012 These include

No 1by Jenny Packham, a glamorous new
occasionwear range by one of the UK's best
designers, classic Amernican menswear brand
Nautica whichis now available in the UK
exclusively at Debenhams, footwear brand
Call It Spring, and the extension of the
Edition Designer concept into home through
Ashley Thomas Yukan Sweeney and Carcle
Lake Newlaunches for 2013 include Marnos
Schwab m womenswear and Donna & Mark
mn childrenswear

Looking forward, we will drive growth
by mvesting in our drfferentiated own
bought strategy [n particular, tnalsin
Red Hernng, Pninciplesby Bende List
and the footwear division will be aiming

26

Designers at Debenhams brands

£552m

Designersat Debenhams 2012 sales mc VAT

Designersat Debenhams is an exclusive
portfolio of diffusion brands designed by
some of the UK sleading fashion designers
Our medum term iarget for Designer sales
15 E750 mulhion
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to replicate concession sales densihes at
own bought gross margins This requires
end-to-end investiment, from buying
and merchandising to supply chain to
marketing to Instore resourcing.

Instore execution

Good visual merchandising and product
presentanon arekey to creating an exciting
shopping expenence Historically, our
standards have been inconsistent actoss
the store estate and they need o improve
Creating great looking stores must be a
core competence for the retatl commusnty

We will achieve this by defining standards
of merchandising and presentation for

each season n regional “model” stores

and cascading them through the estate,
thereby ensunng that every store team
understands and 15 equipped to deliver
these standards Excellence will be rewarded
on aregional basis

Standards are complemented by increasingly
strong mstore graphics and displays which
reflect the overall marketing and advertising
themes, giving customers a clear
commuication trail to follow from advert to
store window tonstore collateral to ticketing.

the proposition
For toolong Debenhams was a idden
secret to all but our regular customers Our
marketing and brand communcation has
improved significantly over the past year
with a joined up approach under the theme
of “Life Made Fabulous™

We increased our marketing spend in 2012
which hasbothdriven sales and begunte
change perceptions about the Debenhams
brand. We have increased TV adverhsing at
the imes and on the channels our customers
are most likely to see them and we have fully
embraced digital and social media marketing.
Further, we are using the sameimagesand

49%

2012 sales mux of non-clothing categones

40bps

Increase in women s footwear share

Non-clothing categones accounted for almost
half of everyitung we sold n 2012 We saw
good growth in market share in non-clothing
including wormen s footwear (source- Kantar
Worldpanel Fashion market share 52 weeks
to 2 Septernber 2012 vs 2011)

production vatues for both prermum brand
marketngand promotional marketing,
which in the past had been dissumilar

and confusing.

We saw tangble evidence of market share
growth 1n some of the categones where

we introduced focused marketing actiies
Womenss footwear market share, for example,
grew by 40basis points following the launch
of a shoe brochure and prormunence in a
number of premmim adverts.

We have seen significant shufts m custorner
perception in our independently conducted
brand tracker, with greater recognition

for exclusive brands, fashionability

and engagement.

Looking forward, we will continue to invest
mmarketing, thereby dernonstrating our
continung confidence in comimurnicating
the proposition For the first tume i six years
we will havea TV advertising campaign at
Chrnistrnas 2012, aiming to increase our share
of voice when the market 15 at i1t largest.

Through our work to gain a single view of
the customer we will alsobe able to drive
sales through more tailored and personalised
comrmunication with customers There are
alsonew developments 1 our successful
Beauty Clubloyalty scheme - which already
has 13 million cards in regular use -and the
mntrochuction of a new store card and credit
card withaloyalty element.

1.3m

BeautyClub cards inregular use

485,000

Facebookfans

We communucate with our customers mn many
chfferent ways including the Beauty Club
which offers treats as well as loyalty ponts
inour premium health & beauty departrment.
We are increasingly using all forms.of social
media asamarketing channel




Overview

Strategy review

Finance and nsk review

Sustainability

Governance

Accounts

A& RIBlo

1.No 1by Jenny Packham

we were delighted to welcome Jenny
Packham to Designers at Debenhams
2012 with a glamorous new 1ange of
occasionwear clothing and accessores

2. Improving instore execution

We are raising our standards of visual
merchandising and product presentation
inour UK stores

3.LifeMade Fabulous

We are imeesting in marketing through
the “Life Made Fabulous” campaign which
focuses on Designers ¢t Debenhams o
dnve sales and improve brand perceptions
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© More choice and
better availability
We are mncreasing the choice of
brands, products and categornes
that we sell online as well as
improving availability and
working towards offennga
better range of delivery options

Overview

Strategy review
Finance and risk teview
Sustainability
Governance

Accounts
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© More ways toshop
We know that the more ways
we offer customers to shop,
the more they do shop Multi-
channel custorners spend
up to three imes more than
single channel custorners

O Improving the
customer experience
Growth will come through
making shopping easier for our
customers by better custorner
service and encouraging rrore
customers to shop muln-channel
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Strategy review continued

Increasing availability and choice through multi-channel

Our mulb-channel business continues

to grow strongly Online sales increased

by 39 8% 112012 to £250 6 rillion® Thus
ongoing momentum has led us to increase
our medmum-term online sales target from
£500 muihion to £600 million

More choice and better availability
Multi-channelis all about choice Customers
expect the walls of a multi-channel store
tobe entirely elastic Asamulti-brand,
rmulti-category department store
Debenhams 1s well-placed to meet this
demand. Our onhne product offernow
encompasses some 110,000 product lines.
one third larger than our iggest store and
frve tmes bigger than the smallest stores

Onlme:s becormung a key destination for
some key product categones In 2012, eight
out of ten furmiture orders were placed
online Onen three dresses was sold oniline
-even higher for occasionwear - and onein
five pars of shoes Online health & beauty
sales, although stillsmall, increased by 76%

Durning the first half of 2012 we introduced

a store-based fulhlment service we call
Endless Aisle which 1improves availability by
meeting demand for products winch are cut
of stock in the fulfilment centre By utihising
the stock held on the tradimg floors and stock
rooms of 36 of cur largest stores we are able
to meet some 95% of this patentially lost
demand. In 2012 we estimnate this accounted
for sales of £16 million Endless Aisle
reinforces our stores as a vital element

of our mulh-channel offer

A focus mn 2013 wall be toimprove the choice
of delivery options for mult-channel orders
At present we have astandard delivery
promuse of four days as well as offermg
coilect from store Investrnent i our delivery
mfrastructure will allow us to shorten the
delwvery prormise and offer arange of delvery
options, including next day delivery These
changes will also iImprove collation, thereby
IMpIoVing custormer service and umproving
the margins of our onhre business over time
by reducing delivery and logistics costs.

£250.6m

2012 onhne sales

£600m

Medium-term onhne sales target

Qver the past three years online sales have
grown by more than 350% This performangce
has given us the confidence tencrease our
medwm-term sales target for online sales
from £500 millon to £600 million
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More ways toshop
It1sclear that the more ways we give
customers to shop, the more they doshop

The fastest growing sales channe} 1s maobile
In 2012, 27% of all visits came from mobile
devices, mgher than the industry average
of c15% InMay 2012 we were among the
first major lugh street retanlers to offer free
wi-fiin all our stores Thisisundoubtedty
drrving some of the growth in mabile
channel visit numbers Contnuing

to develop our mobile strategy will be
akey focus in 2013 through, for example,
ntroducing device-specific content which
recogruses that customers use different
mobtle devices to do dfferent things

The nstore kiosks we nstalled across the
estate m fime for Chnstmas 2011 have been
very successful and customers are using
them to purchase both out of stock and
unranged iterms In 2013 new collateral will
be rolled out across the estate to improve
their profile 1in store

Whilst technology 1s an important part

of gving customers more ways to shop
more tradinonal channels such as the home
catalogue whuch was launched in September
2011 have also proved successful

the customer experience
Tn 2012 we made some important changes
morder to mprove custorner service Track
and trace1s now available on all orders so
customers can follow their delivenies online
We mtroduced webchat technology so
that customer service advisors can assist
customers through the website We also
made the difficult decision to close our
customer contact centre in Tauntonand
outsource it to a dedicated call centre facility
run by Capitam Leeds This took effect
m August 2012 and 1s providmg us with
ndustry leading capability and techinology
which aims tomprove first call resohution
thereby improving customer satisfachon
and reduang costs

177m

Visits to debenhams.com m 2012

11th

largest UK onhne retailer

Visits to debenharms com increased by 54%
112012 to 177 million We are now the 1ith
ggest UK cnlineretalier by traffic volume,
upfrom 13thlast year (source IMRG/ Experian
Hitwise Hot Shops List May 2012)

Qurrefund policy has been updated to allow
customers to refurn a product purchased
through one channel to any other channel
that 1s most converuent for thern, Onhine
shoppers are now able to retun goods

to any store, even 1f 1t does not stock that
particularitem

Looking forward, growth will come from
improving the visibihty of other shopping
channelsacross all channels to convert
single-channel customers to multi-channel
Sowe will beraising awareness of services
such as click and collect and return to store
We are using vouchers to encourage store
custorners to try online shopping, remforcng
the avanlability of instore kiosks and
promoting mobile sales channels and

free mistore wi-f

We will be improving online visual
merchandising and product presentation by
introducing better photography and product
descripions, particularly in womenswear
All dothing 1s now displayed on models,
mncluding childrenswear We have invested
n an onhne creative team wiuch s drving
improvernents in styhng These inifiatives
should also help toreduce the level of
returned goods.

Customers see online and instore as one
Debenhams brand and we as a business
need tosee the customer in the same way
Tothis end stores are now being credited
with online sales withun their locality so
that each channel 15 focused on meeting
customers' needs across thelr own and
allother channels

*52weekstol Septemnber 2012 vs 52 weeksto
27 August 2011

200%

Increase in mobile visits in 2012

537%

Increase in iPad visits 1n 2012

Mobile1sby far the fastest growing sales
channel through smartphone and rablet
appsand themobile website Mobile vasits
ncreased by over 200% and now account
for 27% of all visits
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L Raising the visibility of multi-chanmnel
New collateral 1s being introduced

nstores to remnforce the availability

of other shopping channels

2.Developing our mobile strategy
We are introducing dewvice speaific
content, particulary for iPads and
other tablet devices.

3.Home

Autumn 2012 saw the launch of
the third edition of our catalogue
for the home department.
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© Intermational franchise stores
Franchise stores are a proven
low-cost, low-capital way to
expand the brand in distant
and emerging markets We have
ambitious plans to extend the
franchise programme

© Owned international assets
We owti 11l Debenhams storesin
the Republic of Ireland and six1n
Denmark which trade as Magasin
du Nord

© International online
We are beginning to see
momentumin intemational
online which we expect toaccount
for £100 mulhion of sales over time

Overview

Smategy review
Finance and nsk review
Sustamnability
Governance

Accounts
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Strategy review comniinted

Expanding the brand intermationally

Debenhams s already so much more than
aUK depantment store We are extremely
proud of our British roots, but over tme

we believe that sales generated from outside
the UK should exceed those from within
our horme market.

Franchisestores

Dunng 2012 we celebrated the 15th
anrversary of the opening of our first
franchise store in Bahrain We continue to
believe that iIn most distant and emerging
markets this proven low capital, low cost

franchise model 1s the way to extend thereach

of the Debenhams brand outside the UK

The key to a successful franchise store

programime s having the nght partners.
Our partners are retaiters with considerable

experienceof operating in their local markets

aswell as the resources to make the
sigrfrcant mvestrnerit in capital and costs
required tobuild and run a department store

We entered two new markets in 2012, Russia
and Palastan We also opened new stores
1nIndia, the Philippines and Iran By the

end of the year our franchise partners were
operating from 68 stores across 25 countries,
anet increase of four stores during the year

In 2013, seven new stores are scheduled to
open in both existing markets - Indonesia,
Malta, Saudi Arabia and the UAE - and new
markets Bulgana, Georga and Libya Beyond
this, the contracted store pipeline comprises
14 stores which are expected to open over
the subsequent three years Wearein
discusstons gn another 50 or so stores

As aresult of the strength of the new store
pipeline we have increased our five year
franchuse store target from 130 1o 150

2.7%

2012 intematonal sales growth*

18.5%

2012 international operating profit growth

Theinternational segment performed

well in 2012 with sales growingby 27% 10
£503 4 million and operating profit growing by
18 5% t0 £30 7 milion The main dnversof thus
were the franchise stores and Magasin du Nord

52 weeks o1 September 2012 vs 52 weeks to 27 August 2011
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Owned assets

Our owned store portfolio outside the UK
consists of 11 stores in the Republic of Ireland,
which are branded as Debenharns, and six
stores 1n Denmark which have continued
tooperate as Magasm du Nord since their
acquisinon in Novernber 2009

Magasin had agood year with hke-for-like
salesincreasing by 4 6% i local currency
Dunng 2012 the Damsh business was
integrated into the Debenharmns retail
operatonal managernent through the
mnternational division Thus will allow

for a faster and more effective exchange
of ideas and roll out of best practice

Since acquustiion Magasin du Nord has
ncreased sales and margins through the
mtroduction of both Debenthams own
brands and Magasin branded volume lines.
There1s more benefit to come from this n
future years Although the propensity for
online shopping 1s low and multi-channel
wirtually unknown amongst Danish
consumers at this ime, this will change
and we are well placed o take advantage
of changing trends

The business in the Repubhc of Ireland has
been affected by the extremely difficult
economic environment However it does
appear to be stabilising and we believe

we are gaimng market share

68

Franchise stores at end of 2012

150

Frve year target for franchise stores

The contracted new store pipeline stands at
2l stores wath a further 50 n discussion We
will be opering ina number of new markets
including Bulgana Estorua Gecrgla and Libya

International online

Online retaiing 15 a key part of our plans for
international expansion Over the medium-
term we anticipate 1t wall generate sales of
some £100 mullion

Ourstrategy)s two-fold Formayor markets
wewlll develop a series of country speafic
websites, which are presented in the locat
language and transact in Jocal currency In
other markets we will use overseas delivery
from the UK We made progress tn both these
areas durng 2012

The development of country specific
websites 15 facilitated by the investment
made over the past year in the latest
Websphere 7 internet technology An Insh
website has been operating since Autumn
2010 The first local language site was
launched in Germany 1n summer 2012
We will monitor the performance of
debenhams de and tearn lesscns from

1t before introducing further websites
inmajor markets

Dunng the course of the year the number
of countries we deliver to through
debenhams com outside the UK increased
fromsevento 66 Expansion to another

30 countnes1s planned

66

Countries we deliver to outside UK

£100m

International online sales target

Although small at present we have ambitous
plans forinternational online Qur approach s
forlocal websites in major marketsand cnline
delvery inother markets
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1 Welcome to Russia

Designers at Debenhams Ben de Lisy,
Alza Reger John Rochaand Julien
Macdonald at the launch of the first
franchise store 1 Russia

2.MagasinduNord

Our Danish department store chain had
agood year m 2012 with Like for l:he sales
growthof 4 6% nlocal currency

3.Guten Tag Deutschland
The firstlocal language local currency
webhsie liunched i Germany durnng 2012
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Building strong foundatio

SimonHerrick ChietFinanclaloficer  We made good progress in 2012,
Gross transaction value, like-for-like sales, profit
before tax and earnings per share all increased”,
Net debt improved and we completed the first
tranche of the share buyback programime.

52 weels 101 September 2012 vs 52 weeks to 27 August 2011
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are available tous A full vear review willbe
carred out m Apnl but mial figures ndicate
that we are now sending far less tolandfill,
resulting in sigruficant inancial savings

Connecting with people

Customers are at the heart of our decision
making. Delivening on our customer prormise
relies on the commutmment of our 30,000
employees so we [emain commutted

to attracting, retauning and growing

the very best talent in the ndustry

We created 168 new jobs dunng 2012
through the opening of two new stores 1n
Newbury and Dumfnes We also worked
i partnership with Capita toopen a new
customer call centre 1n Leeds

We continued cur policy to appoint the
magornty of store and head office managers
mtemnally Over the 12 monthsto the

end of September 2012, 89% of retail
management appointments and 65%

of serior executive appomtrments at

head office were mternal promotions

Debenhams Design Team remainsthe
key vehicle for quantrtative feedback from
custorners 15,000 registered custommers
participate in regular surveys to provide
opinions on inthatives such as advertising,
branding, charty involvernent and store
madermisaton Weuse this feedback to
mfluence decision malang throughout
the business

Our Customer Closeness programme has
proved extrernely valuable for qualitative
feedback Our Chuef Executive Michael Sharp
and other senior execuives spend a day in
store each quarter gmming insights directly
from customers and non-customers

Our long tradition of connecting with local
communites and supportng good causes
becamemore strategic dunng 2012 Following
feedback from our customers and employees,
we have formed natonal partnershups with
BBC Children in Need, NSPCC, Breakthrough
Breast Cancer, Breast Cancer Campaign,

Pink Ribbon Foundation and Movember

We now have a calendar of support for these
chanties that encourages individual stores
to fundraise in their preferred style Stores
also have the freedom to support local
causes duning other mes of the year

The Debenharns Foundation (number
1147682) was formally registered with the
Chanty Comirmssion on 13 June 2012

All funds raised for chanty will go through
the Foundation, providing improved
transparency and accountability Nikki

Zamblera, HR Director, 15 chair of the trustees

who nclude former Debenhams senior
managers, Pat Skinner and Keith Markham

Our futureplans

Dunng 2013 we plan to progress many
mitiatves that will contnbute towards
Debenhams' sustamnability goals

In supply, we will be undertaking tmnals for
sourcing merchandise closer to home 1n

Eurcpe We will also progress trals toship
merchanchse directly from the country of

manufacture to our mtermnational franchisees

We expect further improvements through
our waste management contracts and to
see environmental and economic benefits
of our investments 1n store modemisation
and our upgraded distribution fleet

Our new employee and Customer surveys
shotld give us more relevant information
about ways to improve peoples expenence
of Debenhams We also look forward to
our head office moven 2013

Updates on all activities wili be posted
onour dedicated sustainability website
sustamnability debenhamsplecom
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A& SIS

Debenhams' long-runming Inclusmity
Campaign was honoured with the
Campaign for Body Conhdence Retail
Awardin Apnl 2012 TheJudges believe the
campaign “showcases imagery thatis
inspirational and reahistic by using models
who are older, curvier and visually disabled
to mspire modern day Bntish women™

For us, using models, mannequins and
photography that customers candentify
with 1s about more than talang a socially
responsible stance Inclusivity 1s abusiness

decision that makes comrimercial sense
becauset appeals to a wider audience

Debenhamsalso supports the UK All-Party
Farharneniary Group on Body Image, we are
asignatory tothe Bntish Retar! Consortum
gudelinesonresponsible marketing to
children and the Mumsnet Fet Girls be

Gurls campaign. Campaigns like this are
imnportant for sustarng consumer trust

and confidence
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Note The Financial Staternents for the period
ended 3 September 2011 included 53 weeks
Therefore all comparative 1ncome staternent
numbers for the 2011 financal year relate

to the 52 weeks of trading to 27 August 2011
Management believes that companng
hike-for-like 52 week penods demonstrates
the underying performance of the business
Comparative cash flow numbers reflect the
full 53 weeks to 3 September 2011 and the
comparative balance sheet 15 also at thus date

Sales and profit performance
Debenhams delivered a good performance
12012 given the challenging market
condinions Key financial metnics are
summansed n figure t whilst our key
performance indicators are descnbed
indetail on page &

Group

The Debenhams brand trades through
239 stores n 28 countnes and onhnein
67 countrtes

The total trading space of owned stores as
at 1 September 2012 was 12,521,000sq ft,
anincrease of 78,000 sq ft (06%) dunng
the course of the year

Group gross transaction value increased

by 2 6% to £2,708 O mullion for the 52 weeks
to1 September 2012 (2011 £2,639 5 milhon)
Group revere increased by 2 5% from
£2176 4 rmllion to £2,229 8 mullion Group
hke-forlike sales grew by 2 3% including
VAT and by 16% excluding VAT

Group gross margin decreased by 30 basis

paints dunng the year due to a largely
weather-related sales mix charige towards
health & beauty which has alower gross
margin than own bought clothung, and to

Figurel: Financlal summary
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higher concession sales The promotional
calendar was largely unchanged fromlast
year as stocks were very tightly controlled
across the business given the chfficult
market conditions

Profit before tax for the year increased by

4 2%1t0 £158.3 million (2011 £1519 mulhon)
The use of “headline profit before tax” was
discontinued dunng 2012 as the quantum
of the amortisation of capitahised bank fees
which constituted the difference between
the reported and headline metncs has
become small enough that the distinction
150 longer necessary

Profit after tax ncreased by 12 8% to
£125 3 mulhon, largely due to both lower
taxation and interest as detailed on page 37

Basic earnings per share for 2012 were 98
pence (2011 8 6 pence)and diluted earnings
per share were 9 8 pence (2011 8 6 pence)

Segmental performance

Debenhams is adopting a new segmental
analysis which better represents the way
we manage the Group This will provide
sales and operating proft information for
two segments UK and international Each
segment represents the performance of
one pillar of the four pillar Debenhams
strategy The UK segment will reflect the
performance of “Focusing on UK retail”,
while the international segment will reflect
“Expandmng the brand internaticnalty”
The results of the pillar “Improving choice
and availability through multi-channel”
are split between the two segiments based
on customer location

52weeksto 52weeksto 53weeksto
1September 27August 3 September
2012 201 2011

' Gross transaction value - Group

£2,708.0m £26395m  £26793m

Gross transaction value - UK
Gross transaction value - international

£2.204.6m £21495m £21811m
£503.4m £4900m £498.2m

_ Lake-for -like sales exc VAT 1.6% nfa nfa
Revenue - Group £2,229.8m £21764m  £22098m
Revenue-UK £1.860.3m £18231m £1,8506m

Revenue - interational

£369.5m £3533m £3592m

Operanng profit - Group £175 Om £1750m £1837m
Operating profit- UK £144.3m £1491m £1562m
i Operating profit - nternational £307m £259m £275m
| Net interest £16 7m £231m £234m
« Proht before tax £158.3m £1519m £1603m
: Basic earrings per share 9.8p 86p 91p
Diluted earnings per share 9.8p 86p Slp
Drvidend per share 33p 30p 30p
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Chifef Financial Officer's review continited

UK

The UK segment comprses 154 stores n the
UK plus onhine deliveries to UK customers
Dunng the year we opened two new stores
and modermised 18

UK gross transaction value inaeased by
2 6% 10 £2,204 6 rmithon for the 52 weeks
to1 September 2012 Revenue increased
by 2 0% to £1,.860 3mtlhon

Sales growth in the UK was driven by a
number of factors

= Good perfermance from the 32 stores
which have been modermised since 2010
Stores modermused for one yearare
achleving a sales uphft of 6% durning

the furst year Those stores which have
cormnpleted two years since modermisation
are achieving a further average uphft of
¢15% inthe second year Thisissignificant
because previous modernisation
programmes have generally only delvered
a first year uphft

Anmimproved perforrance from
uninvested core stores (e those awaiting
modemisation) following the introduction
of imtiatives to improve basic retail practices
+ Market share gains m key categones
including womenswear menswear and
health & beauty (sources Kantar
Worldpanel Fashion Market Share, NPD)
Improvements In our marketing activities
and higher marketing spend that 1sboth
dnving sales and improving perceptions
about the Debenhams brand

+ Growth in onhne sales

EBITDA for the UK segment decreased
by 0 2% to£224 8 milhon UK operating
profit for the UK segment decreased by

Figure 2.Cash flowand uses of cash

3 2% to £144.3 rmillion, largely as a result
of higher deprectation

International

The international segrment represents 85
stares, compnsing 11 Debenhams storesin
the Republic of Ireland, six Magasin du Nord
stores in Denmark, the 68 intemationat
franchise stores and onhine sales to
customers outside of the UK Duning the year
we openedseven franchise stores inctuding
two new markets and closed three stores

International gross transactton value
increased by 27%to £503 4 mullion
Revenue increased by 4 6% to £369 5 mullion.

The key drivers of internatonal sales growth
dunng the year were-

+ Astrong performance from Magasindu
Nord which recorded hke-for-hke sales
growth of 4 6% 1n local currency

» Goced results from the international
franchise stores Seven new stores opened
over the course of the year (twoeach in
India and the Philippines, one eachin Iran,
Pakastan and Russta) Three stores closed
(one each in Moldova, Romamaand
Slovakia) resuling in a total of 68 stores
1n 25 countries at the end of the year

+ A growing international online business
Dunng the year the number of countnes
able to transact through debenhams com
outside the UK increased from seven to 66
Alocal language website was launched
in Germany

EBITDA for the international segment
increased by 10 8% to £42 O rrutlion,
Operating profit for the mternational segment
mcreased by 18 5% to £307 mmullion. [mproved

profitablity was driven by higher sales.
52 weeksto S3weeksto
1September 3 September
2012 2011

EBITDA
Working capital

Proceeds from sale of hixed asset nvestments

Capital expenditure and investments

£266.8m £2722m
£(7.0m H226)m

- £50m
£(118.6)m £(1140)m

Operaung cash flow before financing and taxaton £141.1m f1406m
Taxation £(44.6)m £(486)m
Finanang £(13.6)m £256)m
Dividends paid £(38.5)m £(129m
Sharebuyback £20.1)m -
Other £(9.3)m £796m
Change innet debt £15.0m E133lm |
Openung net debt £383.7m £516 8m
Closing net debt £368.7m £3837m

*Adjustment for property sales and leaseback transacaons




Group costs

Ensunng the business has an appropnate
and well-controlled cost base continues tobe
animportant area of focus and we maintain
very strong cost management disciplines
across all areas of the business The main cost
categones are described in terms of their
percentage of gross transaction value

+ Store payroll as a ratio to gross transaction
improved to 10 5% (2011 10 9%}, largely asa
result of efhciency savings 1n particularin
relation to the employment of temporary
staff over the peak trading penod

« Store rent as a ratio to gross transaction
value decreased from 70% last year to
6 8% this year

» Warehousimg and distribution costs asa
ratio to GTV increased from 2 6% to 30%
as a result of higher levels of activity In
the multi-channel business

+ Other costs compnse anumber of
components, ot least buying and
merchandising, marleting, pension and
the costs associated wath thenult:-channel
business We are mvestingina nurmber
of these areas to ensure Debenhams can
deliver sustamnable, long-term sales growth
Asaresult, other costs as a percentage
of gross transacton value increased by
20 basis points during 2012

Depreciation

Group depreciation and amortusation of E916
rmulion increased by 17% versus last year
(2011 £801mullion)as they begin toreflect
nicreased mnvestment in capital expenditure

Financing income and expense
The net interest cost of £16 7 mllion for the

52 weeks to 1 September 2012 represented
adecline of 277% from last year (2011

Figure3.Capital expenditure

New UK stores 9%

UK store modermsatons 27%
1 UK maintenance 23%
| International 6%
{ Groupsystems 25%
| Group warchouse 9%
j Other 5%
{

£231 milhon) Thus reflects the lower mterest
rate assoclated with therefmanang of the
semor credit fachty m July 201t and a
reduction i the Groups level of debt

Taxation

The Groups tax charge of £33 0 millionon
aprofit of £158 3milhion gave an effective tax
Tate of 20 8% compared with 26 9% for the
prior year The decline i effechive rateisin
part due to reductions in the headline rate

of corporation tax (accountng for 2 0% of
the &6 1% norminal decrease) with the balance
largely due to the resolution of histoncat
1ssues net of current year conhingencies

Earmings pershare

Total basic and diluted earmings per share
were 9 8 pence, compared with 8 6 pence for
the 52 weeks to 27 August 2011 The weighted
average number of sharesinissue1n 2012
was 1,281 3 mulhion 2011 1,286 5 mullion}

Cash flow and usesofcash
Debenhams remainsa highly cash
generative business and has clear pricnties
for the uses of cash which are

1 Investin the business to support the
four pillars of the strategy

2 Grow dividend coverinline with
mamtaning dividend cover of three
{tmes earnings

3 Move towards one times net debt to
EBITDA over the medium-term

4 Retum surplus cash to shareholders
through along-term share buyback
programime

New UK stores 10%
UK store modermsations 29%
UK maintenance 15%
International 8%
Group systems 20%
Group warehouse 5%
Head office move 9%
Other 4%
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Cash flow generation, the uses of cash and
the movement in net debt are surmmansed
i figure 2

Operating cash flow before financing and
taxation was £1411 rmllion We used this cash
topay taxation of £44 6 rmlhon and inancmg
of £13 6 milhon Payment of the 2011 final
dmwidend and 2012 intenm dividend
accounted for £38 5Smullion A further

£201 mulhon was spent ortshare buybacks

Capital expenditure

Caputal expenditure dunng the year was
£118 6 mullion, an increase of 4 0% versus
the previous year (2011 £114 O milhion)

The key components of capital expenditure
aredetailed in figure 3 as1sgudance for
capital expenditure n 2013

Bividends

Anintenm dividend of 10 pence per share
was paid toshareholders on 6 July 2012

The board 1s recommencding a final dividend
of 2 3 pence per share (2011 2 O penice) which
will be paid to shareholders on 11 January
2013, taking the total dvidend for the year
t03 3 pence (2011 30 pence)

Share buyback programine

In October 2011 the board announced that
astt could see nobenefit inleverage betow

I imes EBITDA, it intended to commence
along-term share buyback programme as
leverage approached this 1times. It was
subsequently announced at the intenim
results n Apni 2012 that this programme
would commence with the imtial purchase
of £20 mullion of shares duning the following
six months This was duly completed by the
end of August 2012 Thetotal numberof
shares bought was 23 6 mulhon, consuming
£20 1 rmulhon of cash These shares are
currently held as treasury shares

Netdebt

The Groups net debt position as at

1 Septernber 2012 was £368 7tmllion

(3 September 2011 £3837 muliion) a
reduction of £150 mullion durng the course
of the year after the share buyback. Asa
consequence the rato of reported net debt
to EBITDA remained at 14 tumes.
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Chief Financial @fficer's review comtimaed

Balancesheet
Key balance sheet items are summarised
i figure 4

Reported net assets were £661 0 riilion
representing an increase of £14 mihon from
the Balance Sheet at 3 September 2011

Inventory

Stock levels continued to be managed very
tightly during the year given the difhicult
market conditions Store stock levels were
flat on the prior year whilst stock levels in
the onbne and international businesses
ncreased in line with growing demand
Asaresult, totat stock increased by 34%to
£3323mullion Terrminal stock at year end of
2 6% was in line wath the long-term average

Pensions

The Group provides a number of pension
arrangements forits employees These
include the Debenhams Retirement Scheme
and the Debenhams Executive Pension Plan
(together the “Group’s pension schemes™)
which closed for future service accrual from
31 October 2006 UnderIAS 19, the Group's
pension schemes' deficit as at 1 September
2012 was £573mllion (3 September 2011
£39mulhon surphus) Further informaton
can be found in note 23 to the Group financial
staternents starting on page 107

Future pension arrangements will be
provided for Debenhams employees

by a money purchase stakeholder plan

or defined contribution penston schemes

Dunng March thss year the tnenmniat actuanal
valuation was completed and discussions
with the pension fund trustees were

devised by the trustees are intended to
restore the schemes toa fully funded position
onanongoing basis by the end of March
2022 {Debenhams Retirement Scheme) and
August 2021 (Debenhams Executive Pension
Plan} As aconsequence of this agreed plan,
annual contnbutions to the two funds were
set at £8 9 million, nsing each year inline
with the RP[ The Cormpany also pays the
non-anvestment expenses and levies to

the Pension Protection Fund

Financial position

In July 2013, the Group refmanced its

£650 mllion senuor credit factlity which

has a matunty date of October 2015, with
anoption o extend further to October 2016
The facility compnses a £250 milhon termloan
and a £400 mullion revolving credt facility

The seror credit facility contains fixed
charge coverand leverage covenants, which
were both met in full during the year The
directors believe that the Group has sufficient
headroom toensure comphance for the
foreseeable future

Financingriskand

treasury management

The board has established an overall treasury
policy and has approved authonty levels
within which the treasury function must
operate Treasury policy is to manage nsks
within theagreed framework whilst not
taking specuiative positions

The policies and strategies for managing
financial nsks are disclosed in note 21 of
the Group financial staternents starting
onpage 101

concluded The contribubions from the Simon Herrick
Company and the mvestment sirategles Chief Finanaal Officer
Figure 4. Balance sheet \
1September 3 September |
2012 201
Intangble assets £864.9m E8581m
Property, plant and equipment £661.6m £6346m i
Inventory £332.3m £3213m |
Other assets £105.2m £956m
Trade and other payables £(525.4)m £4891)m |

Other habilities

Retrernent benefit {obligaticnsyassets
Deferred tax assets/labilines

Netdebt

£3700m  £(3827)m ’
£(57.31m £39m |
£18.5m £16m

£(3687)m  £(3837)m .

Reported net assets

£6610m  £6506m |

o




Risk review
Safeguarding future returns

Effective management of risksand
opportunities is essential if Debenhams
15to deliver its strategic and operational
goals, protectits reputationand
ulmately enhance shareholder value.

The board, which has overall responsibility
for nsk management and internal control,
considers it important that there should

be a regular and systematic approach to

the ranagement of rsks in order to provide
assurance that strategic and operational
goals can be met and the Groups reputation
is protected.

In order todentify and manage nsks
effectively ansk management framework has
been developed, which includes. processes to
idennify the nsks facing the Group; a process
toevaluate the potenhal impact of nsks,
appropriate controls and strategies to treat the
nisks, reporting requirernents for changes to
thersk profile; and details of speaific roles and
responsibilities relating to the management
of nsk. Management is expected toutiise the
nisk managemertt framework when assessing
nisks and implementing suitable controls

Risk management framework

The board s responsible for the Group's
systemn of internal control, whichis based
on the COSO mode! {covening control
environment, nsk assessment, nformation
and communication, control acavities

and monutonng) and for reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control systems
in place Such systerns aredesigned to
manage rather than ehminate the nisk

of failure to achieve the strategic business
abjectives They can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance agamnst matenal
mmusstatement or loss. The board has
conducted areview of the effechiveness

of nternal controls and 15 satisfied that

the controls in place remain appropriate

Theboard exemmplifies the control
environment to 1ts stakeholders through

its comphance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, Debenhams' policies

and procedures and, in particular, pohcies
covenngnsk management, code of business
conduct and anti-bnbery and corruption

Define principal risks

and risk treatment
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Tosupport thus system for internal control,
the Debenhams nsk management
framework (figure 1) has been developed
usmg the principles of the mternational
standard ISO 31000 {Risk Management)

Thus frarnework highlights the central role
that the management of isk plays in the
successful delivery of strategic objectives
and the fact that this process 1s dependent
onpeople fulfilling theur clearly defined
roles and responsibilities

The key potnts of the process are described
1n more detall below

Riskidentification

Rusks exist withun all operations and it 1s
important toidentfy them m order to
understand the degree towhich their
occurrence would threaten the delivery
of key objectives

Risks are1dentified through anumber of
routes They inchude membership of industry
bodies, environmental scanning (e market
research) changes tolegislation, enterprise
nsk management best pracuces, strategic
planning exercises, ongoing operational
reviews by management, project governance
processes, internat audits and control
ENVIIONMENE [EVIEWS

Whlst there are ongoing monitors in place,
the most extensive piece of work undertaken
todentify nisks 1s the annual organisation-
wide review facillitated by the nsk
management team This was most recently
conducted i October 2012 All senuor
managers participate n the exercise,
including the board It considers strategy,
objectives and nsks to thewr achievernent
together with the existing and new controls
required tomugate nsk. The outputs from
this process are collated into the Groups nsk
register and are taken nto consideration
when setting the annual internal auchit plan
Management 1s requured to update the
register with any new or emerging nsks
asthey aredentified

Figure 1. Debenhams risk management framework

Detinerisk appetite
Risk reporting

Risk identification

Risk evaluation
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Risk review continmned

Risk evaluation

In order to understand the unpact specific
nisks would have tothe Group, each nskis
evaluated based on the kikelthood of
occurrence and i1ts seventy

The nsk ranking mamx (figure 2) has

been developed to ensure that a consistent
approachs taken when assessing the overall
wmpact to the Group Likehhood 1s based

on the frequency of occurtence n arolling
12 month penod and seventy 1s determined
by the degree of change across key
performanceirchcators

Management 1sresponsible for ensuring
that nsks are evaluated correctly, with
support from the finance department
astrequired Individual managers consider
the cumulanve impact of all nsks across
ther particular area of operation when
determirmng the state of their overall control
ermvironment The purpose of this exercise
1s to calculate the nsk score for each nisk
identified, which determunes the level of
treatment expected.

The board reviews the key nslks to the Group,
taking action {ostrengthen where necessary,
and the output from this 1s used to populate
the Groups nsk map

Risk treatment

‘The board 15 responsible for determuming
the nature and extent of the nsks 1t 1s willing
to take in achieving its strategic ohyectives,
whichs defined as the nsk appetite and 1s
outhned in hgure 3

Risk scores are compared to the nsk appetite
matrx, which provides guidance onthe
expected level of treatment, imeframes
and authontylevels The four methods
used to reat nsk are-

+ Tolerate {accept nsk and takeno
further action}

= Treat (reduce nsk by defining and
completing appropnate acons to
1mprove or implement controls)

- Transfer (share a nsk via insurance policies
or asking a third party to take the nskin
another way)

= Termunate (@vord nsk quuckly and decisively
by eliminating or re-engineenng the
activities that lead to the nsk occurning)
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Risk reporting and momtonng
Individual managers are expected to
define and analyse the reports they requue
to erthance financal and operational
performance and identfy emerging nsks
or control fathures

Finanaal performance 1s mortored through
anurnber of processes. An operating plan

1s prepared 1n August of each vear, shorily
before the start of the financal year and
arevised forecast 1s prepared each month

of the inancial year which analyses actuat
performance and lnghhights vanances
aganst the plan In particular, performance
1s monitored through a series of key metrics
Daily sales, weekly sales and margin and
monthly management accounts are
prepared, all of which report on performance
agawnst the operating plan, last yearand
forecast Additonally, a treasury report 1s
made to each board meeting which covers
matters such as senior operating restrictions,
covenant reportng and forecasiing (under
the Group's banking facilities), exposure to
foreign exchange and hedging arrangements,
niet debt and interestrate hedging cash flow
and cash flow forecasting and amounts
deposited with counterparties

Performance 1s reviewed at board meetings,
SemoT management meetings, Audit
Commuttee, business contimuity
nanagement commuttee and executive
health and safety meetings There are also
other mechanisms in place to momtor nsks
such as internal audit reviews, cnocal and
senous nsk momnitor, fraud detection systems,
whistleblowing, stock counts and secunty
equipment suchas CCTV

Common Frequent

Occasional
2

Inaddition the Audit Commuttee satisfies
1self that key nsks are being montored by
seruor management and that the internal
audit plan is focused on hugh prionty areas.
The mnternal audit team updates the board
and the Audit Committee on the effectveniess
of nsk management withun each discrete
area audited throughout the year The Aucht
Commuittee will bnng any areas of concem
tothe attention of the board

Roles andresponsibilities

The effective management of nsk 15 rehant
upon allemployees successfully performing
therr specific roles and responsibiliies

and individual managers are expected

to famulianse themsetves with their
responsibilines, which are outhined below,
and to actaccordingly

Only switably qualified emiplovees are
responsible for each of the functions
within the Group to ensure that each area
aperates effectively Traming, performance
reviews and support mechamsmsaren
place to ensure performance standards

are maintatned.

Board of directors

The board of directors 1s responsible for
approving the nsk management policy
and related framework, setting and
communicating the Group's nisk appetite
and related policies, settng the tone and
culture for managing nisk, providing
strategic direction and guwidance on nsk
related deaision making ensunng that nsk
management processes are adopted across
the whole Group; obtaining assurance on
the effectiveness and comphance with the
nsk management framework, reporting
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on the management of nsk to stakeholders,
and sigmng off publtc disclosures related
tonsk and nsk management

Divisional directozs

and heads of function

Davisional directors and heads of function are
responsible for idennfying and evaluating
the nsks that relate to their areas and
activines, implementing appropnate controls
to rmanage nsks in ine with the Group's nsk
appetite, and taking ownership for nsks and
controls within their area of responstbility

Al employees

All employees are responsible for being
aware of the nsks that relate to their roles
and their actvities, continuously improving
thetr management of nsk, implementing
appropriate controls to manage nsks, and
reporting ineffecave and/or mefhcient
contrels wherever they sit

Riskmanagement

andinternal andit function

The Groups nsk management and mternal
audit function 1s made up of three discrete
areas risk managemnent, nternal audit and
profit protection Ttus combmation enables
the Group to maintain acohesive approach
to all aspects of nsk management whilst
allowing the internal audit teamn tobenefit
from thensights that other areas of the
function can provide

Risk management team

The nsk management team 15 responsible
for developing, implementing and reviewing
the nsk management framework and
process, promoting effective nsk
management at all levels of the Group;
encouraging an appropnate nsk culture
within the Group; haising with other
functions that advise on specialist areas,
coordinating responses where risks impact
more than one area, reporting, escalating
and communicating nsk manzagement 1ssues
to key stakeholders, and providing assurance
regarding nisk management within the
Group In addition, the team manages
corporate insurance and undertakes

Internal audit team

Inrelaton tonsk management, theinternal
audit team 15 responsible for providing
independent assessment of the design,
operation and effecaveness of the nsk
management framework and process,
management of key nsks, mcluding the
effectrveness of the controls reporting
of nsk and control status, rehability of
assurances provided by management
relating torisk management

Profit protechion

The profit protection team s responsibiliies
nclude activities such as. ensurnng

loss prevention strategles are developed
andimplemented, ant-fraud memtonng
across the Group and the managernent

of whistleblowing.

Whistleblowing

All Debenhams employees are required to
adhere to the code of business conduct and
the antt bribery and cormuption policy, with
senor ernployees required to confirm their
comphance in wnting. These policies set out
the ethical standards expected by the Group
and include details of how matters can be
raised m stnet confidence Twomain routes
are available to employees at all levels within
the Group to raise conNCerns over
malpractices The first "Employees
guidelines to problem sohving”, encourages
employees to talk to thewr hne manager, their
manager's line manager or, if still concerned,
tocall HR Connect (the central human
resources tearm) directly The second route1s
a confidental reporting line through which
employees can speak to the Group anti-fraud
teamn If anemployee feels that the matter 1s
50 seTtous that it cannot be discussed inany
of these ways, s/he can contact the Company
Secretary or the Director of Internal Audit
and Risk Management. The Group s policy
on whistleblowing and these methods of
raising issues of concern are published on
Debenhams mtranet and emphasised on
posters. The policy ts reviewed anrually by
the Audit Commuttee Allsenous matters
dentified are raised with the chairman of

business continuity planmng actvities the Audit Comimuttee
' Figure 3:Risk appetite matrix
| Rk
i Risk matmx Risk Treatment acceptance
i Risk score zohe Action resporse nmeframe owner
' Green - Treat or Head of
- lF2P3 ond (Limited)§gi*| Optional  tolerate 912months  department
Yellow Treator
Opticnal  tolerate 6-9months  Linedirector
Treat, transfer Executive
W (- - SIFTUficantyl Yos ortermunate 3-6months  dwrector
' Treat, transfer
orternmate O3months  Main board
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Business continuity planning

The business contimuty commttee
cormpnses the Chief Financal Officer,

Retail Director HR Director and Director
of Internal Audit and Risk Management.
Other executves are invited to attend
meetngs asand when appropnate.

The abjectives of this commuttee are to
ensure that potental threats to the Group
and the impact that those threats mght
cause have been dentified, that a frarmewark
tobuild organisational resiience to knowri
threats1s in place and that the framework

15 capable of providing an effective response
tosafeguard the Group

The commuttee uses a framework based
on iSO 223012012 (Business Continuity
Marnagement Systems) and undertakes
anumber of key activities. These are to
review and agree the business continuity
management policy and how 1t wiil be
managed and commumcated, the nsks
and threats facing the Group and priontise
them based on the evaluation of their
seventy and likelihood, the business
contimuty management strategy, the
business continuity management response
and its implementation, the process for
exersing, maintamng and reviewing
business conhnuty management
arrangements, and the mechanisms to
embed busmess continuity management
in the Groups culture

risks and uncertainties
The nsks detailed on pages 42 to45and n
the Notes to the Finanaal Statements are the
prnncipal nsks and uncertamntes that may
impact the Group's ability to achieve its
strategic and operational goals Both external
factors, suchas the economic environment,
and internal factors, such as the retention of
key management, are included in the nsks
and uncertainties that could substantialty
impact performance Relevant mingation
for each niskis also outhned. These nsks are
presented in no particular order

It should benoted that any system of nsk
management and mternal control 1s designed
tomanage rather than elminate the risk of
fanlure to achieve busimess objectives and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against materal misstaterment
orloss
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Risk review continued

Risk and impact

Consistent fall in customer
asa restilt of economic downtum,
inflation or deflation

Reduction in gross transaction value and a
declinein sales on discretionary purchases

Competitive pressuresin existing
markets influence customer behaviour

Flace pressure on our pricing strategy,
margins and profitability

Factors influencing the sustainability
of the supply chain
Place pressure on margin and will alsodivert

financiat and management resources from
more beneficial uses

Loss of profit or additional expenditure
caused by increased energy or fuel costs

Place pressure on margin and will alsodivert
financial and management resources from
more beneficial uses

Example of mitigation

The board conducts strategic business reviews which ensure that
management 15 focused on key prniorities and cost contro] These reviews
alsofocus on the four pillars of the Group's strategy to build aleading
mternational, multi-channel brand

Debenhams brand and product strategy gives custormers auntque,
differentiated and exclusive choice of brand, products and categones within
agood/better/best pricing architecture Anunderstandingof custormers
and their needs 1s developed by histening to thewr views, market intelligence
and reviewing key performance indicators which ensures that pncingis
compettive Debenhams 1s1nvesting addinonal resources incustomer
analytics and insight

Debenhams fosters excellent relationships with its suppliers that
arenutually benefimal Both parties work towards the objective of
optimsing sustamnable fulfilment and costs, which 1s measured regularly
by management through key petformance indicators Alongside thus,
Debenhams develops multple sourcing routes to ensure prang remains
compentive and that demand can be supplied.

Debenhams and 1ts supphers will continue to work hard todeliver the best
performance possible in a very challenging market.

A key objective of the energy commutiee1s to control energy usage,
inclucing the impact of the Carbon Reduchion Commutment scherme
An energy hedging policy s in place to provide a hugh degreeof

cost certainty

Hinder ability to adjust rapidly to changing
market conditions and umpact earmings
and cash flow

Hedging strategy may not adequately
protect operating results from the impact of

exchange rate fluctuahons or may limut any
benefit caused by favourable movements
in exchange rates

Affect avartable cash and hquidity and could
have matenal effect on the business, results
of operations and financial condition

Shortfall in the pension fund

Increases 1 pension related habilies could
mmpact profits and cash flow

Example of mitigation

Debenhams has a treasury policy in place which covers counterparty
Lirmts and hedging forinterest rates, foreign exchange and energy
There s also aninternal treasury function wiich s mandated by

the board and audited annually

Debenhams closely monitors all aspects of cash management to optimise
balance sheet metnes Effectiveness 1s measured regularty by management
through a senes of key performance indicators

Business enitical spreadsheets and databases used by the finance
department have been identified and appropnate control measures
are used in hine with Debenhams policy to ensure data integnty

I ce—
The trustees of the Group's pension schemes carefully monitor the pension

fund and alter the mvestment strategy as appropnate Anyshortfallin
funding ts brought to the attention of the beard.

Please refer to the Notes to the Financial Statements for other nisks 1n thus category

*Change inseventy andfor hikehhood of nsk during course of 2012
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Risk and impact

Inability to predict or fulfil customer
demands or preferences

Sales will be lower, market share reduced
and will be forced to rely on markdown
and prormotions to dispose of excess or
slow moving inventory May beinventory
shortfalls on popular merchandise

Departure of key personnel and failure
to attract ot retain talent

Signuficantly delay or prevent achievernent
of strategy

Faihire to achieve the new store roll
out or acquisition targets

Reduced growth ora decline in gross
transaction value and may be required to
wrte down the value of any stock acquured
for sale nan uncompleted store

Faihwe of ethical trading policy, poor
perceptionin themarket on corporate
responsibility matters or negative
impact tobrand due to product quality,
supply chain practices, healthand
safety etc.

Negative effect onreputation leading toloss

of stakeholder trust and confidence, matenal
adverse effect on the abihty to attract and

retamn thard party brands, suppliers, designers,

concessionarres and franchisees with
subsequent impact on performance and results

Adverse effect on mventory and gross
transaction vatue and will divert financial
and management resources from more
beneficial uses. Inthe case of terrorism,
customer confidence may be impacted

Additional expenditure or reputational
damage caused by changesin
legislation or abreach of regulations

Adverse effect oninventory and gross
transaction vatue and will divert financial
and management resources from more
beneficial uses

Cverview

Strategy review
Funance and nsk review
Sustamabality
Governance

Aluldlslslo

Accounts

Change*

Example of mitigation

Debenhams utihses market, trend and customer awareness research
tounderstand current demands and preferences It deliversthese
requurernents through multiple channels, including its store and non-store
sales channels Toachueve this these channels are constantly developed
and hugh operational standards maintained to differentiate from
competitors Stock levelsand the supply chain are monitored closely

1 order toensure product newness 18 maxirmised

This 15 adecreasing nsk as a number of strategic projects have been
undertaken to improve our understanding of cur customers

In order to attract and retain talent, both succession and personal
development plans are in place throughout the Group In addition,
targetled performance-related incentive schemes exist.

Debenharns undertakes research of key markets and demographics to
wdentify potential locations to dnve growth through new space A full
investment appraisal 1s conducted as part of the decision making process
and a speciahst team has responsibility for end-to-end management

of each project once the decision1s made.

Ethical sourcing, legislative change and corporate responsibility marters
are key areas of focus for the sustainability committee

Toensure that Debenharns has the most current information available,
it1s a member of relevant industry bodies that provide awareness of
changes to standards and legislaton

Debenharmsis an active member of Ethical Trading [mitiative (ETT)and
expects all suppliers to follow the ETIbase code and adhete to Debenharnis
own supplier code of conduct

Areltance on third party suppliers, the challenges of the current economic
envirorment and the complexity of new and existing legislation makes this
anongoing nsk which Debenharms and its supphers have tomanage

T WY R 3
Example of mitigation

Thebusiness continuity comrmittee 1s compnsed of senior executives. and
works toa framework based on the most recent international standard

The key objectives of this comimuttee are to enguire that potential threats to
the organusation and the impacts that those threats might cause have been
wdentified, that a framework that builds organisational resihence to known
threats 15 1n place and that the framework has the capability todeliver an
effective response to safeguard the Group

Insurance policies have been placed as appropnate to murimise the unpact
of specaficnsks

{ CTTTTIII
Debenhams has specialist accounting, taxation and legal and secretanat
teamns and 15 also a member of key industry bodies which provide
awareness of changes to standards and legislation

Forums exast tofocus on speaific areas of legislanon Specificbusiness
policies and procedures are in place to ensure roles and responsibilittes are
understood across the Group

*Change n seventy and/or likelihood of 11sk during course of 2012
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Risk review contimed

Rusk and impact

Theft of customer data orbreach
of payment card industry data
security standards

Negative effect on reputation leading
toloss of stakeholder trust and confidence
with subsequent impact on performance
and results and will divert finanaal

and management resources from

more benefinal uses

Personal injury or property damage
relating to a major Debenhams or
supplier location

Inqury or loss of ife to staff or customers
Negahve effect on reputation and will divert
fimancial and management resources from
more benefical uses

Disruptions or otheradverse events

affecting relationships with or the
performance of major suppliers,

Costs assoclated with the transfer of
the operations or the potential of extra
operational cost from a new provider

Changes i exclusivity arrangements with
designers or any decline 1n their populanty
could have a matenial adverse impact

Loss of a number of important concession
partmers may adversely affect GTV

Adverse events withun the supply chain
couldrestnct the avadability or sigmbicantly
ncrease the cost of goods

Creditimsurance cifficulties for a significant
number of suppliers could lead to a
detnimental vanation of terms or alternative
supphers used to sotirce some goods

Fraud, theft orindustrial espionage

Negative effect on reputation and will divert
financial and management resources frorm
more beneficial uses

Examptle of mitigation

The information secunty forum reviews projects and key actvities for
comphance to the relevant standards. Debenhams’ comphance to the
PCI standard 1s monitored by management and reported to the Audit
Commiuttee A number of security tools are employed to protect data,
ncluding encryption, intruder detection and data loss prevention

The executive health and safety committee reviews compliance in this area
and a number of participants are members of various relevant industry
bodies The committee recerves input from specialist teams which focus on
discrete aspects These include health and safety, building services, insurance
and buying and merchandising, To support compliance and to maintain
high operational standards health and safety awareness programmes are
1n place and each site has its own health and safety comimittee

In order to minirmse the impact of any third party relationstp or
performance 1ssues, Deberthams objectives are to maintaim excellent thrd
party relabonships by ensunng strategies are aligned, have appropriate,
unambiguous contracts m place, ensure third parties are fimancially robust,
and have contingency plans in place m the event of a failure (eg. conversion
of space to own bought for concessionarre fathure, multiple sourcing routes
for suppher failure)

This 15 an increasing risk due to the ongoing global economicsituation
and the impact thus could have on a sigruficant supplier or partner

Inorder to mitigate fraud across all channels in which Deberthams
operates, anumber of preventative measures are m place These mnclude
accounting policies and procedures, systems access restnctions,
expenditure authonsation levels whistleblowing and anti-bribery and
corrupt:on policies and a code of business conduct, all of which provide
employees with guidelnes on how to escalate anissue confidentally
Avarnety of monitonng mechanisms are used to dentify fraudulent
actevity including data rmning across pomt of sale and head office
functions Aspart of the organisation-wide risk assessment, individual
managers sign an anu-fraud, bribery and comuption declaration. Issues
idennfied are investigated and reported to the Audit Comrmittee

*Changein seventy and/or hkehhood of nsk dunng course of 2012
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Risk and impact

Failure to deliver abusiness

critical project

Divert financial and management tesources
from more beneficial uses and sigruficantly

damage abihity tormanage information
technology systems

Loss of market share, customerloyalty,
reduction in gross transaction value and a
dechne in sales on discretionary purchases

Risks assoclated with
leasehold properties

Sigruficant alterations inrental terms
could have a matenal adverse effect
on the business, as would failure to
secure desirable locations

Disputes over store madernisations may
iead to remnstaterment costs and termination
of leases may lead to dilapidation costs
being incurred

Failure to manage asbestos 1 specific
properties may lead to fines or other halhties
affecting Debenhams' reputation and the full
or partial closure of properties

Risks associated with systems
failure, external attack of systems
ordatainaccuracy

Divert fmancial and management resources
from maore beneficial uses and sigmficantly
damage ability tomanage information
technology systems

Inappropriate decisions could be made using
wrong or ambiguousinformation

lnabiiitytoeffecﬁvelylnvoke
the Business Continuity Plan

Unable to contimue operations stmoathly
intheevent of amaor incident

Drvert financial and management resources
from more benieficial uses

Overview

Strategy review 0
Finance and nsk review 32
Sustamnability 46
Governance 52
Accounts 75

Exampleof mitigation

A fullinvestment appratsal 1s conducted as part of the decision making
process and must be signed off by a board member before any project
1sundertaken

Aspart of project governance, a steering commuittee mormtors all key areas
involved in the delivery of the project, a project frameworkis used, selected
projects will be reviewed by intermal audit and post investment appraisals
are undertaken

Debenhams s undertaking a head office move during 2013 which
increases the risk rating compared tolast year

Debenhams utilises tarket, trend and custormer awareness research to
understand current demands and preferences This informaton s used to
dennfy speaific segments of the market totarget and to farm a proposal asa
marketing campagn. A full investrment appraisal 1s conducted and must be
signed off by ahoard member before any campaignis undertaken Campagn
effectiveness 1s monitored through external feedback and internal analysis

Debenhams has aspecialist property team which manages all aspects of
leasehold property, including cost renegonations, commurication of the
store modernisation programme, lease renewals and adherence to all legal
obligations under the lease

Debenhams 1s also a member of key industry bodies which provide
awareness of changes to standards and legislation

Debenhamns consults with industry experts to ensure that the asbestos
policy and asbestos register are fully up todate All locations where asbestos
hasbeendentified are clearty marked with signage and the condihon is
checked on a regular basis with action talen n the event of any
deterioration Any works undertaken in these areas are approved by both
the health and safety and building services teams pnor to any work permits
being issued with specialist cornpanies used as required

Debenharns 15 undertaking a head office move during 2013 which
inereases the nisk rating compared tolast year

Project gavernance, change control and implementation frameworks form
part of all project lifecycles and the IS management tearm 1s responsible for
ensuring that they are adhered to

Monitonng processes are m place acress a hurnber of key business
systems, alongside appropriately tramned speciahist teams and an intemnal
knowledge database

Disaster recovery site151n place and associated systems are regularly tested
to ensure that mvocaton would work effectively if required.

This nisk was previously included wathin other nisks in this section but has
now been detailed separatety given the sigmficance of the nsk should 1t occur

The Business Contiruty Committee 1s comprised of senior executives and
works to aframework based on the most recent international standard

The key objectives of this committee are to ensure that potential threats to
the organisation and the impacts that those threats might cause have been
1dentified that a framework that builds crganisational restence to known

threatssin place and that the framework has the capability for an effectve
response to safeguard the Group

Debenhamsis undertaling a Head Office move during 2013 which
mcreases the nsk rating compared to last year

Thus nsk was previously imcluded withun other nsks in thus section but has now
been displayed separately given the sigmficarice of the nsk should 1t occur

*Changen seventy and/or Likelihcod of nsk during course of 2012
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Sustainability review
Building the right future

Debenhams does not have a sustainability

department. For us, being environmentally

and socially responsible is embedded into

the business and into everyone’srole.

Our sustainability committee represents all

key areas of the business. Our experts in every
ey & hawotsustinabllty  aonect of retall have a deep understanding of

the direct benefits we can introduce by adopting

sustainabilty measures.

For more information go to

.debenhamsplc.com
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Debenhamshasbeen trading successfully
for over 200 years. Onir ability to endure
1sfounded on our long history of acting
responsibly towards our stakeholders -
shareholders, suppliers, customers,
employees and local communities -
aswellas the environment.

We donot have a dedicated sustainability
department and our sustainability
commuttee may be relatively new but

our practice of sustainabiity pninciples

1s well established The material issues

for our sustamnability worlang groups -
ethical sustainable sourcing, logishics

and distnbution, environment and people
- denive from Debenhams’ nsk register,
which has been a foundation of our business
strategy for many years Thediscipline

of annually updating the register has
created a culbure where managers across
the business routinely seek to identify
mitigate and eiminate risks

Commercal dnivers have always been
paramount All managers review practices
regularly to ensure their area 1s operating
as effectvely and efficiently as possible
Wherever possible, we seek economuically
beneficial measures with positive social
and environmental impacts

A sounding board

Debenhams' sustamabihity committee
bnngs together experts fromall aspects

of retail - from sourcing and supply through
tostores staff and sales. The committee
meets quarterly toupdate Debenhams
sustamabihity chair Martna Kingon
progress towards our commitments

The committee also acts as a forum for

new 1deas amongst members and between
the daffesent working groups, leading to
increased collaboration across the business.
The advantage of embedding sustainabihity
into everyone'srole 1s that all deasionscan
be practically implemented by the relevant
department heads

Planto endure

Duning 2012, the sustainability committee
has been very active on both a practical and
strategic level. Whalst working on targets set
for the year, we have alsobeen developing
alonger-term sustainabiity plan

We have now drawn up Debenhams “Plan

to Endure” (P2E7) theaimof which s to
contire to grow and be here for the duranon
by doing the nght things for our stakeholders

P2E entatls driving overall business
performance witile iving up to our
responsibilities as a retailer, employer
and business partner, asa steward of
the environment and our shareholders
mvestments and as a member of

the commumty

Inline with our business strategy to simphfy
asmuch as possible, P2E consclidates the
work of our four internal working groups -
ethical sustainable sourcing, logishics and
distribution, environment and people - 1nto
three main areas of focus which balance the
economic, environmental and social aspects
of sustamnability

Sustainable supply

Sustainable supply bnngs together the
commutments of ourethical sustainable
sourcing workang groupwith relevant
elements of logistics and dstribution -
namely, their objective to ensure our supply
chaimis rebust so that goods always flow

Environmental responsibility

Our pnionties for environmental
responsibility are chmate change, energy and
waste We aim to reduce our environmental
footpnnt through vanous nitiatives
undertaken by the logistics and distnibution
and environmental working groups

Connecting with people

QOur people working group 1s comnrrutted
toattracting, keeping and growing our
employees, todelivening the service,
standards and goods our customers expect
and to making a positive contnbuton o
local communities and national charties

Sustainability

Last year we committed tolaunchinga
dedicated website as our pnnapal method
of commuimication of sustainability 1ssues
Thas site 15 now live at sustainability
debenhamsplc com Followingon from
P2E, our sustainability webstte focuses

on the three areas of sustainable supply.,
environmental responsibility and
connecting with people

The aimn of the website 1s to update
stakeholders regularly with news about our
sustamnability progress as initiatives unfold
dunng the year The new site1s also home
to details of our sustatnability approach,
our pohicies and key performance data for
the year The following pages of this review
aimn to highlight the progress Debenhams
has made on sustamnabibity dunng 2012

Supply highlights
The market has contimied to be volatile in

terms of costs of cotton and other matenals,
labour and shupping, but we were successful
mensuring the continuied supply of goods
durng the year at the qualty and valueour
customers expect.

One mal that proved beneficial was working
directly with mulls supplying cotton, dentm
and chunos By consolidating orders across
mnternal divisions, we were able to negotiate
directly with mills to secure supphies at an
acceptable cost tous and our suppliers

Cverview 2
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Sustainability review continued

Our close relationship wath suppliers also
ensured a sustained flow of goods from
China that avoided unpredictable labour that
tracitionally follows the Chinese New Year
hohday We talked to our supplers to gauge
labour availability and understand how
many workers they expected to return.

By changing our cntical path for menswear,
wormnenswear and childrenswear we made
sure our goods were produced earher,
which gave us acompetitive advantage

In hight of ongomng mternational shipping
1ssues Debenhams' policy to take direct
responsibility for shipping was also of
strategic and commercial benefit Our gh
freight on board ('FOB") policy delivers
1mproved speed, cost and visibility further
up the supply chain We know instantly
where and when problems occur and,
where necessary, can switch supplies to
another country to ensure contimued supply

We used dufferent shipping lines to spread
nsk and improved logistics planning to
achieve increased loads and greater cost
effectiveness per container We also achieved
our lowest ever dermurrage charges

Environmental progress

Aswell as complying with all mandatory
requiremnents, we believe thereis a very
strong arxd valid business case for being
ervironmentally responsible. Reducing

our use of resources and our production

of waste will result 1n lower overheads and
improve our abthty to endure econormucally
Our 2012 environmental activities have
contributed towards this

We participate in the UK government s CRC
Energy Efficenicy Schemne and have been
reporting greenhouse gas (GHG") ermusstons
online to the Carbon Disclosure Project
{“CDF") far the past three years Our latest
CDP subrmssion - for the year ended August
2011 - shows that our overall ermussions grew
by 6%, while like-for-like emussions based on
floorspace reduced by 2%

The mcrease in overall ermissions 1s due to
our increased scope and improved methods
of reporting, including data for our operations
i Denmark as well as new calculation
methods We reduced our hike-for-hike
consumption of purchased energy through
acombination of monitonng and targeting
of store energy., staff awareness, training

and bonus incentives as well as techrical
support and energy efficiency inmvestments

We appomied New Star Environmental as
OLI new store waste contractor in March
2012 New Star understands our business
and the different operational needs of our
stores Onourbehalf, they manage contracts
with a number of regional suppliers to ensure
the most flexible and eco-effictent solutions

Ethical supply

Debenhams has been a member of the
Ethical Trading Imtiative ("ETI") since 2001
All our suppliers must sign our Code of
Conduct, based on the ETI Base Code
Every supplier and factory undergoes
regular social, ethical and techmcal audiing,
Our Code of Conduct lays out an number
of labour nghts pnnaples, forexample, that
no child labour s used, no discrimination
15 practised, correct wages are paid and
product safety standards are adhered to

SGS are our nominated global partner for
soclal, ethucal and techrical audits In 2012,
the monitonng programme covered 99%
of our total manufactunng base

We have also continued with random
unannounced visits, first mtiated in 2011
As well as monitoring cornpliance, we
engage furst hand with our manufacturers,
gving us first-hand insight into local social
and econcmic pressuures, how factores are
responding and what we need to doto work
collectively together for positive remediation.

- _— S
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Energy efficiency 1s akey component of our
continuung store modemisation programme
We are mvestinga total of £1 2milhon n
highting, heating, ventilation and air
condiboning conirol projects which wall
reduce energy consumpion while Improving
the store environment for customers

We know that energy use increases when
store modermusation 15 carned out overnight
and we will carefully review energy
consumpton for all stores that have been
modermsed this year, but it results

are very encouraging,

Forexample, tnals replacing lights with
energy efficent lamps n the Scarborough
and White Rose stores actueved like-forlike
savings of 37% and 31% respectively
Reduaing the voltage in Swindon reduced
energy consumption between 8 and 13%
and saved £14,000 Todate, such measures
have saved nearly £400.000 on energy |
acossthebusimessand weareontrackto |
seea full feturn on our 1nvestment within
four years
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pans's introdirction {0 governaiice

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the board, Tam pleased to
present the Corporate Governance Report for
the finanaial year ended 1 Septernber 2012

At Debenthamns we remain comrruited to

high standards of corporate governance

We believe this 1s central to the continued

strong performance of the Group in amanner

which is sustainable over the long-term

and to mamtaming the conhdence of our

shareholders Forus, good governance 1s
GOOd governance iS about ahoutresponsible and effective management

of the business n a way which demonstrates

responsible and effective honesty, transparency and accountability
management of the In this report we set out how the board and
business : 3 its committees are structured and what they

maway which have done dunng the year
demonstrates honesty,

Theboard has the ulimate responsibility
for the Group's performance and for
overseetng the management of nisk.

As such, it 1s nght that shareholders look

to Us to promote the long-term success of
Debenhams As Chatrman, tismy roleto
provide the leadership to enable the board
to dothis effectively Thus year T therefore
personally conducted the board evaluaton
process You can find more details on this
process and 1ts outcorne on page 59 of this
report and I corfirm that all of the directors
continue to perform effectively and to
demonstrate commutmery to their roles

There have been several changes to the
board comiposition gver the past year

Most notably, Michael Sharp was appointed
Chief Executive on 4 September 2011 Simon
Hernick took up the role of Chuef Financial
Officer on 10 January 2012 replacing Chns
Woodhouse Adam Crozier stepped down
from the beard on 1 September 2012

Subsequent to the year end, on 4 October
2012 weannounced the appomtment of
Peter Fitzgerald as a non-executive director
Peter has a wealth of experience in helping
retail businesses to reahise their online
ambinons with acknowledged indusiry-
leaders Amazon and Google. Growing our
mult-channel business s a crucial part of
Debenhams' strategy (which you canread

transparency and
accountability.

Management structure

Overview

Strategy review
Finance and nsk review
Sustainabibity
Governance

Accounts

1E) RS Fel 1

abouit on page 24} and, asone of the leading
experits mhis hield, we look forward to Peter’s
contribution asa member of the board ‘

In accordance wath the Listng Rules of the

UK Listing Authonty [ confirm, on behalf |
of the Company, that throughout the year |
ended 1 September 2012 and as at thedate ‘
of thus Annual Report, it was compliant |
with all the relevant provistons as set out in

the UK Corporate Governance Code 1ssued

by the Financal Reporting Council

As with last year, all the directors will subrmit
thernselves for re-election at the Anmual
General Meeting in January 2013 Peter
Fitzgerald will stand for electhion having been
appointed to the board on 4 October 2012
Biographies for the members of the board
can be found on pages 56 and 57 of this
Annual Report

Details of the Annual General Meeting itself
are enclosed with this report. The board and
1look forward to meeting with shareholders
inJanuary

Nigel Northridge

Chairman

Finanaal reporing and Design. buying merchandising, UK and intemauonal store
[ management, tax, treasury distnbubon sourang, supply operations and store
| legal, internal audit nvestor chain and external business development andnsight

relations, systems and logistics

Product marketing advertising. Pay & reward, learmung &

fa7

PR, visual and creative strategy developrment, pensions

and facilihes
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Directors No
Executive 2
Non-executive 6
Length of tenure

Directors ___~ Ne
Less than one year b
Onetothreeyears = 2
Three to six years _ 2z
More than six years 2z

The Nommanon Comrmuttee 15 responsible for
board recrutment and succession planning,
thereby ensunng that the nght slall sets are
present i the boardroom

The Remuneration Corruruttes 15 responsible
for deterrmning all elements of remumneration
for the executive directors and for reviewing
the approprateness and relevance of the
Group s remurieration policy

The Commuttee s pruniary responsibihties are
tomorutor the integnty of the Groups finannal
staternents toreview extemal and internal aucht
actviry and toreview and monitor the effecoveness
of nsk management and intemal controls

;L A
Although not a formal board comumtiee, the
sustanability cotrurittee was created by order
of the board 10 ensure the Group s activines
promote the interests of all its stakeholders,
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Nigel Northridge (56)

Term of office Chauman since April
2010 following appointment as a member
of the board 1 January 2010
Experience Nigel Northridge 1s currently
Chairman of Paddy Power plcand a
non-executive director of Inchcape ple

He also chairs the remuneration
committee at Inchcape ple. Previously

he was seror independent director of
Aggreko ple. chief executive of Gallaher
Group plc and a non-executive director

of Thomas Cook Group ple

Committee membership

Normination (chairman) Remuneration
Other directorships

Paddy Power plc

Inchcape ple

Michael Sharp (55)

Term of affice Chief Executive of
Debenhams plc since September 2011,
Deputy Chief Executive from November
2008 and Chief Operating Officer from
May 2006

Experience ['rom 1997 to 2004,
Michael Sharp was Trading Director of
Debenhams Limnited and from Jaruary
2004 to May 2006 he was its Chief
Operating Officer He previously worled
N vanous capacities within the Burton
Group, including as Managing Director
of Pninciples and Racing Greenand
Buying and Merchandising Director

of Topshop and Topman

Comnuttee membership

None

Other directorships

None

Simon Herrick ACA (49)

Term of office Chief Financial Officer
since January 2012 following
appointrnent as amember of the board

1 Novernber 2011

Expenence Simon Hermck was formerly
Group Finance Director and subsequently
Actmg Chief Executive Officer of
Northem Foods PLC Heisaformer
Fmnance Director of Kesa Electricals PLC
and PA Consulting. He has alsc held
seruor roles at Regus PLC, HaysPLC

and PepsiCo

Committee membership

None

Other directorships

None




Dennis Millard CA (SA)(63)
Term of office Senior Independent
Drrector since May 2010 followang
appointment as an independent
non-executive director in May 2006
Experience Denrus Millard 1s currently
Chairman of Halfords Group plc having
acted as mnterim Executive Chairman
from July to October 2012 Helisalso
Chairman of Srniths News plc and a
non-executive director of Prerruer Famell
plc His former appointments include
Group Finance Director of Cookson Group
plc and non-executive director of Exel plc,
Arc International and EAG Led and
Xchanging PLC
Committee membership
Remuneranion (chaimany),
Nomination, Audit

i Otherdirectorships
Halfords Group ple
Premier Famell plc
Smuths News plc

Mark Rolfe FCA{53)

Term of ofhce Independent non-
1 executive directer since October 2010
! Experience Mark Rolfe1s currently
a non-executive durector of Barratt
Developments plc, Hornby plc and
The Sage Group plc He 1s also Charman
of Lane, Clark & Peacock LLP Mr Rolfe
previously worked in vanous finance
and executive roles within Gallaher
Group plc including as Finance Director
for seven years until the company was
acquired 1 2007
Committee membership
Remuneration, Nomination,
Audit (chairrnan)
Other directorships
Barratt Developments plc
Hormby plc
The Sage Group plc

Martina King (51)

Term ofoffrce Independent non-
executive director since August 2009
Experience Former Managing Director
of Aurasma, Martina King has an
extensive career In media technology
Her previous roles include Managing
Director of Capital Radio and Managing
Director for Europe at Yahoo! where she
rebuilt the UK and Ireland business after
the dot com collapse and subsequently
led therebulding of the European
dmnsion Ms King 1s also a non-executive
director of Capita plc and Cineworld plc.
Commutteemembership
Remuneration, Nomination, Audt,
chair of sustainabihity commitiee

{a commuttee of the board)

Other dqirectorships

Capitaplc

Cineworld plc

Sophie Tumer Laing (52}

‘Termof office Independent non-
executive director since August 2009
Experience Sophue Turner Laing

15 currently Managing Director,
Entertainment, News and Broadcast
Operations at Briish Sky Broadcasting
Group plcand ontheboard of AETN

UK and NGC Network International LLC

In addition, she ts Vice President of BAFTA
. and a trustee of The Media Trustand

the Nat:onal Film and TV School

Her previous roles include Controller,
Programme Acquisition at the BBC and
Vice-President, Broadcasting at Flextech

(now Virgin Medha Television) Ms Tumer
Laing was also Co-founder and Managing

Director of HIT Entertainment.
Commuttee membership
Remuneratton, Nomunation, Audit
Otherdirectorshups

AETNUK

NGC Network Intemational LLC

Overview

Strategy Teview
Finance andnsk review
Sustanablity
Governance

Accounts 5

LS (S I

Peter Fitzgerald (42)

Termof office Independent non-
executive director since October 2012
Experience Peter Fitzgeraldis Country
Sales Durectar for Google UK/Exre having
worked for that business since 2007,
predominantly with retail business
clhients Previously he worked for Amazon
both 1n Europe and the USA.
Committee membership

Audit

Other directorships

None
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Corporaie governance report

Genderratios

Senlor management team No

Role of the board

Theboard of Debenhams is collectvely
responsible for the long-term success of

the Company and 1s ultimately accountable
for the Group's strategy, nsk management
and performance

Following the retirement of Adam Crozier
from the board on 1 September 2012, at the
end of the year the board of Debenhams plc
compnsed the non-executive Chatrman,
two executve durectors and four mdependent
non-executive directors Peter Fitzgerald
was subsequently appointed as an
mdependent non-executive director

on 4 October 2012 Dennis Millard

15 the Senior Independent Director

Debenhams has 25% female representation
on the board. Women account for one third
of the executive committee and 43%of the
SENIOT [anagement team

The board held five meetings dunng 2012
which were fully attended by all the board
members apart from the meeting cn 12 Apnl
2012 which Adam Crozier was unable to
attend due toa scheduleclash Inaddition to
the directors, board meetings were attended
by the Retail Director the HR Director,

the Group Trading Director, the Marketing
Director and the Company Secretary The
board also held its annual off-site meeting
in February to constder the Company’s
strategy No indmidual or small group of
mndmviduals dormunates the board s decision-

making process

Inaccordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, there 1s a formal schedule
of mattersreserved for the board s decision
which 1s monitored by the Company
Secretary and reviewed annually by the board.
Speaficmatters reserved for theboards
consideration include- the approval of the

1swilling to take in achueving the Company's
strategic and operational plans, approval of
the Company s Financial Staternents, major
capital expenditure; major acquusitions and
disposals, approval of changes {0 governance
and business policies, and a review of the
effectiveness of theboard and its commuttees.
The board delegates the operational decisions
for the implementation of these matters to
the Company’s management

Reports from the executive directors are
crrculated inadvance of each board meeting
and they focus on major operational matters
Reports are also produced by specialists on
general and Company business areas and
by other executives and external advisers
on key business areas Vanous sectorsof the
business present to the board on a rotating
basis Dunnglast year these overviews were
presented by menswear, womenswear,
home and childrenswear In 2012 other
matters considered by the board included
presentatons frorn marketing and PR,
mvestor relations, taxation, health and safety,
human resources, approval of the annual
budget and the five year plart, assessment
of the corporate nsk map and areview of
governance 1ssues affecing the Company

The Chaimrman and the Chief Executive
There are clear divisions of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chuef
Executive and these are set out in wrtng
and agreed by the board

The main responstbility of the Chairman s
the effective runrung of the board, ensunng
that the board as a whole plays a full and
oonstructive part in the development and
deterrminaton of the Company’s strategy and
its overall commercial objectives He ensures
that the board determines the nature and
extent of the significant risks the Company 15
willing to embrace in the implementation of

Male 65 ,
Cornpary’s business model and strategy
Female 50 s strategy The Chairman is responsible for
determinantion of the level of nsk the Company promotingthe highest standards of mtegnty,
Board activity throughout the year

b1

P —

Recerved an update on Recerved an overview of
Health and Safety within | menswear performance

the business

Approved full year results,

Recetved an overview of : l Recerved an overnigw

Receved an overview Annual Smategy Meeting ] ,
of womenswear ' ' home performance i | of chuldrenswear
' performance > L || performance
— Revnewof five yearplan |
Metwith shareholders ]
+ atthe Annual General , Approval of intenm
, Meeting

petformance evaluation
of the board and 1ts
| commuittees

Approved budget for i report and accountsand
financial year recommended the hnal
| dadend
Reviewed the annual

I Debated and approved
J the Corporate Risk Map

pay nterun dividend

results and resotved to '
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probity and corporate governance
throughout the Company The Chairman
also manages the relationship and
communication with the shareholders of
the Company In relation to any govemance
matters He takes thelead onissuesof
director development through inducuon
programimes and regular reviews. By
chainng the Norrenation Cormimittee he
regularly considers succession planmng
and the composition of the board

The Chairman sets theboard agenda
Together with the Company Secretary, he
ensures that the members of the board and
1ts cormrmittees recetve clear, comprehensive,
up-to-date and tmely information so that
there can be thorough consideration of the
1ssues proer to, and informed debate and
challenge, at board and committee meetings
Where directors have not been able to attend
meetings due to confhcts in their schedule,
they receive and read the papers for
consideration at that meeting, relaying any
commeiits to the Chairman in advance

of the meeting where possible

The Chief Executive 1s responisible for all
executve management matters affecting the
Company His prnincipal responsibility 1s the
day-to-day nunning of the Company business
and the actuevernent of the agreed strategic
objectives The management structure of

the Company under the Chief Executives
leadership1s shown on page 55

B

The Company Secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the
Charrman on all board governance matters
All directors have access to the services of the
Company Secretary and may take independent
professional advice at the Comnpany’s
expense tnconductng their dutes.

Indemmification of directors

Quahfying thurd party indemmity provisions
(as defined 1n section 234 of the Comparnes
Act 2006) are in force for the benefit of the
directors whoheld office dunng the year
The Cormpany also provides insurance cover
forits directors

Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Nomination Comrmittee annually
reviews and considers the interests and other
external appointments held by the members
oftheboard All conflicts declared were
approved at its meeting 1n September 2012
The directors have a continuing duty to
inform the board of any potential conflicts
immediately so that such confhcts may

be considered and if authonsed included
within the register of conflicts

The Senior Independent Director
Denms Millard provides a sounding board for
the Chairman and serves as an intermediary
for the other directors as necessary The
Semor Independent Dhrector also acts as

a hine of contact for shareholders 1f they

have concerns which are not appropriate

for discussion through the Chairman,

Chief Executive or Chief Finanaal Officer

| Length ofservicefor each non-executive director

Currentlengthof

i Service asdnon
Date of last re-elecion by executive director

| Name Date of appointment shareholders ai yearend
| Nigel Northndge 1January 2010 10 January 2012 2 years 8 months
| Peter Fitzgerald 40ctober 2012 nfa n/a
 MartimaKing 1 August 2009 10 January 2012 3years I month
! Denmus Millard 9 May 2006 10 January 2012 6 years 4 months
i Mark Rolfe 10ctober 2010 10 January 2012 1year 1l months
| Sophie Tumer Laing 1 August 2009 10 Janwary 2012 3years 1month

Chairman’sresponsibilities Chief Executive’s responsibilities

+ Leading the board, ensunng the

|  directors recetve accurate and umely
information to enable debate and hugh
quality decision making

+ Promoting high standards
of corperate governance

« Accountable to shareholders for the
effectiveness of the board

« Ensuring, as Chairman of the
Nomnaton Commuttee, that there are
board succession plans in place in order
toretamn and build an effective and
complementary board

= Developing business strategies
and comimercial chjectives for
board approval

+ Successfully implementing the
business strategy

» Regularly updating the board on
progress against approved plans

+ Ensunng that the Executive Commuttee
comphes with all business policies,
delegated authorities and regulations in
achieving the objectives of the business

Overview

Strategy review

2

10

Finance and nsk review 32
46

Sustainatality
Governance

Accounts 75

Non-executive directors
Allthenon-executive directors are considered
by the board to be independent and free
from any relahonship or circurmstances that
could affect therr Independent judgement
They have awide range of skillsand
experience and provide constuctive
challenge in the boardroom

The table below details the length of service
for each non-executive director

The letters of appointmeni for the non-
executive directors set out the ime
commutment expected to be necessary for
the performance of their duties Routinely,
the expected number of days requured for
each non-executive director 1s ten days.

Debenhams plc recogrnises that the
non-executive directors have other business
interests cutside of the Company and that
other directorships bnng benefits 1o the
board All existing directorships are detalled
within the director biographies on pages 56
and 57 Non-executive directors are required
toobtain the approval of the Chairman
before accepting any further appointments

Performance evaluation

[n 2011 the performance evaluation was
facirtated by Lintstock Ltd This yearan
evaluation of the performance of theboard,
1ts cornmuitees, the mdvidual directors and
the Chairman was conducted internally This
was led by the Chairman who interviewed ail
board members individually and discussed
the results collectively with the board. The
conclusion was that the board 1s operating
effectively with plenty of energy around the
table The overviews presented to the board
by the vanous parts of the busmess are
proving extremely valuable The board
agreed to focus on further rationakisation

of matenals it receves Inaddiion, the
non-executive directors evaluated the
Chairmans performarnce at a meeting
chaired by the Senior Independent Director
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Board committees

Theboard cormmuttees are the Audit,
Remuneration and Nornination Comumittees.
The terms of reference (which are reviewed
anmually) of each committee can be found

at www debenhamsplc com. The members
and the role of each commuttee are disclosed
on pages 56and 57 of this report

In 2011 the board formed the sustainability
commuttee, a commuttee of the board
whose atm 15 toembed the corporate soaal
responsibility of the busmness withinits
operations The sustainability committee

15 chaired by Martinia King and its members
are employees whose roles within the
business fall wathin four key work streams,
namely sustainable sourcing, environmert,
logistics & distribution and people Further
information on the role operation and
achievernents of that cornrmittee can be
found on pages 48 to 51 and on our dechicated
website sustamability debenhamsplc.com.

Share capital and control

Information which the directors are required
to provide pursuant to section 992 of the
Comparues Act 2006 canbe found on pages
63 and 64 of the Directors Report.

Auditor

In order to ensure that an appropnate
relationship 1s maintamed with the external
auditors, a policy on audior independence
has been established and 1s regularly
reviewed This covers matters such as that
auditors and their staff should have no farmly,
finanaal employment, investment or
business relationshup with the Company,
the employment by the Company of former
audit employees, the rotaton of audit
partners and the provision of non-audit
services The Aucht Commuttee makes
recommendations to the fullboard 1n respect
of re-appomtment annually of the auditors
and the board then ensures that this 1s
included on the notice for the Annual
General Meeting Asregards thensk of the
external auditors’ withdrawal from the
market, the Company considers that there
are sufficient other auditors in the rarket
place should this situation everartse

The objective of the Audit Commuttee’s policy
1n relation to the proviston of non-audit
services by the auditors 15 to ensure that the
provision of such services does notimpair the
external auditors' independence or objectvity
Anindependent report 1s produced biy the
Debenharns finanice tearn each quarter dunng
the year detalling all non-audit work, its cost,
when 1t was camed out and who instructed
it. This information 1s reported to the Audit
Committee at each meeting,

The Company’s pohcy dentifles three
categories of accounting services The first
category 1s audit-related services which the
auditors are permutted to provide. The second
category 1s prohibited services which the
auditors are not perrmitted to provide
Prohibited services are those which mught
result in the external auditors auditing their
own work or making management decistons
for the Company and those where some
mutuahty of interest s created or where the
extemal auditors are put in the role of
advocate for the Company The third category
18 “potential” services which the auditors may,
I certain circumstances, provide subject to
comphance with the iIndependence policy
These services mclude tax advisory services
or services where the auditors are acting as
the Comparty’s reporting accountant.

£01 mullien was patd by the Commpany to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for non-audst
services inrespect of advisory services

The audit fees paid by the pension schemes
were £38000

Relations with shareholders

The board 1sresponsible for ensunng that the
Company mantains a sabsfactory dialogue
with sharehelders. The Charman and the
Semor Independent Director are always
available to major shareholders. Formal
trading updates are given to the market

on six occastons dunng the year Fellowing
each of these announcements, conference
calls are held with shareholders and analysts
and after the full year and intenm results
apresentation 1s made to the shareholders
and analysts Analysts or brokers briefings
are cuculated to the board

Aprogramme of meetings and conference
calls 1s organised at appropriate times dunng
the year at which the Chuef Executive,

Chef Financial Ofhcer and Drrector of
Investor Relations discuss Company
performance and respond to any 1ssues
raised by shareholders Dunng 2012 such
meetngs were held in the UK, France,
Germany, Spain, Denmark, Sweden,
Switzerland and the USA.

Asenes of eventsis being held to provide
shareholders with a greater understanding
of each of the four pillars of the strategy

Forrmal feedback from shareholders 1s sought
through an independentty conducted
shareholder percepticn study which this
year took place in February 2012 The results
of this study were presented to the board




Querview 2

Strategy review 10
Finance and nsk review 32
Sustainabiliry 45
Governance 52
Acoounts 75

Nomination Committes
Dear shareholder

Martina King, Dennis Millard, Mark Rolfe, Sophie Turmer Laing and I form your
Company’s Nomunation Committee. Other indmwviduals including the Chief
Executive, the HR Director and external advisors may be mnvited toattend for
all or part of any meeting, as and when appropriate. The Company Secretary also
attends meetings in his capacity as Secretary of the Committee The Comnmuttee
met twice formally during the year.

Thus year we have seen several changes to our board composition Michael Sharp took over
leadershipof the business in September 2011, Simon Herrick assumed the posttion of Chief
Fmanaal Officer in January this year following the departure of Chns Woodhouse our
former Finance Director, and Adam Crozier stepped down from the board on 1 September
2012 having served Just over sIX years as an ndependent non-executive director

The recruttment process for the appointrent of Simon Hermnck was facilitated by external
search consultants Egon Zehnder They idennhed possible candrdates for the positton and
provided a shorthst for consideration by the Nomination Commuttee These candidates
met with the maonty of the board members before a recommendation was made by the
Committee Both in its recruitment and succession planming processes, the Commuttee
takes into account the board si1ze, structure and composition having regard to the balance
of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of psychological type, background and
gender so as to ensure that the board 15 not composed of solely like-minded mdividuals

The Commmuttee’s key focus this year has therefore been on succession planning to ensure
that the nght slall sets are present in the boardroom to support the Chief Executive's
strategic plan

Aslast year, in ine with the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Nomination Comimttee
1srecommending that all the directors of the Company stand for re-election at the next
Annual General Meeting.

Chairman, Nomination Commuttee

Numberof meetings held
Dnrectors Posttion and attended during the year
Nigel Northndge
(Commuttee chairman) Chairmman 202
Adam Crozier (resigned
1Septermnber 2012) Independent non-executive director 22
Martina King Independent non-executive director 212
Denmis Millard Sermor ndependent director 2/2
Mark Rolfe Independent non-executive director 22
SophieTumerLamg  Independent non-executive director 2/2

NﬁmimtionComminee:
Mainactivities during the year

» Conducted a review of the board size
and composition arkl the composition
of the committees of the board following
the new executive director appointment
and theTesignation of an existing
non-executive director

» Reviewed the ime commitment and
lengthofservice of the Chairman and
eachnon-executive director

« Monitored directors' conflicts of interest

» Members participated in anannual
board evaluation

+ Reviewed its terms of reference
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Corporate governance report continred

Audit Commmee-
_ M
. Reviewed all Financial Staterments
., Teleasedby the Company- '
-« Monitored the effectiveness of the
- systemof internal controls and risk
management

« Created a business contimaity
- comimittes

s Approved theintemal auditplan - .

- Approved the external auditors’
plenand fees

- Reviewed its terms of reference
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Audit Committee
Dear shareholder

As the new chairman of the Audit Committee, | am jomned by Martina King,
Denmis Millard and Sophie Turner Laing to form your Company’s Audit Committee,

Themeetings of the Audit Comrmittee are also attended by the Chairman, the Chief
Finanaal Officer, the Director of Internal Audit and Risk Management and the externat
auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP The Treasurer and the Head of Tax makean
annual presentation to the Commttee The Company Secretary attends all meetngs in
his capacity as Secretary of the Commutiee but aiso reports on any matenal itiganon and
corporate governance 1ssues The business experience of the members of the Committee
15 enhanced by the considerable financial and accountmg expenence of Denmis Millard
and by my own fimancaal and accounting background,

The Comimuttee met three tumes during the year and alsomet with the Company s
auditors and the Director of Internal Audit and Risk Management privately without any
managermient being present After each meeting, the chairman reports to the board on
the matters discussed, on recommendations and on actions to be taker.

Ourresponsibilities

The Audit Committee's pnmary responsibilibies are to monitor the integnty of Financial
Staterments (including any related information presented with the Financial Statermnents)
and amy formal announcements relating to the Company s financal performance,
toreview any changes in accounting principles and consider the appropriateness of
accounting policies adopted by the Company to review the Groups intermal and external
audit activity and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the nsk management and
internal control systerns within the business

External auditors’ appointment

The Commuttee has primary responsibility for malang a recommendation to shareholders
on the appointment, re-appointment and rermoval of the external auditors by anmually
assessing the expertise, resources and independence of the external auditors and the
effectrveness of the audit process PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has served as auditors

of the Company since flotation in May 2006 with therr performance being reviewed
anmually Having considered the external auditors’ performance, resources, independence
and ghjectivity, the Cornmuttee has recornmended to the board the re-election of the
auditors for 2013

The external auditors are required to rotate the audit engagement partner every
five years The current audit partner commernced his engagement in August 2009
The external auditor independence policy sets out the guidelines for engaging
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to provide non-audit services and areport 1s provided
to each Commuttee meeting detailing the services and fees for all non-audit services
for consideration by the Committee

Mark Rolfe
Chairman, Audit Comimittee

Number of meetings held
Directors Position and attended dunng the year
Mark Rolfe (appointed Commuttee Independent non- 33
Chairman on 1 September 2012} executive director
Adam Crozier Independent non- 2/3
(resigned 1 Septemnber 2012) executive director
Peter Fitzgerald Independent non- 0f0
executive director
MartinaKing Independent non- 313 |
executive director |
Dennis Millard {resigned as Commuttee Senior independent 33
Chairman on 1 September 2012} director
Sophie Turner Laing Independent non- 33
executive director




Directors’ report

Principal activities

Debenhams is aleading mternational,
multi-channel brand whuch traded from
239 stores across 28 countries at theend

of 2012 Of these, Debenhamsowns

171 stores with a combined trading space of
¢12 5milhion sq ft Thebrand s also available
online 1n 67 countries Customers can also
shop through mobnle devices, catalogues
and by telephone Debenhams givesits
custormers aumague differentiated and
exclusive mix of own brands, internationai
brands and congessions.

A detailed review of the business of the
Group dunng the financial year ended
1Septemnber 2012 mcluding an analysis of
the position of the Group at the end of the
financal year, the trends and factors hkely to
affect the future development, performance
and position of the business and a descnption
of the pnincipal nsks and uncertainties the
Group faces constitutes the business review
and are therefore incorporated into this
report by reference Informaton about
environmental matters, employees and
soc1al and community 1ssues appear on
pages 48 to 51 and on the Company’s
dedicated sustainability website
sustamability debenhamsplc.com

Any hability 1s restricted to the extent
prescribed by the Compames Act 2006

Events sincethe yearend
Since the year end Debenhams has

« Appomted Peter Fitzgerald as an
independent non-executive director

« Opened a store in Chesterfield

+ Opened international franchise stores
1n Indonesia, Georgia and Abu Dhab

Interests in voting rights

Qverview

Stategy review

Finance and sk review

Sustainabulity

Governance

SAlpldllso

Arcounts

Profit and dividends

The proft after tax for the financial year
ending 1 September 2012 was £125 3million
(2011 £1172 mullion) The directors
recornmend the paymment of a final dividend
of 2 3 pence per ordinary share, to be paid on
11 January 2013 to members on the register
at the close of business on 7 Decernber 2012
Thus, together with the intenm dividend of
10 pernce per share paid 1in July, gives a full
year dividend of 3 3 penice per share

Share buy-back programme

The Company announced on 20 October
2011 that 1t intended to return funds to
shareholders through a programme of share
repurchases once leverage neared 10 nmes
EBITDA At the January 2012 Anmual General
Meeting shareholders authonsed the
Company to purchase up to 128 680,629
ordinary shares in the market. On 24 April
2012 a share repurchase programime
cornmenced and in the penod 24 Apnl 2012
to7 August 2012, 236 rmihon ordinary shares
of 00lpeach were purchasad at acost of
£201mulhon Altshares purchased by the
Company are currently held as treasury
shares. Approval will be scught from
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting torenew the annual
authonty to purchase its own shares

It1s the board's intention to purchase up to
£40 milhion of sharesin the next 12 months

Share capital and control

Theissued share capital of the Company and
the number of shares held in treasury as at
1Septemnber 2012 are shown in note 27 to the
Financal Statements on page 112 Inaddition
to the shares trading on the London Stock
Exchange, the Company operates a Level |

In accordance with Listing Rule 98 &(2), the following mvestor interests have been disclosed
to the Company pursuant to the Disclosure and Transparency Rules

| Asat1September2012
% of issued share capital
(excluding shares held as
i Shareholder Number of shares treasury shares)
| Schrodersple 176,142.956 139
I Bestinver Gestion, S.A SGIIC 114142577 90
Milestone Resources Group Ltd 85183155 71
Morton Holdings, Inc 52,196,706 41
Legal & General Group plc 42075474 33

The following notifications have been received during the period

1September 2012 to 19 October 2012:
. % of issued share capital
| (excluding shares held as
| Dateofnptification  Shareholder Number of shares treasury shares)
| 24 Septernber 2012 DeltaLloyd NV 38221087 303
9Q0ctober 2012 Bestnver Gestion 61554348 487
S.A,SGIIC
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ADR programme Each ADS represents four
ordmary shares of O Olpeach

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
exercise voting nghts, to receive dividends
when declared totecerve all shareholder
commuricationsand to attend and speak

at general meetings of the Company All

the shares rank par1 passu These nghts and
the obligations attaching to the Company s
ordinary shares, in addition to those
conferred on their holders by law, are set out
n the Company’s Articles of Association,

a copy of which can be obtained by wnting
tothe Company Secretary The Debenhams
Retail Employee Trust 2004 (the “Trust”)
holds 1,068,301 ordinary shares in the
Company {0 08%} Ofthose shares, 344,765
shares relate to invested shares held by the
Trust on behalf of the participants of the
Deferred Bors Matching Plan who mstruct
voting nghtsin relation to those shares Aty
voting or other similar decisions relating to
the balance of shares held by the Trust1s
talken by the trustees, whomay take account
of any recommendations of the Company

There areno Significant agreements to whuch
the Company is a party which take effect alter
or terrminate n the event of change of control
of the Company except that the suppher
agreements with certain major cosmetic
suppliers contain termination provisions
onchange of control and the multicurrency
crecht facihty dated 16 July 2010 (as amended
by supplemental agreement dated 13 July
201D contains mandatory prepayment.
There areno agreements providing for
compensation for directors or employees

on change of control Details concerning the
impact onshare options and share awards
held by directors or employeesin the event
of achange of control are set out on page 71
of the remuneration report

Essential contracts

Debenhams has contractual arrangements
with many orgamisations, but no cne contract
15 sommatenal as to be essential toour
business, with the exception of the
warehouse operators

Board of directors

Themembership of the board and
brographical details of the directors are given
onpages 5610 57 The rules goverming the
appeintment and replacement of the board
members are set out 1n the Company’s
Articles of Association

Directors’ indemnities

Inaddithion to the mdemnuty provisions in
therr Artacles of Association, the Company
and other Group companies have entered
intoa direct ndemmnity agreement with
each of the directors and certain other
officers or semor employees of the Group

The Compary also maintains directors’and
offtcers habulity insurance winch gives
appropnatecover for any legal action brought
against 1ts directars and officers

Directors' interests

Thebeneficial and non-beneficial mterests
of the directors and their connected persons
inthe shares of the Company are shownon
page 73 of the remuneration report Their
nterests moptions and awards over shares
inthe Company are shown on page 74 of
the same report

Nocdirectorhad, durmgor at theend
of the year any matenalinterest m any
contract of sigmficance mrelation to
the Group'sbusiness

Employees

Business information and key messages are
cascaded to all employees throughout the
business via personal briefings and email
Brefings are alsoheld by the Chief Executive
and members of the board toupdate
employees on the performarice of the
Company and the Company's strategy

The Employee Consultanon Forum, which
1s attended by elected representatives from
stores and head office 1s anothermedium

by which employees recerve information

on the Company as wel! as giving empicyees
the opportunity to be consulted on certain
activities of the busimness

Debenhams 1s commutted toensunng that
employees orapplicants for employment

are treated equally regardless of gender, race,
ethic or national ongn, religious, political

or philosophical beliefs, disabality, marital
oravll partnership status, sexual orzentation,
gender reassignment and age Through our
equal opportunities policy we aum tocreate
an environment that offers all employees
the chance tousetherr skills and talent

As part of the Company s policy onequality
of opportunity, decisions on recrutment,
training, promotion, pay, terms and
conditioris and leavers are based solely on
objective, job-related cntena and personal
competence and petformance The
Company seeks wherever possible to make
reasonable adjustments to ensure that an
employee who becornes disabled durning the
course of his orher employment is able to
continue workmng effectively This includes
providingequipment or altering working
arrangements, providing additional traiming
reallocatingon a temporary or permanent
basis some of the employee’s duties to other
membersof staff. transfernng the employee
toaswitable akernative role; and adjusting
working times Any such adjustment will be
morutored and reviewed on aregular basis
toensure it confinues to be effective



Payment of suppliers

It 1s the Cornpany’s policy to pay suppliers
in accordance with the agreed payment
terms provided that the invoice 1s propetly
presented and not subject todispute

The ratio expressed mdays, between the
amounts owed by the Company to trade
credutors at the end of the year and the
amounts invoiced by suppliers in the
financial year ended 1 September 2012 was
ml days (2011 m:ldays) Theratic expressed
in days between the amounts owed by the
Group to trade crecitors and the amount
invoiced by suppliers in the financial year
ended 1 September 2012 was 59 days (2011
60 days)

Financialinstruments

Debenhams doesnot enter mto financal
instruments for speculative trade Details
of financial nstrumenis entered into for
underlying nsks are set out tn note 22 on
page 105

Political donations

There were nodisclosable expenses made
dunng the inanaal year which fall within
the definiion of a pohtical donanon
under the Polical Parties Elections and
Referendums Act 2000 Itis the Group s
policy not to make donations to politcal
organisationsor mdependent election
candidates or incur poliical expenditure

Charitable giving

Dunng the year the Group made chantable
donations totalling £0 75 muillion (2011

£11 million} The Company supports vanous
chanties Key donations made dunng the
year were £178 144 to the NSPCC, £112,684
to the Breast Cancer Campaign, £77071to
the Estée Lauder MAC Aids campaign and
£53,842 to the Marnne Conservation Soclety
Following the incorporation of the
Debernthams Foundation in March 2012
future funds raised for chanty will go
through the foundation,

Going concern

After making enquines the directors
consider that the Group has adequate
resources to continue tn operation for the
foreseeable future. For this reason and in
accondance with the Gomg Concernand
Liquudity Risk Giudance for Directors of UK
Compames 2009, published by the FRC1n

October 2009, the directors have adopted the

going concern basis in prepanng the
Finanaal Staternents

Corporate Governance Statement

In accordance with the Finangial Services
Authonty’s Dhsclosure and Transparency
Rule ("DTR") 721, the disclosures required
byDTR722RtDTR727and DTR7210
are within the Chairmans introduction

to governance on page 55, the Corporate
governance report on pages 58 to 62 and nsk
review on pages 39 to 45 and are therefore
mcorporated into this report by reference

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each of the directors of the Company at
the ttme when the Directors’ Report was
approved confumns that

ayso far as the director 18 aware, there 18 ne
information needed by the Company’s
auditors In connection with preparing their
report of which the Company’s auditors
are unaware

b) sfhe has taken all the steps that sthe ought
to have taken as a director in order to make
herself or umself aware of any informanon
needed by the Company’s auditors in
connection with preparing the report and
to establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of that information

Aunditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicated
therr willingness to contimue moffice and a
resolutron dealing wath thelr re-appointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcomuing Annual General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of Debenhams
plc will be held at No 11 Cavendish Square,
London W1G QAN on Tuesday 8 January
2013 at 200pm The Notice1s given, together
with explanatory notes, in the booldet which
accompanies this report

By order of the hoard

FPaul Eardley, Company Secretary
25 October 2012

Overview 2
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Finance and nsk review 32
Sustainability 46
Governance 52
ACCOUDLS 75
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Remuneration report

Dear shareholder

As the new chairman of the Remuneration Committee, I am pleased to present
our remuneration report for 2012, for which we wall be seeking your approval at
our Annual General Meeting in January 2013

Asouthned earlier m this Annual Report, performance this year has been strong We

have made excellent progress against otr strategic goals, improving the store format and
customer expenence, expanding product selection, increasing market share in our major
categones, tnproving our multi-channel offering and expanding the brand internationally
We have grown gross transaction value, like-for-like sales profit before tax and earnings
persharedunng the year and the share price has increased from 52p to 96 5p, adding

¢ £550 mullion of value for shareholders

The Comrmuttee beheves that the remuneration for executives for the year appropnately
+ Reviewed ; o k reflects this performance agamst the dernanding targets we set for them Annual bonus
i?;tlggy §6$%}T§ eeutiveremuneration payments of 40% of base salary willbe made as aresult of profit before tax (PBT)
o . . performance of £158 3 mulion {4 2% growth on last year, 52 weeks to 1 September 2012
» Approved the exacutive directors’ vs 52 weeks to 27 August 2011} and long-term incentive awards granted in 2009 will vest
bon&seSff(_)ﬁOiE : for the first time since the Company listed in 2006 with PSP awards vesting just above
» Approved the executive directors' threshold and ESOP awards vestimg i full reflecting progress towards long-term goals

- bonusplanfor2013 - Dunng the year, the Comrmittee reviewed the performance measures for the anmual
.. Approvec’t shareawards and vesting ' bonus planand determined that the 2013 annual bonus plan will be based on 80% PBT
Cofawards ) petformance and 20% on alike-for-hike sales and gross margin percentage performance
o matnx (previously 100% based on PBT) The Comrmuttee considers that these measures
i+ Reviewed reivinegation benchmatkis are consistent with the four pillars of our strategy and therefore most appropnate to create
. TN i astrong abgnment with shareholder vahue creatnon and effecavely mcentvise executives to
. Reviewedits terms ofteference grow profit and hike-for-hke sales on an annual basis whilst motvating focus on gross margin.

After careful consideration and personal consultation with a number of major
shareholders and investor representatives the Comumittee decided that for 2013 only, the
Chief Executive wall be tnade a PSP award of 200% of base salary The Committee deemed
1t appropnate to make a shghtly larger award to the Chief Executive this year in light of

the strong bustess performance smce his appointment, mcluding sigmficant share

price appreciation, his exceptional personal performance and to enhance his longer term
alignment with our four pillared strategy The Comrruttee beleves this award will have

a very posibive retention and motivational impact on the Chief Executive For 2014,
1t1s1ntended that the award level will revert to the normal policy

This year we have seen sigmificant focus on improving the transparency of reporting on
executive pay Although based on the current imeline Debenhams will not be formally
required to provide disclosure in ine with the legislation until the year ending August
2014, we have provided some additional disclosures in order to help shareholders better
understand our rermuneration policy and practice Our directors remuneration report
recerved a strong level of support 1n January 2012 with 98% of shareholders voting in
favour of the resclution

Dennis Millard
Chairman, Remuneration Cornmuttee

- 1

Number of meetings held
Director Position and attended durning the year
Denyrus Millard (appointed Comrmuttee  Senucr independent 33
Chairman 1 Septernber 2012} director
Adam Crozer (resigned as Comrmuttee  Independent non- 33
Chairman on 1 September 2012) executive director
MartinaKing Independent non- 33
executive director
Nigel Northndge Independent non- 3/3
executive Chaurmman
Mark Rolfe Independent non- 33
executive chrector
Sophie Turmer Laing Independent non- 33
executive director
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This remuneration report for the yearended 1 September 2012 complies wath the requirements of the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authonty,
Schedule 8 of the Large and Mediim-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the prowvisions of the 2010 -
UK Corporate Governance Code

Part1: Unaudited information

The Remuneration Comntittee

Comrmuttee members

The Comrmttee chairmari, Denms Millard (chairman from 1 September 2012) 15 joined by Nigel Northridge Martina King, Mark Rolfe and Sophie
Tumer Laing to form the Remuneration Commuttee Details of each of the member s background and expenence 1s provided within their
biography on pages 56 to 57

Role of the Commuttee

The full terms of reference for the Cormmuttee, which are reviewed annually, are available on the Company’s website at wwwdebenhamsplc.com
In summary, the Commuttee has responsitility for determining all elernents of the rermineration of the executive directors and the Company
Secretary together with the provisions of their service agreements, reviewing the bonus structure for senior managers below board level,
reviewing the appropriateness and relevance of the Company’s remuneration policy {taking mnio account the remuneration arrangements and
levels across the Company) and adminmistening all aspects of any share incentives in operation for semor marnagernent The remuneration of the
non-executive directors 15 a matter for the Company Chairman and the executive members of the board

Adwvisors to the Commuttee

In perforrmung its duties, the Commuttee has received advice from Deloitte LLP {'Deloitte™} who acted as external advisors to the Cornmittee
throughout the financial year, providing mdependent advice on directors remuneration and share incentives Deloitte 1s one of the founding
members of the Remuneration Consulting Group { RCG"}and comphes with the voluntary code of conduct i respect of the provision of
remuneration consulting services Delaitte also provides industry and comparative employee remuneration data to Debertharns' managerment.
Deloitte also provided unrelated advisory services in respect of corporate and employment taxes duning the year The Chief Executive Chief
Fmanctal Officer and HR Director have attended Commmuttee meetings and provided advice to the Commmttee during the year Theyarenotin
attendance when matters relating to their own compensation or contracts are discussed

Remuneration policy

Tt1s the Company's rernuneration pohcy to provide packages that will attract, motivate and retain lugh calibre executives in a competitive retail
market and where possible todo this in the most cost effective way for thebusiness Rermuneration structures are designed to support the
busimess strategy with the majonty of the remuneration package being linked o the delivery of performance, paid in a combination of cash and
shares Short-term and long-termn performance measures have been selected tobe aligned with the delivery of the four pillared busimess strategy
through an annual focus on increasing sales volume whiletmproving margin and profitability and a long-term focus on growing eamings which
ensure that returns to shareholders remain strong.

When determining remuneration policy and arrangemenits for executive directors, the Rermuneration Committee considers pay and
employment conditions elsewhere n the Group to ensure that pay structures from executive director to store manager are appropnately ahgned
and that levels of rermuneration remain appropriate n this context The Rermuneration Commuttee alse considers the pay and practices of
compares of a simuilar size and complexity and other comparnies i the retail sector through the review of external survey data and
benchmarlang provided by Delaitte 1n order toinform its consideration of the remuneration of Company executives

In addition to basic salary and pens:ion provision {or equivalent cash contribution), the Company seeks to incentivise it executives and senior
managers through an anmeal bonus scherme and through its share incentives

Remunetation policy for 2013

The Remuneration Commuttee considered the remuneration pohcy dunng the year and determined that the majonty of elements would remain
the same as for 2012 However, the Committee did review and make changes to the annual bonus performance targets and the PSP opportumity
for the Chief Executive for 2013 Further details are provided later n this report.
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Remiuneration report contimzed

Summary of remuneration
The following table summarnises the vanous elernents of executive remuneration
Purpose and ink to
Element remuneration policy Key features Policy operated in 2012 Policy for 2013
Basesalary - Reflects the competitive + Incash « Chief Executive - £600000 « Salary ncrease of 2 5% with
marketsalary levelforthe  » Based onindmidual « CFO-£400000 effect from 1 Septermnber 2012,
individuat and their role contrnibution m hne with the wider
- Takesaccountof personal  + Reviewed annually Company pay policy
performance and
contribution to corporate
performance
Annual » Rewardstheachievement -« Incashfollowing yearend + Maxxmum award of 100%  Maxumum award of 100%
bonus of stretchimg anmual profit base salary basesalary
and Group financial goals « 40% of base salary awarded + 80% of the bonus will be based
incashbasedon4 2%increase  on profit before tax
n profit before tax perforrmance and 20% based
on matnx of like-for-like sales
and gross margin percentage
performance
Performance + Algns with shareholder = Maximum award of » Chief Executive recetved an » PSP award level of Chuef
Share Plan mnterests through the 200% of base salary award of 150% of base salary Executive reiewed during
(PSP delivery of shares {250% of base salary CFO received an award of the year
» Rewards growthinearnings  1nexceptional 100% of base salary « In 2013 only, the Chief
and maintenance of an crreumnstances) » PSPawardssubjecttoa Executive will be made an
efficient and sustainable « Awards vest after combinatien of 75% EPS award of 200% of base salary
levelof returnonourcapital  three years and 25% ROCE. The CFO s award will be 100%
» Itisintended that the PSP of base salary Itisintended
willbe the key mcentive that the award level wall revert
vehicle going forward with to the normal policy in 2014
awards being granted + PSPawardssubjecttoa
on anannual basis comnbimation of 75% EPS
and 25% ROCE
Benefits - Reflects market prachice = Carallowance » Nochange » Nochange
+ Healthcare
» Dental nsuance
« Lifeinsurance
Pension * Provides fundsto allow « 15% of base salary « Nochange = Nochange
executives tosave for + Executive directorsare
retirement provided a salary
supplement i lieu
of a pension provision

Composnents of remuntezztion

Basesalary

The Cornmuttee considers base salary and salary increases for executives in the context of remuneration levels at companies of a simular size and
complexaty and comparable companies i the FTSE 350 retail sector, as well as considenng salary increases across the Group's wider employee
populatton. The Commuittees policy 1s toset base salanes at an appropriate level to attract and retain the quality of indmiduals requured torun
abusiness of the size and complexuty of Debenhams successfully but without paying rmore than 1s necessary todothis The salary increases
awarded to the Chief Executive and Chief Finanaal Officer wath effect from 1 September 2012 of £615,000 (2 5%) and £410000 (2 5%)
respectvely are 1n line with the wider Company pay policy

Executive directors bonus schemes

2012 bonus

Asdisclosed 1n last vear's rermuneratzon report, the annual bonus scheme for executive directors for 2012 was based on PBT with a maxamum

benus potential of 100% of base salary A target payout of 40% of salary would have been tnggered by the achievement of a PBT target of £158.3
rmulhon with the maximum only beng paid out for performance sigmfcantly tn excess of this level The Commuttee considered the target tobe
both stretching and represent value creation for shareholders

For 2012 the Company achieved the target PBT of £158 3 mulhion which represented growth of 4 2%, 52 weeks to 1 Septernber 2012 vs 52 weeks to
27 August 2011 The Comrmuttee believes that the 40% bonus payment, recognises the excellent performance of the executive directors miterms
of delivery against the strategic pillars and inanaal mprovemnent over the period in what was another challenging year for the retail sector
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2013 bonus

The Commmuttee reviewed the operation of the annual bonus plan dunng the year and decided to mtroduce a like-for-ike sales and gross margim
percentage performance matnx alongside the existing PBT measure The weighting of the measures will be 80% PBT and 20% gross margin
percentage performance matnx. The Commuttee considers that these measures are the most appropnate tocreate a strong aignment with
shareholder value creation and effectively incentivise executives togrow profit and ike-for-like sales on an annual basts whilst motvating focus
onincreasing the gross margin Thisisillustrated below

2012 performance measures 2013 performance measires

20%

| LFL sabes and gross margin matris

100% | 80%

PRT performance ] PBT parformance

The maximum bonus opporturity will rematn at 100% of base salary, payable i cash 40% of the bonus will be payabie for delivering threshold
levels of perforrmance with the maximum bonus only being payable on the delivery of performance sigmificantly in excess of plan

The Company’s share mcentives

The Comumuttee continues to consider that the Debenhams Performance Share Plan (*PSP"}is the most approprate long-term incentive plan for

the business as it provides an incentive to deliver supenor corporate performance whilst creating alignment with shareholder interest through

the delivery of shares As communicated last year, it 1s the Committee's intention to grant long-term mcentive awards annually to executive

directors and other key senior managers under the PSP \

The Debenhams Performance Share Plan (“PSP”)
The Cormnmittee has discretion to grant awards under the PSPup to a maxmmum of 200% of base salary to executive directors and other senor
execuitives Upto 250% of base salary may be awarded in exceptional circumstances

Awards under the PSP compnise a nght to recerve free shares or ami! cost option Awards under the PSP normally vest on the third anmiversary

of the date of grant @and 1n the case of ml cost options must be exercised within six months of vesting) subject to satisfaction of performance

conditions set by the Remuneranon Commuttee at the time awards are granted and generally provided that the participant remamsn

employment, In addiion 1n order for the award to vest the Remuneration Commuttee must be satisfied that theundertying financial

performance of the Company over the performance peniod s sufficient to justify the vesting of the award .

2013 award levels

The Rermuneration Comimittee proposes that for 2013 only the Chief Executive will be made a PSP award of 200% of base salary to ensure
alignment with the four pillared strategy It 1s intended that the PSP award level for the Chief Executive in future years wall return to the normal
level of 150% of base salary The award for the CFO wiil be 100% of base salary

Performance measures

The vesting of PSP awards 1s based on stretching earrungs per share (EPS) and return on capital employed {(ROCE) performance targets

The Commuttee considers that EPS and ROCE are the most appropnate performarnice metrncs for our business, as growing our earmings while
mamntaing an efficient and sustainable level of retum on capital 1s a key strategic drniver of business performance and they are closely ahgned
with the creaton of shareholder value For any financial year of the Cornpany ROCE means profit before miterest and tax excluding any pension
credit or debit divided by consobdated balance sheet net assets excluding net debt, pension balances, corporation tax and deferred tax. Should
any performance condition not be met at the end of the relevant performance period, that portion of the award wall lapse immediately without
any opportunity to re-test the relevant perforrmance condition.

Targets for 2013 awards

Following shareholder consultation, the Remuneration Commuttee reviewed the performance targets for the awards to be made 1n November
2012 and, 1n the context of the long-term strategic plan, analysts’ forecasts and market practice, agreed that the 25% of award based on ROCE
petformance be stretched to tngger threshold vesting at average ROCE equal tothe cost of capital plus 1%

The targets therefore proposed for awards to be made in November 2012 are-

Peaformance measures 75% based on absohute EPS growth 25% based on ROCE performance vs cost of capital
Targets

Threshold (30% vesting) Absolute EPS growth of 6% per annum Average ROCE equal to the cost of capital plus 1%
Maximum (100% vesting) Absolute EPS growth of 12% per annum Average ROCE equal to the cost of capital plus 5%

Both the EPS and ROCE elements of the awards vest on a straight line basis between 30% and 100% based on performance actueved between
the threshold and maxamurm targets disclosed.
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2009 and 2011 PSP awards

The table below sets cut the performance conditions of the 2009 and 2041 PSP awards

Date of grant Vestingcnitena Performance condition over three year period
24 November 2009  EPSgrowth Below absolute growth of 6% pa = zero vesting

Absotute growth of 6% pa = 30% vesting
Absdlute growth of 10% pa =100%
Between absolute growth of 6% and 10% pa = straight hne basis between 30%and 100%

23 May 2011 EPS growth Below absolute growth of 6% pa = zero vesting
Absclute growth of 6% pa = 30% vesting
Absclute growth of 10% pa = 100%
Between absolute growth of 6% and 10% pa = straight line basis between 30% and 100%

1 November 2011 Performance measures 75% based on abschite EPS growth 25% based on ROCE performance vs cost of capital
Targets
Threshold Absalute EPS growth Average ROCE which 1s equal to the cost of capital
(30% vesting) of 6% per annum
Maxamum Absolute EPS growth Average ROCE equal to the cost of capital phis 5%
(100% vesting) of 129 perannum

Reported EPS1n the 2008/09base year for the PSP performance penod ended 1 Septernber 2012 was imipacted by the irm placing and placing
and open offer of new share capital that took place in June 2009 prior to the grant nt Novermber 2009 of PSPshare awards for this performance
pertod [naccordance with the PSP rules the Remuneration Commmittee has deterrmined that it wiould be appropnate for thus purpose for base
year EPStobe calculated as if the firm placing and placing and open offer took place at the start of the year with a corresponding increase to profit
after tax toreflect the mterest benefit from the additional capital On thisbasis EPS growth for the penod amounted 1o 6 1% and 32% of the award
granted i November 2009 will therefore vest on 24 Novernber 2012 Inreaching this decision, the Remuneration Commuttee considered that
the rmimirnum EPS growth targets of 6% per anrum were appropriately based on this methodology, no other PSP awards vested dunng the
performance penod in question though determmation thereof utilised this method and therefore no participants benefitied from awards based
on any other methodology, and that the resultant cutcome was fair in the context of the eamings performance demonstrated, particularly over
thelast inanmal year i what hasbeen a very tough economuc ciimate for the retail sector

No awards under the PSP vested or were exercised durnng the year

The Debenhams Deferred Bonus Matching Plan (the “DBMP™)

The Cornruttee has discretion to imvite participants to invest up to 100% of net annual bonus earned into shares (“invested shares”) If the
participant rermams m service for three years and retans the beneficial ownership of all the invested shares then subject to the sanisfaction of a
stretching performance target s/he 15 eligible to recerve a matching share award equal to the pre-tax amount of the bonus that has been nvested
If the performance target 1s not met at the end of the performance penod, the matching share awards lapse immedhately and the invested shares
are returned to the parnicipant. There is no opportumty to re-test the performance condition

Allbonus ehgible employees were offered the opportunity to mvest up to 50% of the 2010 bonus Matching awards were therefore made under
this plan in Novenber 2010 These awards have a pnmary performance metnc of EPS In addition, the awardsare subject to the achievernent
of anunderpin level of ROCE performance No executive directors have participated in the DEMP

Thus plan has not been operated since Novernber 2010

The Debenthams 2006 Executive Share Option Plan (the “ESOP”)}

The Commuttee has discretion to grant options to acquire shares to eligible employees Itis not currently intended that executive directors will
particapate in the ESOPother than in exceptional arcumstances (e g, recruitment) Options with a face value of up to a maximurm of 100% of base
salary can be granted under the plan Options may, inexceptional circumstances, be granted with 3 marlet vajue 1n excess of this amount at the
discretion of the Rermuneration Commuttee Options can be granted i the form of unapproved options or HM Revenue & Customs approved
options (up to the prescnbed HMRC Limut, currently £30,000)

Share options are granted at the closing md-market price on the day pnor to the date of grant and normally become exerasable three years after
grant, expinng seven years later The exercise of the options 18 subject to performance conditions set by the Remuneraton Committee at the time
awards are granted. In addinon m order for the award to vest, the Remuneration Commuttee must be satisfied that the underlying financial
performance of the Company aver the performance peinodis sufficient to justify the vesting of the aphons

For options granted under the Scherne in 2008, the performance measure was based on the Company’s ROCE exceecing the cost of capital

The Cornmittee considered that ROCE was an appropnate performance condition as it mcentrvises sustamnable, efficient profit performance

If the performance condiion is not met at the end of the performance penod, the options will lapseimmediately without any opportunty to re-test
the relevant performance condition The Commuttee will consider the performance condinons for any future award of options at the e of grant

The table below sets out the performance conditions of ESOP options existing dunng the year

Date of grant Vestng critenia Performance condition over three year period
24 November 2009 ROCEgrowthagainst  ROCE <cost of capital = zero vesting
costof capital ROCE > cost of capital = 30% vesting

ROCE > cost of capital + 5% = 100% vesting
Between these points the options vest on a straight line basis between 30% and 100%

Based on ROCE performance exceeding the cost of capitat by 78% during the three year petformance peniod ended 1 Septermber 2012,
the options granted in Novernber 2009 will become exercisable 1n full on 24 November 2012
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Detals of the ophions held by Michael Sharp are disclosed on page 74 No options under the ESOP vested or wete exercised dunng the year

Debenhams 2006 Sharesave Scheme (the “Sharesave Scheme”)

Under the Sharesave Scherme employees may be granted an option to acquire shares at a fived exercise price At the end of the savings period
the ermnployee may either exercise the option within six months of the end of the savings penod using the savings contrbutions and bonus
accumt?]late% or have the savings and bonus repaid No options have been granted under this scheme and there s currently no infention
touse the scheme

The Debenhams 2008 Share Incentive Plan

The Debenharms 2008 Share Incentive Plan 1s an unapproved plan operated by the Cormpany This plan is focused at key serior managers and
1t1s not intended that executive directors would participate 1n this plan The purpose of the planis to retain and incentivise key employees in

the short tomedmm-term Awards under the plan are subject to contimung employment and performance conditions specific to the mdividuals
role within the business Existing awards under this plan were granted to ley individuals in November 2010 and June 2012

The Debenhams Retail Employee Trust 2004 (the “Trust”)

The Debenhams Retail Employee Trust 2004 currently hotds 1,068,301 shares in the Company 450,000 shares are held in the Trust to satisfy
potential grants made under The Debenharns 2008 Share Incentive Plan The Trust also holds the invested shares of participants of the DEMP
totalling 344 765 shares Dividends receivable on the shares held in the Trust which are not subject to the DBMP are waived on the
recommendation of the Company

Funding of share schemes

It 1s the Company's cuurent intention to satisfy any future requirernents of its share schemes ina method best suited to the mnterests of

the Company, exther by acquuning shares in the market utthising shares held as treasury shares or, subject tonstitutional guidelines, 1ssumg
new shares Where the awards are sansfled by newly tssued shares, the Company will comply with ABI guidelines on shareholder dilution
Current levels of shareholder dilution are 69% (2011 0309%) of share capital

Change of control

Generally the rules of the Company s share schemes provide that 1n the event of a change of control, awards/options would vest to the extent
that the performance condinions {where applicable) are satisfied at the date of such event Any such early vesting would generally be on a tirme
pro-ratabasis

Pension

Michaei Sharp1s a deferred member of the Debenhams Executive Pension Plan Full details are chsclosed on page 74 of this Report Under the
terms of the directors’ contacts of employment, the executive directors are entitled to asalary supplement in heu of pension provision of 15%
of base salary These amounts are cisclosed in the directors emolurnents table on page 73

Termination arrangements for Rob Templeman

Asdisclosed 1n last year s report, Rob Templeman, the former Chief Executive, entered into a 12 month consultancy agreement with the
Company on 4 Septermber 2011 At the agreement of both parties, the consultancy terminated on 31 December 2011 A total of £72,950 was paid
mrespect of managernent consultancy and advisory services Mr Templermnan also recerved £13,887 m respect of pay and benefits earned duning
the period 1 Septemnber 2011 to 4 Septermber 2011

Termination arrangements for Chns Woodhouse

Chnis Woodhouse resignied from the board on 10 January 2012 and hus emptoyment with the Company terminated on 31 January 2012 In
accordance with this contract the Company made a payment to Chns Woodhouse equal to the aggregate of 12 months basic salary and the
value of his annual contractual benefits The total amount pard to Mr Woodhouse in respect of compensation for loss of office was £577319

‘The terrns of Mr Woodhouse s service agreement dated 3 May 2006 also entutled him to a payment equal to the average of the annual bonus paid
1n the two bonus years prior to the termination of employment Inlight of current best prachice regarcing theanclusion of borus in hquudated
darnages provisions In executive director service coniracts, the Cornrmuttee agreed with Mr Woodhouse that this element of hquudated damages
which amounted to £306,566 would not be paid The Company’s policy regarding bonus paymenits in kquidated damages provisions now
reflects best practice and executive director service contracts arein hine with this policy

Mr Woodhouse also earned a prorated bonus of £79 840 under the executive directors’ annual bonus scheme for the Company's financial year
ending 1 Septernber 2012 This borus was based on the same performance condibons as for other senior executives

The 2006 service agreement for Chris Woodhouse permitted him to held up to two non-executive cirectorships in non-competing
companies and to retain payments recetved in respect of those other directorships Chins Woodhouse, who was non-executive chairman

of Agent Provocateur Lid, retained fees of £20,547 (2011 £18943) dunng the penod 4 Septemnber 2011 to 31 January 2012 together with £62,111
(2011 £150.000)1n respect of his role of group non-executive chairman of Gondola Group Limited.
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Performance graph

The performance graph below shows the Cormnpany’s total shareholder return against the FTSE 350 General Retailers Index over the penod from
1 Septernber 2007 to 1 September 2012 The FTSE 350 General Retailers index has been chosen as Debenharms has been amermnber throughout
the peniod and 1t1s made up of a broad spectrum of retail competitors (including major general retail listed competitors) in the principal product
areas in which the Company trades
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Chairman and non-executive directors

Terms and conditions

Niget Northndge was appointed a non-executive director of the Company on 1 January 2010 and became Chairman on 1 April 2010
Hisappomntment as Chairman is subject to the terms of a letter of appointment dated 28 January 2010 and the appointment s for a term of three
years endling on 31 March 2013 which may be extended by further terms of three years by mutual agreement. In addition to time commitment,
the anrmial engagement fee, and other business interests, the Chairman is permitted tohold other directorships provided that any such
appointment does not miterfere with his position at the Company

The non-executive directors have letters of appomtment from the Company covenng matters such as duties, time commitrment, fees and other
business interests The non-executive directors, excluding Denms Millard, were appointed for an initial three years which may be extenided for
afurther term of three years by mutual agreement Both Martina King and Sophie Tumer Laing have been appointed for a further three years
following the end of their initial engagernent on 31 July 2012 Denmis Millard's appomtment may be terminated by either party giving one
month’s notice

All appointmnents are subject to the Company” Articles of Associat:on and the annual shareholders re-election. The letters of appoirttment
donot contam a provision for compensation if their appointments are termunated

Fees for non-executive directors are determined by the board and are made up of an annual fee for acting as anon-executive director of the
Cempany together with additional fees for membership of and chamnng a board commuttee There 1s afurther fee for acting as senior independent
non-executive director The non-executive directors do not take part in discussions on their own remuneration which is reviewed annually
by the board. The fees are set toreflect the ime which they are required to commit to their duties their expenience and the amounts paid to
non-executive directors in comparable companies Fees for the non-executive directors remnained frozen for 2012 wath theexception that the
fee for Remuneration Commiitee charman was mncreased from £7500 to £10 000 toreflect the responsibility and tome cormrtrnent for this |
role and to align the fee with that paid for the chairmanship of the Audit Commuttee

Details of the fees for the Chairman and the non-executive directors are set out below Ther leiters of appomntment are available for nspection
at the Company's registered office duning normal business hours and at the Annual General Meeting.

Committee Comrmittee Current

Date of joming Fees member fee chairman fee SIDFee anmial fee

Name the Company £ £ £ £ £

Nigel Northndge 1January 2010 175000 0 0] 0 175000

Denrus Millard 9 May 2006 40,000 5000 10000 10,000 65,000
Adam Crozier* 9 May 2006 40,000 5000 7500 0 52,500 .
Martina King 1 August 2009 40000 7500 7500" 0 55000 ’

Mark Rolfe 1 Qctober 2010 40000 5000 10000 0 55000

Sophie TumerLaing 1 August 2009 40000 72500 0 0 47500

* Resignied 1 September 2012
** Fee for chainng the sustamamlity comumttee

Erzcuridvedireciortermsant candidors

Executive director contracts

Michael Sharp entered into a service agreement with the Company on 3 May 2006 Hisagreement is terminable by either party giving not less
than 12 months wniten notice [f the Company terrrunates the employment without due notrce, other than in arcumstances such as gross
rmusconduct or other immediate ustifiable cause, the Company 1s required to make a payment equal to the aggregate of the executive director s
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bastc salary and the value of any contractuat benefits for the notice period Mr Sharps onginal contract also mcluded that in the event of
terrmunation he would be entitled, as part of his hquidated damages, to receive a payment equal to the average of the [ast two years' annual bonus
When Mr Sharp was promoted to Chief Executive on 5 September 2011 this proviston was rernoved from his contract in hne with best practice

Simon Hermck entered into a service agreement with the Company on 19 October 2011 His agreement is terminable by exther party giving not
less than 12 months wniten notice If the Company terminates the employment without due notice, other than in circurnstances such as gross
musconduct or other mmediate jushifiable cause the Company 1s requited to make a payment equal to the executive director's basic salary for

the notice penod.

Executive directors are entitled, in additton to salary to other benefits or equivalent cash allowances the valieof whichsset out in the table of
directors emoluments Such benefits mclude company car and fuel, life, medical, derital and personal accident msurance together with product

discount and personal finanaal advice.
Outside appomntments for executive directors

Anty proposed external directorships are considered by the Normnation Commuttee to ensure they do not cause a conflict of interest

Neither of the current executive directors hold any such directorships.
Directors' shareholdings

The interests of the directors in the share capital of the Company as at 1 Septernber 2012 are shown below Awards granted under the PSP

and ESOS are shown 1n Part 2 of this report.

Ordinary shares held asat Ordinary shares held asat Ordinarysharesheld asat
Director 4September 2011 1September 2012 190ctober 2012
Migel Northndge 100,000 100,000 100,000
Michael Sharp® 5854,579 5854579 5954,579
Simon Hernck 0 26,250 26,250
MartinaKing 10000 10,000 10,000
Dennis Millard 69455 69455 695455
Mark Rolfe 30000 30,000 30,000
Sophie Turner Laing 20000 20000 20,000

Notes

@ Asat 19 October 2012 Mi Sharp s holding inchudes 218 904 shares held by The Sharp Thscretionary Settlernent of which he s a Trustee

In order to align the intetests of executives with those of shareholders and to demonstrate the executives’ ongoing comrutrment to the
business, the Commuttee has this year introduced a shareholding guideline policy Executives are required tobuid up and matntain a holding
of Debenhamsshares equal toone imes base salary Executives are expected to retain 50% of any post-tax shares that vest under any share
mcentive plans unal this shareholding 1s reached. The Cominittee expects executives to have met the shareholding guideline policy by the

fifth anniversary of thewr appomntment

Part 2: Audited information
Directors’ emolumants

The remuneration of each director who served dunng the year 1s setout in the following table

Anmial
allowance Compensation

mlien for Loss Total Total

Salary/fees Benefits Bonus of penston of Office 2012 201

Director £ E E E £ £ £

Nigel Northnidge 175000 - - - - 175,000 175,000

Michael Sharp 599,243 40,232 240,000 89886 - 969,361 855495

Simon Hernck® 333333 15312 134,137 50,000 - 532782 -

Rob Templeman® 10,562 1741 - 1584 - 13837 1,044 515

Chns Woodhouse® 198404 11,663 79840 26189 577319 893415 720268

Adam Crozier 52500 - - - - 52,500 52,500

Martina King 55,000 - - - - 55000 54154

Dennis Millard 65,000 - - - - 65,000 65000

Mark Rolfe 47500 - - - - 47500 43,542

Sophie Turner Laing 47500 - - - - 47500 47500

Total 1584042 68948 453977 167659 577319 2851945 3061974
Notes:

©Mr Hernck jotned the Company on 1 November 2011
@ Mr Termnplernan left the Company on 4 Septernber 2011
& Mr Woodhouse left the Company on 31 January 2012
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Pension

Michael Sharp 1s a deferred mermnber of the Debenhams Executive Pension Plan He ceased to accrue beniefits in that plan on 31 March 2006
The table below shows his pension accrued at the yearend,

Transfervaluneasat Transfer valueasat
Increase n 3 September 2011 1 September 2012
Increasein accruedpension Accunmulated total ofaccrued of accrued Increasein
accrued pension durng the year accrued pension pensionasat pensionasat transfer vahue
during the year (netofinflation) at1September 2012 3September2011  1September2012  duringtheperiod
Director (E) (E) (£) (3] (£) (E)
Michael Sharp 9468 42) 155,673 4,383,809 5,172,559 788,750
Directors’ interests in the performarnce share plan
Number of Shares Shares Numberof Market
shares held at awarded lapsed sharesheldat vahue Eathest Expiry
3September during dunng  1September ondateof dateof dateof
Date of award 01 theyear the year 2012 award vesting options
MichaelSharp 24 Novermnber 485,902 0 0 485902 8335p 24November 24 May 2013
2009 2012
1November 0 1396573 0 1396573 6443p  1November 1May 2015
2011 2014
Simon Hernck 1November 0 620877 0 620877 6443p  1November 1May 2015
2011 2014
Directors’ interests in the executive share optionscheme
Number of Number
shares under Shares Shares of shares
option held at granted lapsed heldat Earliest Expiry
3 September during during 1September date of dateof
Date of grant 2011 the year theyear  Option price 2012 exercise options
Michael Sharp Approved 35108 0 0 8545p 35108 24November 24 November
scheme 2012 2019
24 November
2009
Unapproved 438,853 0 0 8545p 438853 24 November 24 November
scheme 2012 2019
24 November
2009

The closing rrud-market price of the Company's shares on 31 August 2012 was 96 5 pence and ranged from 51 2 pence to 96 5 pence dunng the
penod from 4 September 2011 to | Septernber 2012

On behalf of the board
Dennis Millard

Chayman of the Remuneration Committee

25 October 2012
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Staternent of directors’ responsibilities

kST

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the Remuneration Report and the Financal Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulatons

Company law requures the duectors to prepare financal statemertts for each financal year Under thelaw the duectors have elected to prepare
the Group Financial Staternents in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs”) as adopted by the European Urnon and
the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and apphicable law) Under company law the directors must not approve financal staternents unless they are satsfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period In prepanng
these Financial Statements, the directors are requured to

= Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
= Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

= State whether [FRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Union and applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained i the Group and Parent Company financial staterments respectively, and

= Prepare the finanaal statements on the going concem basis unless it 1s napproprate to presume that the Company will conhinue i business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explaimn the Company s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the fimancial
staternerits and the remuneration report comply with the Cornparnes Act 2006 and as regards the Group financial statements Article 4 of the
IASregulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other uregulanties

The directors are responsible for maintenance and integnty of the Company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdorn governing the
preparation and dissemimnation of financial statements may differ from legislanion 1n other jurisdictions

Directors’ responsibility statement pursuant to disclosure and transparency rule 4.1.12
Each of the directors, whose names and functions are detailed on pages 56 and 57 confirms that to the best of us/her knowledge

« The Group Financal Staternents, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view
of the assets, habilities, financial posihon and profit of the Group- and

» The Directors’ Report contained m this report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position
of the Company and the Group together with a description of the pnnicipal nisks and uncertainties that it faces

By order of the board

Michael Sharp Simon Herrick
Chuef Executve Chief Finanaal Officer
25 October 2012
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Debenhams plc (Group)

We have audited the Group Financal Staternents of Debenhams ple for the 52 week period ended 1 Septernber 2012 which comprnise the
Consohdated Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incomne, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity the Consolidated Cash Flow Staternent and the related notes The fmancial reporting framework that hasbeen
applied 1n their preparation 1s apphcable law and Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards (‘1FRSs™) as adopted by the European Urucn

responsibilities of directors and auditors
Asexplamed more fully in the statement of directors' Responsibiities set out on page 75, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
Group Financial Statements and for bemg sanshied that they give a true and fair view Our responsihility 1s to audit and express an opirion on the
Group Finanaal Statemerts in accordance with applicable law and [nternational Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
requure us to comply with the Auciting Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Thus report, Including the gpimons, has been prepared for and only for the Company s members as abody in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Compares Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, iIngiving these opinicns, accept or assume responstbility for any other purpose
or toany other person to whom thus report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may comme save where expressly agreed by our pnior consent in wnting.

Scope of the audit of the financlal statements

An audit mvolves cbtamming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the Financial Staternents are free from matenal musstatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessmment of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's arcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of sigmficant accounting estunates made by the directors, and the overalt presentation of the Fmanaal Statements In addition,
weread all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Accounts to1dentify matenal inconsistencies with the audited
Financial Statements If we becomne aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implicatons for our report.

Opinion on finandal statements
In cur opinien the Group Financial Statements

= Give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's affairs as at | September 2012 and of its proht and cash flows for the 52 week penod
then ended

+ Have been propetly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unuon, and
+ Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opirucn

» The information given m the Directors' Report for the 52 week period for which the Group Financal Staternents are prepared 15 consistent
with the Group Financial Statements

= Theinformaton given in the Risk Review set out on pages 39 to41n this Anmual Report and Accounts with respect to internal control
and nsk management systems and the information about share capital in the Directors’ report on pages 63 to 64 1s consistent with the
Financial Staternents

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following.

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report o yotnif, 1n our opimon

+ Certamn disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law areniot rmade, or

» We have not recerved all the information and explanations we reguire for our aucht
+ A Corporate Governance Staternent has not been prepared by the Parent Company
Under the Listing Rules we are required toreview

+ The directors' statement, set out on page 65, 11t relation to going concern

+ The part of the corporate governance statement relating to the Company's compliance with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code speaified for our review and

+ Certain elements of the report to shareholders by the board on directors’ remuneration

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Parent Company Financiat Statements of Debenhams pic for the 52 week penod ended 1 September 2012
and on the information in the remunerattion report that 15 descnbed as having been audited

Martin Hodgson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
25 October 2012
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52weeks 53 weeks

ended ended

1September 3 September

2012 201

Noie £m f£m

Revenue 3.4 2,229.8 22098

Cost of sales (1,927.5) (19131)

Gross profit 302.3 2967

Distribution costs (81.0) (702)

Admunistrative expenses (46.3) (42 8)

Operating profit 6 175.0 1837

Finance income 8 1.2 39

Finance costs 9 {17.9) (273)

Profit before taxation 158.3 1603

Taxation 10 (33.0) (431)

Profit for the financial year attributable to equity shareholders 125.3 n72
Earnings per share attributable to equity shareholders (expressed in pence per share)

Pence Pence

per share per share

Basic 12 9.8 91

Diluted 12 9.8 91




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 1 September 2012

52 weeks 53 weeks
ended ended
1 Septermber 3 Septemnber
2012 2011
Note £m £m
Profit for the financial year 125.3 1172
Other comprehensive (expense)/income
Actuanal (losses)/gamns recognised 1n the pension schemes 23 (82.3) 758
Deferred tax credit/(charge) on actuanal losses or gains 24 16.9 (225}
Current tax credit on the pension schemes 23 21
Currency translation differences (6.7) 43
Sale of available-for-sale investment - Qo
Change in the valuation of the available-for-sale investments 15 (0.7) ©2
Cash flow hedges
- Fair value gains/(losses) 5.0 (157)
- Tax {charge)/credit on fair value gains or losses (1.6) 39
- Reclassified and reported i net profit 9 2.0 47
- Tax charge on items reclassified and reported 11 net profit (0.4) (12)
- Recycled and adjusted against cost of sales (1.9) 18
- Tax credit/(charge) on items recycled against cost of sales 0.5 (05)
Total other comprehensive (expense)/income (66.9) 505
Total comprehensive income for the year 58.4 1677
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As at 1 September 2012 Cowmance. 5
Acoounts 75
1September 3 September
2012 201
Note £m fm
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 13 864.9 8581
Property. plant and equipment 14 661.6 6346
Available-for-sale investments 15 19 26
Denvative financal instruments 22 0.8 14
Other receivables 17 19.3 183
Retirement benefit assets 23 - 39
Deferred tax assets 24 832 757
1,631.7 15946
Current assets
Inventones 16 3323 3213
Trade and other recevables 17 754 721
Denvative financial iInstruments 22 7.8 12
Cash and cash equivalents 18 44.0 290
459.5 4236
Ldabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft and borrowings 20 (163.4) (1681)
Denvative financal mstruments 22 (1.9) (85)
Trade and other payables 19 {525.4) (4891)
Current tax habihties (31..0) {437)
Provisions 26 (5.3) (62)
(727.0) (7156)
Net current liabilities {267.5) (292 0)
Non-current liabilities
Bank overdraft and borrowings 20 (249.3) (244 6)
Denvative financial instruments 22 (8.9) {42)
Deferred tax habilities 24 {64.7) (74 1)
Other non-current liabilities 25 (321.9) (3189)
Provisions 26 (L1) (12)
Retirement benefit obhiganons 23 (572.3) -
(703.2) (5430)
Net assets 661.0 6596
Sharcholders’ equity
Share capital 27 01 01
Share premium account 6829 6829
Merger reserve 1,200.9 12009
Reverse acquisition reserve (1,199.9) (1,1999)
Hedging reserve (2.6) 62
Other reserves {10.5) (30
Retamned earnings (9.9) (151
Total equity 661.0 6596
The financial statements on pages 77 to 118 were approved by the board on 25 October 2012 and were signed on its behalf by
Simon Herrick
Chuef Finanaal Officer

llazzeet




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

As at1September 2012
Share capital Reverse
and share Merger acquisition Hedging Other Retaned
premuunl Teserve Teserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Note fm fm £fm £m £m £m Em
Balance at 28 August 2010 6830 12009 (11999) 08 52 (176 2) 5034
Profit for the finanaal year - - - - - 172 172
Actuanal gam on pension schemes 23 - - - - - 758 758
Deferred tax charge on pension schemes 24 - - - - - (22 5) (225
Current tax credit on pension schemes - - - - - 21 21
Sale of available-for-sale investment 15 - - - - 20 - (20)
Change in the value of available-for-sale
mvestments 15 - - - - (C2) - (02)
Currency translation cifferences - - - - 43 - 43
Cash flow hedges
- Farr value losses (net of tax) - - - ey - - (118)
- Reclassified and reperted in net profit
(net of tax) - - - 35 - - 35
- Recycled and adjusted agamst the cost
of mventory (net of tax) - - - 13 - - 13
Total comprehensive income and
expense for the financial year - - - (7.0) 21 172.6 167.7
Share-based payment charge 28 - - - - - 14 14
Dividends paid 11 - - - - - (129} {129)
Total transactions with owners - - - - - (1L.5) (1L.5)
Balance at 3 September 2011 6830 12009 (1,199.9) (6.2) (X)) (151) 659.6
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 1253 1253
Actuanal loss on pension schemes 23 - - - - - (823) (823)
Deferred tax credit on pension schemes 24 - - - - - 169 169
Current tax credit on pension schemes - - - - - 23 23
Change in the value of avalable-for-sale
nvestments 15 - - - - 07 - G7
Currency translation differences - - - - 67 - (67)
Cash flow hedges
- Fair value gams (net of tax) - - - 34 - - 34
- Reclassified and reported in net profit
(net of tax) - - - 16 - - 16
- Recycled and adjusted against the cost
of iInventory (net of tax) - - - (14) - - (14)
Total comprehensive income and
expense for the financial year - - - 3.6 (7.4) 622 58.4
Share-based payment charge 28 - - - - - 16 16
Purchase of treasury shares 27 - - - - - 201) (201)
Dividends paid 11 - - - - - (385) (385)
Total transactions with owners - - - - - (57.0) {57.0)
Balance at 1 September 2012 683.0 12009 (1,199.9) (2.6) (10.5) (9.9) 6610

For a description of the nature and purpose of each reserve, together with an analysis of other reserves, see note 27
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For the financial year ended 1 September 2012 Governance 52
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52 weeks 53weeks
ended ended
1September 3 Septernber
2012 201
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 30 259.7 2676
Finance income 0.2 67
Finance costs (13.8) (263)
Tax pad (44.6) (48 6)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2015 1994
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equaipment (10104) (94 3)
Purchase of intangible assets (17.2) (197
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investment 15 - 50
Proceeds from sale of finance leases 30 - 126
Net cash used 1n investing achvities (118.6) (96 4)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of term loan facility 20 - (548 6)
(Repayment)/drawdown of new facihty (10.0) 4150
Purchase of treasury shares (20.1) -
Diwvidends paxd 11 (38.5) (129)
Finance lease payments (2.2) (on
Debt 1ss5ue costs 20 - (41)
Net cash used in financing activities (70.8) (1507
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 121 477
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginrung of financial year 228 695
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash equivalents {(0.3) 10
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 31 346 228




Notes to the Financial Statemeints
For the financial year ended 1 September 2012

1 General information

Introduction

Debenhams plc (“the Company”}is a public himited company incorporated and dorciled in the United Kingdom under the Companies
Act 2006 (Company No 5448421) The address of the registered office 1s 1 Welbeck Street, London W1G OAA.

The principal activity of the Company 15 that of a holding company The principal activities of the Group and its subsidianies (together
the "Group" or the “Debenhams Group~) 1s the sale of fashion clothing and accessones, cosmetics and products for use in the home
The Group trades from department stores in the UK, the Republic of Ireland and Denmark, on the internet and has international
franchise stores

The Group prepares its financial statements for the financial year ending on the nearest Saturday to 31 August of a given calendar
year Consequently the financal year ended 1 September 2012 15 a 52 week financial year, with the comparative financial year ended
3 September 2011 bemng a 53 week financial year

The pnnapal companies within the Group dunng the financial year ended 1 September 2012 are disclosed i note 33

2 Accounting policies
The Group s principal accounting policies as described below, have been consistently applied to all financial years presented,
unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial staterments have been prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ('IFRS") including International Accounting Standards (*TAS") and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Commuttee ('IFRIC™) interpretations and with those parts of the Compames Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under
accounting standards as adopted for use in the EU The consoldated financial statements for the financial years ended 1 Septermnber 2012
and 3 September 2011 have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets and financial habilities (ncluding denvanve instruments) at fair value through profit or loss

The preparation of the financial statements in conformty with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reporting amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staterments and the reported amount of revenue and expenses
dunng the reporting period  Although these results are based on management's best knowledge of the amounts, events or actions,
actual results ulimately may differ from those estimates (see note 5)

Consoclidation

The financial statements comprise a consolidation of the accounts of Debenharns ple and allits subsidianes Subsidiaries include all
entibes over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating polices The existence and effect of potential voting
nghts that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity
Subsidianes are fully consohdated from the date on which the Group has the power to control They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases

On consohdation, mter company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are ehminated
Unrealised losses are also ehminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred Accounting
pohicies of the Company and 1ts subsidiaries have been changed whete these have a sigrificant impact on the Group s income statement
or balance sheet to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration recetved or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided 1n the normal course of business, net of staff discounts and the cost of loyalty scheme pomnts, and 15 stated net of value
added tax and other sales-related taxes

Revenue on department store sales of goods and comnmission on concession and consignment sales 1s recognised when goods are sold
to the customer Retail sales are usually mn cash or by credit or debit card. Internet sales are recognised when the goods are despatched
to the customer Revenue from gift cards and gift vouchers sold by the Group 1s recognised on the redemption of the gift card or gift
voucher Revenue from sales to franchisees 1s recogmsed when the goods are despatched

It 1s the Group's policy to sell its products to the end customer with a nght of return Accumulated expenenceisused to estimate and
prowvide for such returns at the tume of sale

Segmental reporting

IFRS 8 "Operating Segments” requires segment information to be presented based on what 1s reported to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker The Group has identified the executive commuttee as its Chuef Operating Decision Maker and has 1dentfied two operating
segments, UK and international

Interest recognition
[nterest income 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outsianding and at the interest rate applicable Finance charges
are calculated using the effective interest rate method

Dividend distribution

A final dividend distnbution to the Company’s shareholders 1s recogrused as a hability in the Company's and Group s financial
statements in the penod 1n which the dividend 1s approved by the Company’s shareholders Intenm dividends are recogmsed
when paid
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2 Accounting policies continued

Retirement benefit costs

The hability or asset recogmsed n respect of defined benefit schemes 1s the fair value of the plan assets less the present value of the
defined obligation at the balance sheet date Plan assets include vanous equities, bonds and alternative strategies and are managed
separately by investment managers The defined beneht obligation 15 calculated annually by independent actuanes using the projected
urut crecdit method The present value of the defined benefit obligations are determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of mgh-quality corporate honds that are denaminated n sterling and that have terms to matunty which
approximate to the terms of the related pension habilites

Actuanal gains and losses are recogrused in full in the penod in which they occur They are recognised outside the income statement
and presented 1n the staterment of comprehensive income

Past service costs are recogrused immedsately tn the income statement unless the changes in pension plans are condibonal on the
employees remaimng in service for a speafied penod of time {the vesting peniod) In this case, the past service costs are amortised on
a straight line basts over the vesting penod

The Group operates a defined contnbution scheme in the Republic of Ireland and Denmark and a stakeholder scheme m the UK and
Hong Keng Contnbutions to these pension schemes are charged to the mcome statement as they fall due Differences between
contnbutions payable in the period and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet

The Group has no further payment obligations ¢nce the contnibutions have been paid The contributions are recogmsed as ermnployee
benefit expense when they are due Prepaid contnbutions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments s available

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees A fair value for the equuty-settled share awards 1s measured
at the date of grant The Group measures the fair value using the valuation technique most appropnate to value each class of award
These are either a Black-Scholes, Monte Carlo or binormial pnicing model

The fair value determined at the grant date 1s expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting penod, based on the Group s estimate
of the shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions At each balance sheet date,
the Group revises 1ts estunates of the number of options that are expected to vest It recognises the impact of the revision to ongmal
estimates, iIf any, 1n the mncome statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity

When the options are exercised, the Company may 1ssue new shares or utihise shares held as treasury shares The proceeds recerved
net of any directly attributable transactton costs are credited to share capital (at norminal value) and share premum when the options
are exercised

Foreign exchange

a) Functional and presentation currency

Iterns mcluded in the finanaal statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functicnal currency™) The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling,
which 1s the Group's presentation currency

b) Group companies
The results and finanaal posttion of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows

» Assets and liabilines are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet

« Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate (unless this average 1s not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates
of the transaction)

» Resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate compenent of equuty

¢) Transactions and balances

Transactions denorminated n foreign currenctes are translated nto the respective functional currency at average monthly rates
Monetary assets and habilities denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated mto sterling at the rates ruling at the balance sheet
date Differences on exchange are taken to the income statement

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equuties classified as available-for-sale are included 1n the farr value
feserve In equity

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings, cash and cash equivatents and the translanon of inter company loans are
presented in the mncome statement within finance income or charges Al other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented 1n the
mncome statement within cost of sales




Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2 Accounting policies continued
Taxation
Taxation expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current tax 15 based on taxable profits for the financial perod using tax rates that are in force dunng the penod Taxable profit differs
from net profit as reported in the mncome statement because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
n other financial years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible

Deferred tax 1s provided in full, using the hability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and habilibes
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes If deferred tax anses from rutial recogmtion of an asset or habilityma
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,
1t1s not accounted for Deferred tax 1s deterrmuined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 1s realised or the deferred tax hability is settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 15 probable that future taxable profit will be avattable against which the temporary
differences can be utihsed

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes, except where the timing of the reversals
of the temporary differences 1s controlled by the Group and 1t 1s probable that the temporary differences wall not reverse in the
foreseeable future

Deferred tax 1s charged or credited 1n the income statement, except when 1t relates toitems charged or credited directly to equuty,
in which case the deferred tax s also dealt wath 1n equuty

Leased assets

a) Finance leases

Leases of assets which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as finance leases Finance
leases are classified as a fmancial hability and measured at amortised cost Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at
the lower of the fair value of the leased plant and equipment or the present value of the mimmum lease payrrents and depreciated over
the shorter of the useful economuic life or the period of the lease The resulting lease obligations are included 1n kabilines

Lease payments are apporuoned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the hability

b) Operating leases
All other leases are classified as operating leases Rentals payable under operating leases, net of lease incentives, are charged
to the iIncome statement on a straight line basis over the penod of the lease

Where property lease contracts contain guaranteed fixed mmmmum incremental rental payments the total commutted cost
15 determined and 15 calcutated and amortised on a straight line basis over the hife of the lease

Business combinations
The purchase method of accounting ts used to account for the acquisition of subsidianes by the Group

The cost of an acquusition 1s measured as the fair value of the consideration given, habilities ncurred or assumed and equuty
mstruments :ssued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree All costs directly attnbutable to an acquisition are expensed
to the income statement

Identfiable assets and habhties acquired in a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date, provided they meet
the conditions set out 1n IFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations™ The excess of cost over the Group s share of identifiable net assets
acquired 15 recogrused as goodwill |, after reassessment, the cost of acquisition 1s less than the fair value of assets acquired, the excess
15 immmecdhately recogmsed in the income statement

Intangible assets

a) Goodwll

Goodwill on acquusition of subsidianes represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group s share of the
net Identifiable assets of the acquired subsichary Goodwill on acquisition of subsidanes 18 mcluded in1intangible assets Goodwll 1s not
amortised but tested for impawrment annually, or when trnigger events occur, and camed at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Goodwill represents the goodwill for a portfolio of sites, which have been allocated to groups of cash-generating units on a regional basis
for the purpose of impalrment testing.

b) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are held at cost less accumulated amortisation and any proviston for impairment

Internally generated software costs, where 1t 15 clear that the software developed 1s techmcally feasible and will be completed and
that the software generated will generate economuc benrefit, are capitalised as an intangible asset Included within intangible assets are
assets 1n the course of construction These assets compnse pnumanly web development projects including directly attnbutable costs
to bring the assets into use Amorhsation 1s provided at the following rates per annum to write off the costs of other intangible assets,
less residual value, on a straight line basis from the date on which they are brought into use

Acquired hcences and trademarks Upto10%
Internally generated software 125% 1033 3%
Purchased software 125%10333%
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2 Accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held at histonc purchase cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment
Cost includes the onginal purchase pnce of the asset and the costs attributable to bnnging the asset to 1ts worlang condition for
1ts intended use

Depreciaticn 1s provided at the following rates per annum to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, less residual value,
on a straight line basis from the date on which they are brought into use-

Freehold land Not depreciated

Freehold bulldings 1%

Long leasehold land and buildings including landlords fixtures and fitangs 1% or life of lease if shorter
Short leasehold land and bunldings including landlords fixtures and fittings Life of lease

Retail fixtures and fittings 4% -25%

Office equipment 10% -12 5%

Computer equipment 125%-333%

Vehicles 25% or life of lease

The assets’ useful economic hves and residual values are reviewed and adjusted, if appropnate, at each financial year end
Gains and losses on disposal are determuined by comparnng proceeds with carrying amount These are included in the income statement

Included withun property, plant and equiprnent are assets in the course of construction These assets compnse stores, which are under
construction, including costs directly attnibutable to bring the asset into use Transfers to the appropnate category of property, plant
and equipment are made when the store opens No depreciation 1s provided on stores or other assets under construction

Impairment testing

Assets that have an indefinite useful ife are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying value may not

be recoverable Animpairment loss 1s recognsed for the amount by which the asset's carrying arnount exceeds its recoverable amount
The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset s fair value less costs to sell and value inuse For the purposes of assessing tmpairment,
assets are grouped by store, which 1s the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating uruts) Non-
financial assets other than goodwall that have been impaired are reviewed at each reporting date for possible reversal of the impatrment

Available-for-sale investments

The Group classifies its investments as avatlable-for-sale financial assets in accordance with IAS 39 "Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurernent” Available-for-sale financial mvestments are non-denvative assets They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispese of the iInvestment within 12 months of the balance sheet date Investments are recogrised at fair value
plus any transaction costs

The fair value of available-for-sale investments denomunated in a foreign currency 1s calculated 1n that foresgn currency and translated
at the spot rate at the reporting date

Animpairmment test 1s performed annually on the carmying value of each investment Animpawment loss 1s recognised for the amount
by which the asset's carrying valile exceeds its recoverable amount Impatrment losses are recognised 1n equity

Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the retaill method and represent goods for resale This method
mntnnsically takes into account any stock loss or mark down to goods sold below cost Concession inventones are not included within
inventory held by the Group

Trade and otherreceivables

Trade recervables are stated at amortised cost less provisions for impairment A provision for impairment of trade recetvables 1s
established when there 1s evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the
receivables The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset s carrying amount and the present value of future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate The movement in the prowision is recognised 1n the income statement

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash i hand, deposits held at the bank and other short-term hiquid investments with
ongnal matuntes of approximately three months or less Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current hiabilities
on the balance sheet

Borrowings

Borrowtings are recognised imtially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 1s recogrused in the income statement over
the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest methed

Borrowings ate classified as current labilities unless the Group has an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the hability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date
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2 Accounting policies continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are facility costs are recogmsed initially at fair value, and are amortised over the termn of the facilities using the
effechve interest rate on the commutted amount of each facility

Debt repurchase
The nominal value of debt repurchased has been accounted for as a loan redemption, reducing net borrowings at the balance sheet date

Trade payables
Trade payables, defined as financial habilities in accordance with [AS 39, are recogrused initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method

All of the trade payables are non-interest beanng.

Other payables
Included within other payables are lease incentives recewved from landlords either through developers contnbutions or rent-free
penods These incentives are being credited to the income statement on a straight hne basis over the term of the relevant lease

Provisions

Provisions are recogrused when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and where 1t 15 more
likely than not an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obhiganon and the amount can be reliably estimated Provisions are
measured at management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obhigation at the balance sheet date

Promotional activities - Provisions for promotional activibies such as the cosmetics loyalty scheme are recognised where the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation to provide a customer with goods or services

Restructuring - Provisions for restructunng are recogmsed when the Group has a detatled formal plan for the restructunng that has been
communicated to affected parues

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of new shares 1n equity are shown as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where the Company purchases 1ts own ordinary shares, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) 15 deducted from equity attnbutable to the Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued
Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attnbutable incremental
transaction costs together with the related income tax effects, are inciuded 1n equuty attributable to the Company s equuty holders

Derivatives

Denvatives comprse mterest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts Dervatives are irmtially recognised at fair value on the
date a denvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value The method of recognising the resulting gain
or loss depends on whether the denvative 15 designated as an effective hedging instrument and the nature of the item being hedged
The Group designates certain denivatives as hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges)

At the inception of the transaction, the Group documents the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged iterns as well asits
nisk management objective and strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactions The Group also documents its assessment, both at

the mception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the dentvatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting

changes in cash flows of hedged items

1) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the changes in fair value of denvatives that are destgnated and qualify as cash flow hedges 1s recognised 1n
equity The gan or loss relating to the meffective portion is recogrised immediately i the relevant ine of the income statement which
will be affected by the underlying hedgeditemn Forward exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges are de-designated and
subsequently classtfied as “held for tracing” when the underlying forecast transaction 13 recogrised i the financial statements

Amounts accumulated i equity are reclassified and adjusted against the imtial measurement of the underlying hedged item when
the underlying hedged item 1s recogrused on the balance sheet or in the income statement

When a hedged instrument expires, 1s sold or when a hedge ne loenger meets the cntena for hedge accounting, hedge accounting

1s discontinued Any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time 1s held in equity until the forecast transachion occurs
When a forecasted transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the curnulative gatn or loss that was reported 1n equuty 15 immediately
reclassified to the relevant line of the income statement which would have been affected by the forecasted transachon

1) Denvatives That Do Not Qualify For Hedge Accounting
Certain denvatives do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in fair value of any denvative istrurnents that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the income statement within finance costs
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2 Accounting policies conunued

New standards and interpretations

New or revised standards or mnterpretations which were mandatory for the first tme 1n the financial year beginning 4 September 2011
did not have a matenal impact on the net assets or results of the Group

At the date of approval of these financial statements, IAS 19 {(Revised) “Employee Benefits™ was 1n 1ssue, but not yet effective
Other standards and mterpretations mn issue, but not yet effective, are not expected to have a matenal effect on the Group's net
assets or results

The directors anticipate that the adopuion of IAS 19 (Revised) "Employee Benefits , in the financial year starting 1 September 2013, will
potennally have a matenal impact, dependent upon market conditions, on the inanaial statements of the Group The revised standard
15 expected toincrease net finance costs and reduce operating profit The extent of this impact 1s currently being assessed

3 Segmental reporting

IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires disclosure of the operating segments which are reported to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
("CODM") The CODM has been identifted as the executive commuttee, which includes the executive dwectors and other key
management It 1s the executive commuttee that has responsibility for planmng and controlling the activities of the Group

The Group's reportable segments have been identified as the UK and intemational These have been re-stated from the previous
financial year to better reflect the way in which financial performance 1s managed The segmennts are reported to the CODM to operating
profit level, using the same accounting policies as apphed to the Group accounts The Group does not review the assets and habilities by
operating segment as these are reviewed on a group-wide basis given their transposable nature As aresult, no such analysis has

been provided
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3 Segmental reporting continued
Segmental analysis of results

UK International Total
£m £m £m
Financial year ended 1 September 2012
Gross transaction value 2204.6 5034 2,708.0
Concessions, consignments, staff discounts and loyalty schemes (3443) (133.9) (478.2)
External revenue 18603 369.5 2,298
Operating profit 1443 30.7 175.0
Other segment items
- Depreciation 72.6 9.8 824
- Amortisation of intangible assets 7.7 15 9.2
Financial year ended 3 September 2011 (re-stated)
Gross transaction value 21811 498 2 26793
Concessions, consignments, staff discounts and loyalty schemes (3305) (1390} (4695}
External revenue 18506 3592 22098
Operating profit 156 2 275 1837
Other segment items
- Depreciation 728 107 835
- Amortisatton of intangible assets 70 15 85
Total segmental operating profit may be reconciled to tota! profit before taxation as follows
1 3 September
2012 2011
£m £m
Total operating profit 175.0 1837
Fmance income 12 39
Finance costs {17.9) (273)
Total 158.3 1603
Revenues analysed by country, based on the customer's location are set out below
1September 3 September
2012 201
£m £m
Umted Kingdorn 18603 18506
Republic of Ireland 136.5 1441
Denmark 142.7 1369
Rest of the world 90.3 782
Total 2,298 22098
Non-current assets, which compnse intangible assets property, plant and equipment and other recervables analysed by country, are set
out below
15eptember 3 September
2012 2011
Em Em
United Kingdom 1,4761 14360
Republic of Ireland 321 392
Denmark 333 352
Rest of the world 43 06
Total 1,545.8 L5110
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4 Gross transaction value

Revenue from concession and consignment sales 1s required to be shown on a net basis, being the commussion received rather than
the gross value achieved on the sale Management believes that gross transactuion value, which presents revenue on a gross basis before
adjusting for concessions, consignments, staff discounts and the cost of loyalty scheme points, represents a good guide to the overall
activaty of the Group

1September 3 September

2012 2011
Em fm
Gross transaction value 2,708.0 26793

A reconcihation of gross transaction vatue to external revenue 1s included i note 3

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumnptions concerrung the future The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historncal expenence and other
factors, mcluding expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances The estimates and
assurmnptions that have a signuficant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities wathin

the next inancial penod are discussed below

Estimated impairment of goodwnil

The Group tests whether goodwall has suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated i note 2 The
recoverable amount of cash-generating units s determmined based on a value-in-use calculation The method requures an estimate
of future cash flows and the selection of a suitable discount rate n order to calculate the net present value of the cash flows Actual
outcomes could vary, see note 13 for frther details

Taxation and deferred taxation

The Group 1s subject to income taxes in the UK, the Republic of Ireland, Denmark and Hong Kong. At each financiak penod end
judgement 1s required 1n determimng the provision for income taxes The Group recogruses habilities for anticipated tax 1ssues based
on the best estimates at the balance sheet date

Significant judgement 15 also required 1n determiming the deferred tax on developer's contributions, fair value losses and gains,
retirement benefit assets and habilihes and other prowvisions The Group recogmises deferred tax assets and habhies based on the
best estimate at the balance sheet date

Where the final tax outcorne of the above matters is different from the amounts that were imually recorded, such differences will impact
the corporation tax and deferred tax provisions in the penod in which such determination 1s made The final outcome of some of these
tax items may give nse to matenal profit or loss and/or cash flow movements

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees The fair value determuned at the grant date 1s expensed

on a straight hine basis over the vesting period The fair value s calculated using the appropnate fair value model wath the estimated level
of vesting being reviewed annually by management The key assumptions of this model are set out 1n note 28

Retirement benefits

The Group's defined benefit schemes’ pension hability/asset, which 15 assessed each penod by actuanes, are based on key assumptions
including return on plan assets discount rates, mortality rates, inflation, future salary and pension costs These assumptions,
indmadually or collectively, may be different to actual outcomes

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions, additional information relating to this
1s disclosed In note 23

Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment
The Group estimates the useful life of propernty, plant and equipment and reviews this estimate at each financial perniod end The Group
also tests for impairment whenever a tngger event occurs

inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the retaill methoed and represent goods for resale This method
intnnsically takes into account any stock loss or mark down to goods sold below cost Concession inventories are not included within
mnventory held by the Group
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6 Operating profit
1September 3 September
2012 201
£m £m
The following items have been included in arriving at operating profit:
The amounts of inventory wrnitten down dunng the financial year 13.0 129
Cost of inventories recogrused as an expense 1,131.2 11175
Employment costs {note 7) 360.0 3728
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 14) 824 835
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 13) 9.2 85
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 0.2 01
Operating lease rentals 2036 2073
Foreign exchange gains (14.8) 27
Auditors’ remuneratton 0.4 04
Services provided by the company’s anditor and network firms
Dunng the financial year the Group obtained the following services from the Company’s auditor as detailed below
1September 3 September
2012 2011
Em fm
Audit services
Fees payable to the Company s auditor for the audit of the Parent Company and consohdated accounts 0.2 02
Other services
The audit of the Company's subsidianies pursuant to legislation 0.1 01
Fees payable to the Company s auditor and 1ts associates for other services
- Other services 0.1 0l

Other services comprnse advisory work relating to indirect taxation £0 1 million (2011 adwisory work relating toindirect taxation
of £0 1 mullion) and £38 000 (2011 £28,000) relating to the defined benefit pension scheme audits It is cost effective for the Group

that such services are provided by its auditors in view of their knowledge of the Group's affairs
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7Employees

1September 3 September
2012 201
£m £m
Wages and salarles 336.1 3376
Soctal secunty costs 21.9 226
Pension cost 0.4 112
Share-based payments (note 28) 1.6 14
Total employment costs 360.0 3728
Number Number

Average number of employees (including key management)
- Fullume 8,355 8735
- Part ime 21,762 21,389
Total 30.17 30,624

Information concermng directors’ remuneration, mnterest in shares and share options 1s included 1n the rermuneration report on pages

66 to 74, which forms part of these financial staternents

Key management compensation

1 September 3 September

2012 2011

£m £m

Salanes and short-term benefits 2.8 40
Post-employment benefits 05 06
Share-based payments 05 04
Termination payments 1.0 -
48 50

Members of the executive commttee (which ncludes the executive directors} and the non-executive directors are deemed to be key
management It s the board who has responsibility for planming and controlling the activities of the Group Dunng the financial year

key management consisted of 12 members (2011 13 members)

8 Finance income
1September 3 September
2012 201
£m fm
Interest on bank deposits 01 06
Other financing ncome 11 33
1.2 39

9 Finance costs

15eptember 3 September
2012 201
£fm £m
Bank loans and overdrafts 1.7 162
Cash flow hedges reclassified and reported in net profit 2.0 47
Amortisation of 1ssue costs on loans (note 20) 2.9 58
Interest payable on finance leases 0.1 -
QOther financing charges 12 06
17.9 273
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10 Taxation
Analysis of tax charge in the financial year
1September 3 September

2012 201
£m £m
Current tax:
UK corporatiort tax charge on profit for the financial year 434 584
Adjustments in respect of prior pertods (8.9) (16)
Current tax expense 345 568
Deferred taxation:
Ongnation and reversal of temporary differences (3.8) (130)
Pension cost rehef 1n excess of pension charge 29 02
Adjustments in respect of pnor penods (0.6) {09)
Deferred tax credit (note 24) (1.5) (137
Tax charge for the financial year 33.0 431

The effective tax rate for the financial year 1s lower at 20 8% (2011 lower at 26 9%) than the rate of corporation tax 1n the UK of 25 2%
(2011 27 2%) The differences are explamed below

1September 3 September

2012 201
£m fm
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 158.3 1603
Profit on ordinary activities at standard rate of corporation tax 1 the UK of 25 2% (2011 27 2%) 39.9 436
Effects of:
Permanent differences 4.0 08
Overseas tax rates 1.5 08
Utilisation of tax losses (3.1} 23)
Non-qualifying depreciabon and lease transactions 04 35
Effect on deferred taxation of the change 1n corporation tax rate (0.2) (08
Adjustments in relahion to pnor periods (9.5) 25
Tax charge for the financial year 33.0 431

The Fmance Act 2012, which became substannally enacted on 3 July 2012, included legislation reducing the main rate of corporation
tax from 26% to 24% from 1 Apnl 2012 and also reducing the main rate of corporation tax from 24% to 23% from 1 Apnil 2013 A further
reduction to the mam rate 1s proposed to reduce the rate to 22% by 1 Apnl 2014 This further change has not been substantially enacted
at the balance sheet date and 15 therefore not mcluded in these financial statements

The effect of the reduction 1n the corporation tax rate enacted in the Finance Act 2012 has been o reduce the net deferred tax asset
recogmsed at 3 September 2011 by approximately £0 1 mullion This £0 1 million decrease has been recognised n Line with the treatment
of the assets and habilities giving nse to the net deferred tax asset

The proposed reduction of the main rate of corporation tax to 22% from 1 Apnl 2014 1s expected to be enacted separately next year
The overall effect of the further change from 23% to 22%, if apphed to the deferred tax balances at 1 September 2012, would be to reduce
the net deferred tax asset by approximately £0 8 milhion
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11 Dividends
1September 3 September
2012 2011
£m Em
Final paid 2 O pence (2011 nmil pence) per £0 0001 share
- Settled in cash 256 -
Intennm paid 1 0 pence (2011 10 pence) per £0 0001 share
- Settled in cash 12.9 129
385 129

A final dividend of 2 O pence per share (2011 nil pence per share) was paid dunng the financial year i1 respect of the financtal year ended
3 September 2011, together with an intenm dividend of 1 0 pence per share (2011 10 pence per share) in respect of the financial year
ended 1 September 2012 The directors are proposing a final dividend n respect of the financial year ended 1 September 2012 of

2 3 pence per share (2011 2 O pence per share), which will absorb an estimated £29 O mullion (201 £25 6 milhon) of shareholders

funds [t will be paid on 11 January 2013 to shareholders whe are on the register of members at close of business on 7 December 2012

No hability 1s recorded 1n the financial statements 1n respect of the final dividend as 1t was not approved as at the balance sheet date

12 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 1s caiculated by dividing the earnings attnibutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number

of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the financial year, excluding any shares purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares
For diluted earmngs per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 15 adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares The Group has one class of dilutive potential ordinary shares, those share options granted to employees where
the exercise price 15 less than the market pnice of the Company’s ordinary shares dunng the financial year

Basic and diluted earnings per share

1 September 2012 3 September 2011
Baslic Diluted Basic Diluted
Em Em £m £m
Profit for the financial year after taxation 125.3 125.3 1172 1172
Number Number Number Number
m m m m
Weighted average number of shares 1282.0 1282.0 12868 12868
Shares held by ESOP (weighted) 0.7) {0.7) 03 (03
Shares 1ssuable (weighted) - 1.4 - 06
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 1,281.3 1,282.7 12865 1,2871
Pence Penice Pence Pence
per share per share per share per share

Earnings per share 9.8 9.8 91 91
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13 Intangible assets
Acquired  Internally
licencesand  generated Purchased
Goodwall tradernarks software software Total
fm fm Em £m fm

Cost
At 28 August 2010 8187 72 551 62 8872
Additions - - 162 32 194
Exchange rate movement 05 - 01 - 06
Disposals - - 01} - O
At 3 September 2011 8192 72 73 94 9071
Additions - - 146 28 174
Exchange rate movement ©7 - 09 - (16)
Disposals - - ()] (01 08
At1September 2012 818.5 7.2 843 121 922.1
Accumulated amortisation
At 28 August 2010 - 09 342 59 410
Charge for the financial year - 07 68 10 85
Exchange rate movement - - (04 - ©4)
Disposais - - on - O
At 3 Septernber 2011 - 16 405 69 490
Charge for the financial year - 07 72 13 52
Exchange rate movement - - 02 - (02)
Disposals - - o7 {03)} 08
At1September 2012 - 23 468 8.1 57.2
Net book value
At1September 2012 818.5 49 375 4.0 864.9
At 3 Septermber 2011 8192 56 308 25 8581
At 28 August 2010 8187 63 209 03 8462

Expenditure dunng the finanaal year on assets in the course of constiuction icluded pnmanly in software, was as follows
15eptember 3 September

2012 2011
£m fm
Assets in the course of construction 9.1 98

Amortisation of Intangible Assets
Amortisation on the Group's intangible assets has been charged to the income statement as follows for the financial years ended

1 September 3 September

2012 2011
£m £m
Included within

- Cost of sales 7.7 72
- Distribution costs 0.2 02
- Administrative expenses 13 11
92 85

Intangible assets includes the following assets held under finance leases

Purchased Software

1September 3 September
2012 2011
£m £m
Cost 15 14
Accumullated depreciation (0.8) 03}

Net book valuize 0.7 11
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13 Intangible assets continued

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwll 1s not amortised but 1s reviewed on an annual basis or more frequently if there are indicatons that goodwill may be impaired
Goodwill represents the goodwill for a portfolio of sites, which has been allocated to groups of cash-generating units (‘CGUs"}sphiton a
regional basis according to the level at which management monitors that goodwill This allocaton was primanly undertaken subsequent
to the acquisition in December 2003 of the Debenhams stores by Debenhams plc The CGUs are set out below

North Midlands South-East South West South Other Total
£m Em fm fm £m £m £m
Goodwnll 1593 184 3 1801 1853 1028 67 818.5

For the purposes of this impairment review, the recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determuned based on value-in-use calculations
These cash flow projections are based on financial budgets approved by management covenng a five year penod The key assumptions
used n these projections are sales growth and discount rates The five year plan 1s bult up using management's previous expenernce and
mcorporates management s view of current economic conditions and trading expectations Cash flows beyond the five year period are
extrapolated based on the assumption of 2% growth after year five The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the retail sector i whuch the CGUs operate The pre-tax discount rate used to calculate the value-m-use was 8 2% (2011 8 9%) and
reflects the specific nsks in the retall business

Management determuned the gross margin for each CGU based on performance of individual stores and its expectanons for the market
development The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports The discount rates
used are pre-tax and nsk-free rates Based on the value-in-use calculations, there 1s substantial headroom on a region by reglon basis and
areasonably possible change in the assumptions used would not cause an impairment to goodwill

As aresult of the impaimment review, as at 1 September 2012 no impairment of goodwatll has been required (2011 nil)
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14 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buldings
Short-leasehold
Long fixtures and Vehicles fixtures
Freehold leasehold fiangs  and equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 28 August 2010 506 15 3391 7763 11775
Additions - 03 17 827 947
Exchange rate movements - - 06 44 50
Disposals and wnte-offs 49 0) 5D - (451) (99 2)
At 3 September 2011 16 67 3514 8183 11780
Additions - 04 28 110.2 1134
Exchange rate movements - - (13) 74) 87
Disposals and wnte-offs - - (03) (390) (393)
At1September 2012 16 71 3526 8821 1.243.4
Accumulated depreciation
At 28 August 2010 21 15 832 4146 5014
Charge for the financial year - o1 147 687 835
Exchange rate movements - - 01 21 22
Disposals and wnte-offs a9 {10} - (40 8) (437)
Reclassification - - (©2) 02 -
At 3 September 2011 02 06 978 4448 5434
Charge for the financial year - 01 149 674 824
Exchange rate movements - - ©3 (46) 49
Insposals and write-offs - - (03) (388) (391)
At 1September 2012 0.2 0.7 112.1 468.8 581.8
Net book value
At 1September 2012 14 6.4 2405 4133 661.6
At 3 September 2011 14 61 2536 3735 6346
At 28 August 2010 485 100 2559 3617 6761
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14 Property, plant and equipment continued

Expenditure dunng the financial year on assets 1n the course of construction included pnmanly 1n vehicles, fixtures and equipment was
as follows

1September 3 September
2012

2011
£m £m
Assets in the course of construction 499 393

Property, plant and equipment inicludes the following assets held under finance leases

Vehicles fixtures

and equipment
1September 3 September
2012 201
Em £m
Cost 10.7 50
Accumulated depreciation (3.5) (34)
Net book value 7.2 16
Contractual commutments at 1 September 2012 were £14 9 mulhon (2011 £5 3 mulhion)
15 Financial assets - available-for-sale investments
£m
At 28 August 2010 78
Disposals (50
Decrease 1n the market value charged to the statement of comprehensive income (02)
At 3 September 2011 26
Decrease in the market value charged to the statement of comprehensive income (07
At1September 2012 1.9

The Group holds 10% (2011 10%) of the 1ssued shares of Emmes Department Stores Liruted (*Ermes”), a company histed on the Cyprus
Stock Exchange The market value of the shares at 1 Septernber 2012 was £1 9 milbion (2011 £2 6 mullion) Ermes 1s a company that 1s
registered and trades 1n Cyprus and its shares are quoted in euros

Dunng the financial year ended 3 September 2011 the Group disposed of 1ts “A” ordinary shares of BF Properties (No 4) Limuted for their
fair value of £5 O million The onginal cost of this investment was £3 O mithion and accordingly £2 O mullion profit was recycled from
other reserves to the income statemnent
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16 Inventories \
1September 3 September
2012 201
£m 3]
Iterns held for resale 3323 3213

17 Trade and other receivables
1September 3 Septemnber

2012 2011
Em £m

Non-current
Other receivables 19.3 183

Other recervables include contractual lease deposits of £15 5 mullion (2011 £17 1 muithon)
1September 3 September

2012 2011
£m fm

Current
Trade receivables 214 227
Allowance for doubtful debts (0.5) (02)
209 225
Other recevables 23 13
Prepayments and accrued income 522 483
75.4 721

At the year-end, £191 million (2011 £200 million) of the trade receivables are denomnated in sterhing, £0 2 million (2011 £0 3 mullion)
are denominated m euros and £2 1million (2011 £2 4 millien) n Darush kroner

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts may be analysed as follows

£m
At 28 August 2010 O
Increase In provision 01
At 3 September 2011 02)
Increase 1n provision (03)
At1September 2012 (0.5)

Trade receivables which are past thetr due date but not impaired amount to £4 O malhion (2011 £4 5 millicn) Trade recetvables which
are past their due date are provided based on estimated 1rrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods At 1 September 2012, £0 5 rmlhon
(2011 £0 2 million) of trade receivables were past their due date and impaired

18 Cash and cash equivalents
1September 3 September
2012 201
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 28.7 237
Short-term bank deposits 15.3 53

44.0 290
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19 Trade and other payables
1September 3 Septemnber
2012 201
£m £m
Trade payables 318.3 2869
Other payables 653 680
Taxation and socal secunty 24.7 269
Accruals 115.0 1061
Deferred income 21 12
5254 4891
20 Bank overdraft and borrowings
1September 3 Septemnber
2012 201
£m £m
Current
Bank overdraft 9.4 62
Term loan faclity - 01
Revolving credit faciity® 151.8 1605
Lease obligations 22 13
163.4 1681
Non-current
Term loan facility® 244.8 2432
Lease obligations 45 14
2493 2446

@ Revolving credtt facthity 1s stated net of unamorised 15sue costs of £3.2 muilion (2011 £4 5 mihion)
@ Term Joan facility 15 stated net of unamortised 1ssue costs of £5 2 mullion (2011 £6 8 million)

The Group has a £650 0 million credit facility compnsing a term loan of £250 0 mulhion and a Revolving Credit Facility ("RCE") of
£400 0 milbon These facihities expire in October 2015, wath an opuion to extend further to October 2016 At 1 September 2012 the
Group's facihities outstanding compnsed the term loan of £250 O rmllion (2011 £250 O milhon} and RCF drawings of £155 O mullion

(2011 £165 ¢ mllion)

In Novernber 2010 the Group cancelled 1ts existing term loan and RCF and drew down on its new £650 O milhon credit faciity

Dunng the current and prior financial years the Group has complied with its covenants relating toits crechit facilines

Issue costs, which manly relate to facility costs, are being amortised over the term of the facilities to October 2015 at the effective
nterest rate based on the commutted amount of the term loan The total amortisation charge relating to the 1ssue costs of the Group s
crecdit faciities cancelled and current for the financial year ended 1 September 2012 was £2 9 milion (2011 £5 8 mallion)
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20 Bank overdraft and borrowings continued

Finance lease obligations

Finance lease obligations relate mainly to information technology systems, print machinery and vehicles leased under hire
purchase contracts

The mimmum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows

1 September 3 Septernber
2012 201
£Em Em
Not later than one year 24 13
Later than one year but not later than five years 4.7 14
71 27
Interest element of fitture instalments (0.4) -
Present value of finance lease obligations 6.7 27
The present value of finance lease obhigations may be analysed as follows
1September 3 September
2012 2011
£m £m
Not later than one year 2.2 13
Later than one year but not later than five years 4.5 14
6.7 27
Maturity of borrowings
The matunties of the Group’s borrowings at carrying value are as follows
1September 3 September
2012 201
£m £m
Amounts falling due:
In one year or less or on demand 163.4 1681
In more than one year but not more than two years 17 09
In more than two years but not more than five years 247.6 2437
412.7 4127
Interest rates
The effective mterest rates at the balance sheet dates were as follows
1 September 3 September
2012 2011
% %
Bank overdraft 188 188
Term loan facillity 2.29 264
Revolving credit fachty 2.29 251
Lease obligations 3.57 280
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21 Financial risk management

a) Financial risks and treasury management

The Group conducts its Treasury activities within the remit of a Treasury Policy, which outhines approved policies, procedures and
authomnty levels The board delegates 1ts responsibility for reviewing and approving Treasury Policy to the Audit Commmttee Reports
are prepared monthly covenng all areas of treasury activity and pelicy compliance and are reviewed by the Chief Finanaal Officer

The board and Audit Committee receive regular reporting covenng treasury activities and policy compliance Group Treasury manages
the Group's funding requirernents and financial nsks in line with the agreed treasury policies and procedures

The Group's financial instruments, other than denvatives, pnmarily include borrowings, cash and hquid resources, available-for-sale
assets, trade recervables and trade payables The main purpose of these financal instruments 1s to manage hquidity or raise finance
for the Group

Group Treasury uses denvative inancial nstruments to manage its interest rate nsks associated with the Group's financing and
currency nsk ansing from the Group's operations The dernvatives used are mainly interest rate swaps and forward currency contracts

The Group's activities expose 1t to a vanety of financial nsks, which nclude
» Funding and iiquudity nsk

o Creditrisk

« Foreign exchange nsk

» Interest rate risk

» Other pnce nsk

The Group's overall nsk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimuse potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance The Group uses denvative financial instruments to hedge certain nsk exposures

The pohaes and strategies for managing these nsks are summansed as follows

1) Funding and kiqudity nisk

Prudent hquidity nsk management imphes sufficient cash and marketable secuntes, the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions Due to the dynarmic nature of the undetlying
business, Group Treasury aims to mamntain flexibihty i1 funding by keeping comnutted crecht lines available

The Group finances its operations by a combination of retaned profits debt finance and leases The objective1s to ensure that there
15 a sufficient cash or working capital facility to meet the cash flow requirernents of the Group for its current business plan

The table below shows the matunty analysis of the Group s net contractual undiscounted cash flows in respect of non-denvative
finanaal habihhes and denvative assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date

Less than Oneto Twoto More than
one year two years five years five years
£m Em £m £m
At1September 2012
Non-derivative financial liabilites:
Borrowings (164.4) - (250.0) -
Interest payments due on borrowings B.7D 5.7) (6.7) -
Finance lease liabhines (2.4) (1.8) 1.7) 12
Trade and other payables (473.1) - - -
Derivative financial assets and labilitles:
Interest rate swaps
- Net settled denvative contracts - payments (30) 2.5) 23) -
Forward forelgn exchange contracts
- Gross settled denvative contracts - receipts 373.2 131.6 - -
- Gross settled denvative contracts - payments {(367.6) (130.9) - -

Total (643.0) (93) (260.7) (1.2)
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21Financial risk management continued
a)Financial risks and treasury management continued
1) Funding and hquidity nsk continued

Lessthan Oneto Two to More than
one year two years five years five years
fm £m £m £m
At 3 September 2011
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Borrowings (1650) - (2500) -
Interest payments due on borrowings O - - -
Finance lease habilties 13 {09 (05) -
Trade and other payables (4334) - - -
Derivative financial assets and labilities:
[nterest rate swaps
- Net settled denvattve contracts - payments (23) 20) 25 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts
- Gross settled denvative contracts - receipts 3328 1218 - -
- Gross settled denvative contracts - payments (340 3) (1214) - -
Total (6096) (25) (2530) -
u} Crecht nsk

Credit sk 1s the nisk that the Group may suffer financaial loss through default by customers or financal institutons The Group has

no signmificant concentrations of credit nsk Sales to retail customers are made 11 cash or by credit and debit cards, wholesale sales of
products to franchisees are made to customers with an appropnate credit history Denvative counterparties and cash transactions are
hrmuted to high credit-quahity financial institutions The Group has policies that lirmut the amount of credit exposure to any one finanaal
msttution The Group's policy requires that cash surpluses are placed on deposit for no longer than three months and only with
counterparties with a credit rating of A- or A3 or higher as assigned by Standard & Poor s or Moody's respectively Exceptions to this
policy require board approval The carrying amount of financiat assets recorded in the financial statemenits net of any provision for
losses represents the Group s maximum exposure to credit nsk.

1) Foreign exchange nsk
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange nsk ansing from vanous currency exposures, prunarily with
tespect to the US dollar, the euro, the Chinese yuan and to a lesser extent the Danish krone

To manage the foreign exchange transaction nisk, entities in the Group use forward currency contracts transacted by Group Treasury
Foreign exchange nsk anses when commercial transactions are denominated in a currency that 1s not the entity’s functional currency
Group Treasury 1s responstble for managing the exposure 1n each foreign currency by using external forward currency contracts with a
settlement of up to two years Forecast cash flows are hedged to the extent that those cash flows are deemed highly probable The Group
regularly reviews the need to hedge foreign exchange exposure ansing from the profits, assets and habilihes of its non-sterling
businesses, hedging those exposures to the extent that they are considered appropnate for hedging.

A gain of £19mllion (2011 loss of £1 8 milhion)} was reclassified from equuty to the income statement within cost of sales duning the year
1n respect of forward foreign exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges

The notional value of open forward foreign exchange contracts at 1 Septermnber 2012 was £503 7 million (2011 £461 1milhon) The net fair
value gains on open forward foreign exchange contracts at 1 September 2012 are £5 O mulhon (2011 losses of £42 million} This wall be
recycled and adjusted against the imitial measurement of the acquisition cost of inventory over the next two years

Dunng the current and prior financiat years there were no contracts reclassified to “held for trading™ due to cash flow hedges
being ineffective

1) Interest rate nsk
The Group s interest rate nsk anses from long-term borrowings The Group s current borrowing facihities are 1ssued at varable rates that
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk

The mnterest exposure of the Group 1s managed withan the constraints of the Group’s business plan and the financial covenants under
its facihinies The aim 1s to reduce exposure to interest rate movements and to take advantage of low mterest rates by hedging an
appropnate amount of interest rate exposure whilst maintaining the flexibility to minimise early termumnation costs The Group's
mterest rate hedging strategy 1s to achieve a target fixed percentage of 75%, with a 15% tolerance (60%-90%)

The impact of movements mn interest rates 1s managed through the use of floating rate debt and interest rate swaps These are usually
matched with spealfic loans for a penod of time up to thewr matunty or call date

The Group's mai interest rate exposure 1s from the floating rate loans under the credit facilities At the year end the Group s hedged
borrowings amounted to £330 O million (2011 £3275 mullion), being 78 3% (2011 78 4%) of the Group's total borrowings
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21 Financial risk management continued

a)Financial risks and treasury management continued

1) Interest rate nsk continued

Interest rate swaps

The Group's interest rate swaps switch interest from floating rates to fixed rates The Group's interest rate swap portfolio 1s summansed
as follows

Notional Rate
£m % Matunty
Interest rate swaps 3300 084%-1865%  310ctober 2015

The notional principal amount of interest rate swaps at 1 September 2012 was £330 0 mullion (2011 £327 5 million) The net gains and
losses on these swaps, wiich are deferred 1n equity, will reverse through interest in the income staternent aver the hife of the swaps
Dunng the finanaial year a loss of £2 O mulhon (2011 £4 7 mullion} was reclasstfied and reported 1n the income statement 1n respect

of interest rate swaps

Financial habilities and assets
The interest rate profiles of financial kabilities after taking account of interest rate swaps, swapped from floating to fixed rates, used
to manage interest were as follows

1September 2012 3 September 2011
Fixed Floating Total Fixed Floating Tota}
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities
Sterhng®™ (336.7) (84.4) (42L1) (3303) (937} (424 0)

™ Debt sssue costs of £8 4 mullten: (2011 £11 3 mudhon) are excluded from the financial habilities above

Fixed sterling finanaal habilities compnse the hedged portion of the debt facility of £330 O mullion and finance lease Labihties of
£67 mullion at 1 September 2012 The weighted average interest rate on the fixed rate borrowings as at 1 September 2012 was 3 3%
(2011 3 &%), with the weighted average tirne for which rates are fixed being 3 2 years (2011 4 2 years) Floating rate borrowings are
nterest beanng at interest rates based on LIBOR Cash deposits are interest beaning at rates based on LIBID or relevant base rates
Non-interest beanng cash refers to cash mn stores or in transtt

Floating rate borrowings have been classified as fixed if there were denvative financial mstruments hedging the floating rate interest
for more than one year

The interest rate profiles of financial assets were as follows

1September 2012 3 Septemnber 2011
Non-interest Non-nterest
Floating bearing Total Floating bearing Total
Em Em £m fm Em £m
Financial assets
Sterhng 135 23.7 37.2 05 207 212
Euros 1.3 1.9 3.2 08 12 20
USdollars 0.3 05 0.8 09 - (0)°]
Danish kroner - 19 19 31 18 49
Chinese yuan 03 - 03 - - -
Other - 0.6 0.6 - - -
Total financial assets 15.4 28.6 44.0 53 237 290
v) Other pnice nsk

The Group is exposed to price nsk ansing from equity investments

The sensinvity analysis below has been deterrmined based on the exposure to equity price nsk at the reporting date At the year end,
iIf the market value had been 10% higher/lower, based on the Group's view of reasonably possible changes to the value of the equity
investments, when all other vanables were held constant

¢ Net profit would have been unaffected as the equity mvestments were classified as available-for-sale mvestments, and

e Other reserves would decrease/increase by £0 2 million (2011 £0 3 milhon) for the Group as a result of the changes in the farr value
of available-for-sale investments
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21 Financial risk management continued

b) Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s abihity to continue as a going concern, provide returns for
shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders and to maintain a structure to optimise the cost of capital The Group defines capital
as debt and equity

In order to mantain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may consider the amount of dividend paid to sharehoiders, the return
of capital to shareholders, the 155ue or sale of shares, or the sale of assets to reduce debt

The Group routmely mornztors its capital and hquuidity requirements through leverage ratios consistent with mdustry-wide borrowing
standards, mamntairing suitable headroom to bank facihity fixed charge and leverage covenants together with credit market
requirements to ensure financng requarements continue to be serviceable

c) Fair value estimates
The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s calculated as the present value of the estmated future cash flows The fair value of forward
currency contracis has been determined based on discounted market forward currency exchange rates at the balance sheet date

The farr values of short-term deposits, loans and overdrafts with a matunty of less than one year are assumed to approximate to their
book values In the case of the Group's loans due in more than one year, the fair value of financial habilities for disclosure purposes
15 estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rates available to the Group

There were no matenal differences between the carrying value of non-denvative financial assets and finanaal labihnes to their fair
values at the year end

d) Sensitivity analysis

The Group mortors interest rate nsk and foreign exchange nsk by deterrmning the effect on profit of a range of possible changes in
interest rates and foreign exchange rates The range of sensitivities chosen, being 1% movement 1n the interest rate or 5% movement
1n sterhng when compared to US dollar, Chinese yuan, Darush krone and euro reflects the Group s view of reasonably possible changes
to these nsk vanables which existed at the year end

The table below illustrates the estimated impact on the Group as a result of rnarlet movements 1n foreign exchange and interest rates
1 relation to all the Group's financial mstrurnents The analysis has been produced assurming no changes 1n the borrowings and existing
interest rate swaps portfolio when considering the interest rate movement The table below illustrates the estimated 1impact on the
Group as a result of market movements In intefest rates in relation to all the Group's financial instrurmnents that are expressed in
currencies cifferent to that of the functional currency

1 September 2012 3 September 2011
Income Income
statement Equity statement Equity
gain/(loss) gain/(loss) gan/(loss) gain/(loss)
£m £m fm £m
1% ncrease In 1nterest rate (0.7) 1.5 {0 9) 63
1September 2012 3 September 2011
Income Income
statement Equity statermnent Equity
gain/(loss) gain/(toss) gan/(loss) gam/(loss)
Em £m fm £m
5% weakening n sterhng compared to US dollar 0.1 121 04 18
5% weakemng wn sterhng compared to the euro (0.3) (2.4) (04) (32)
5% weakening m sterling compared to Danish krone (0.9) - (02) -
5% weakening in sterling compared to Chinese yuan - 1.7 - -

A 19 decrease n nterest rate or 5% strengtherung in sterhng compared to the US dollar, euro, Darush krone or Chinese yuan would
resit in an equal and opposite change in the iIncome statement and equity respectively
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22 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities by category

Information regarding the Group’s financial nsk management policies has been disclosed in note 21 All financial assets and habilities
are held at amortised cost with the exception of denivative financal instrumnents and available-for-sale assets, which are held at fair
value The following table sets out the classification and carrying value of each class of financial assets and Liabihties within the
financial statermnents

Loan
Derivatives receivables
designated andfinancial

Available- Heldfor ascashflow liabilitles at
for-sale trading hedges amortised cost Total
£m £m Em £m £m

At1September 2012
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 44.0 44.0
Trade and other receivables - - - 23.2 232
Forward foreign currency contracts - 12 6.6 - 7.8
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables - - - 19.3 19.3
Available-for-sale finanaial assets 1.9 - - - 1.9
Forward foreign currency contracts - - 0.8 - 038
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables - - - (498.5) (498.5)
Curtent borrowings - - - (163.4) (163.4)
Forward foreign currency contracts - 0.1 (1.8) - (1.9)
Non-current liabilities
Non-current borrowings - - - (249.3) (249.3)
Interest rate swaps - - (8.3) - (8.3)
Forward foreign currency contracts - - {0.6) - (0.6)
Total 19 11 3.3) (824.7) {825.0)
At 3 September 2011
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivaients - - - 290 290
Trade and other recelvables - - - 238 238
Forward foreign currency contracts - 02 10 - 12
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables - - - 183 183
Avalable-for-sale financal assets 26 ~ - - 26
Interest rate swaps - - 01 - 01
Forward foreign currency contracts - - 13 - 13
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables - - - (461 1) (4611)
Current borrowings - - - (1681) (1681}
Interest rate swaps - - {03 - (03)
Forward foreign currency contracts - 22 (60) - 82}
Non-current liabilities
Non-current borrowings - - - (244 6) (244 6)
Interest rate swaps - - (38) - (38)
Forward foreigh currency contracts - - 04 - (04)

Total 26 20) (81) (8027) (8102)
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22 Financial instruments continued

Fair value measurement

The Group has adopted the amendment to IFRS 7 which requires financial instruments to be grouped nto a fair value hierarchy
based on the lowest level input that is sigmficant to the farr value measurement The three levels of the hierarchy are

e Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) based on active markets for identical assets or habilities

s Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly
(that s, prices) or incirectly (that 1s, derived from prices)

» Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or Liability that are not based on observable market data
The following table shows the Group's finanaal assets and habilities as measured at fair value at 1 September 2012

Levell Level2 Level3 Total
£m £m £m £m
Assets
Available-for-sale financal assets 19 - - 19
Denvative financial instruments
- Forward foreign currency contracts held as cash flow hedges - 7.4 - 7.4
- Other forward foreign currency contracts - 1.2 - 12
Total assets 19 86 - 10.5
Liabilities
Denvative financial instruments
- Interest rate swaps held as cash flow hedges - (8.3) - 83)
- Forward foreign currency contracts held as cash flow hedges - 2.4 - 2.4)
- Other forward foreign currency contracts - {0.1) - (0.1)
Total liabilities - (10.8) - (10.8)
The following table shows the Group’s financial assets and habilities as measured at fair value at 3 September 2011
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
fm fm £fm fm
Assets
Available-for-sale finannal assets 26 - - 26
Denwvative financial instruments
- Interest rate swaps held as cash flow hedges - 01 - 01
- Forward foreign currency contracts hetd as cash flow hedges - 23 - 23
- QOther forward foreign currency contracts - 02 - 02
Total assets 26 26 - 52
Liabilities
Denvative financial instruments
- Interest rate swaps held as cash flow hedges - 41} - (41)
- Forward foreign currency contracts held as cash flow hedges - 64 - (64)
- Other forward foreign currency contracts - 22) - 22
Total lablilities - (127 - az?n

The Group disposed of its level 3 investment during the financial year 2011 For further details see note 15 to the financial staternents
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23 Retirement benefit obligation

The Group operates defined benefit type pension schemes, being the Debenhams Executive Pension Plan (‘'DEPP*) and the
Debenhams Retirement Scheme ("DRS") (together “the Group's pension schemes”), the assets of which are held in separate
trustee-administered funds

Both pension schemes were closed for future service accrual from 31 October 2006 The closure to future accrual wall not affect
the pensions of those who have retired or the deferted benefits of those who have left service or opted out before 31 October 2006
Future pension arrangements are provided through a money purchase stakeholder plan m the UK and Hong Kong or a defined
contrtbution scheme for the employees in the Republic of Ireland and Denmark

In accordance with the recovery plan for the Group s pension schemes, which 1s intended to restore the schemes to a fully funded
position on an ongemg basis the Group agreed to contnibute £5 8 milhon per annum from 1 Apnl 2009 to 31 March 2011 increasing
by annual Retall Pnce Index ("RPI™) from the year to 31 December 2009 to fund past service benefits The Group agreed to increase its
contnbutions to the Group's pension schemes to £7 O million per annum from 1 April 2011 until 31 August 2021, mcreasing by annual
RPI from the year to the previous December The Group has also agreed to make a further increase n its contnbutions to the pension
schemes to £8 9 million per annum for the penod from 1 Apnl 2012 to 31 August 2022 increasing by the percentage increase in the
RPI over the year to the previous December

Additionally, the Group has agreed to cover the non-investment expenses and levies of the pension schemes, including those payable
to the Pension Protection Fund

If the Company had pad or declared a dividend dunng the peniod from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2011, the Group would have made
further contnbutions of 3 1% and 1 %% of the total amount of the ordinary dividend to the DRS and DEPP respectively No dividends
were declared by the Company durmg this period

The mvestment strategy for the Group s pension schemes was changed dunng the year ended 3 September 2011 Investment of the
schemes assets 1s now arranged by AON Hewitt Limited under a delegated consultng service agreement As at 1 September 2012 most
of the schernes assets are invested in a delegated hability fund or a delegated growth fund, with some legacy holdings from the former
investment strategy due to be transferred to the delegated consulting service arrangement in the future

Actuanal valuations of the Group s pension schemes using the projected unit basis were carned out at 31 March 2011, and updated

as at each relevant year end for the purposes of [AS 19 "Employee Benefits” by Towers Watson Limited, a qualified independent actuary
The 31 March 2011 actuanal valuation has been used when calculating the IAS 19 Employee Benefits” valuation at 1 September 2012
The major assumphions used by the actuary were

1September 3 September 28 August

2012 201 2010

per annum per annum per annum

% % %

Inflaticn assumption 290 330 320
General salary and wage increase 2.90 330 320
Rate of increase 1n pension payments and deferred payments 2.90 330 320
Pension increase rate 280 320 310
Discount rate 4.70 575 500

The expected return on scheme assets 1s based on market expectations at the beginrung of the year for return over the entire life of the
defined benefit obligation

The inflation assumption is based on the RPI rate as pension increases both mn payment and deferment within the schemes are set out
with reference to this measure

1September 2012 3 September 201t 28 August 2010

Long-term Long-term Long-term

rate of return 1ate of return 1ate of return

expected expected expected

per annum Per annum per annum
% £m % £m % £m

Assets

Delegated habihity fund - 105.5 - o907 - -
Delegated growth fund - 464.2 - 4334 - -
Legacy holdings - 1.7 - 239 - -
Equihes - - - - 82 2470
Bonds - - - - 50 2449
Property - - - - 73 203
Cash and other assets - 123 - 35 38 116
Total market value of assets 7.0-7.4 583.7 7881 5515 66 5238
Present value of schemne labilities (641.0) (547 6) {604 5)

(Deficit)/surplus in scheme (57.3) 39 (807
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23 Retirement benefit obligation continued

The expected rates of return on assets for the schemes as at 1 Septernber 2012 have been denved from the target returns specified m the
current Statement of Investment Prnciples for each scheme, and have been set at 7 0% (2011 7 8%) for the DEPP and 7 4% (2011 81%)
for the DRS At previous year ends, prior to 3 September 2011, the expected rates of return on assets were derived as the weighted

average of the expected rates of return from each of the main asset classes

Assumphtions regardimg future mortality experiences are based on the mortality tables shown below

1September 3 September

2012 2011

Male and Male and

female female

Debenhams Retirement Scheme S1IPMA L+1 PNMAOO +1
Debenhams Executive Penston Plan SIPFA_L+1 PNFADO-2

The current life expectancies of a pensicner retinng aged 65 underlying the mortality tables for each of the schemes above are as follows

1September 2012 3 Septernber 2011
Years Years Years Years
Male Female Male Female
Debenhams Retirement Scheme
Member currently aged 65 24 243 214 232
Member aged 65 1n 15 years 23.4 254 223 240
1September 2012 3 September 2011
Years Years Years Years
Male Female Male Female
Debenhams Executive Pension Plan
Member currently aged 65 24.4 25.8 240 258
Member aged 651n 15 years 254 269 248 265
The actual return on scheme assets was as follows
1September 3 September
2012 2011
£m £m
Returm on scheme assets 424 386
The amounts recogrused in the income statement are as follows
1September 3 Sepiernber
2012 2011
£m fm
Interest on penston scheme habilities 309 298
Expected return on pension scheme assets (42.6) (307
Total credit included within staff costs (1.7) (09)
The total credits included are as follows
1September 3 September
2012 2011
£m £m
Cost of sales 9.7) 08)
Distribution costs 0.1) -
Administrative expenses (1.9) [(e])]
Total credit (11.7) (09)
Changes 1nn the present value of the defined benefit obhgations are as follows
1September 3 Septermnber
2012 201
£m £m
Present value of obligations at start of the financal year 547.6 6045
interest on pension scheme habilines 30.9 298
Benefit payments by the fund (18.2) {175)
Actuanal losses/(gains) 80.7 692)
Present value of obligations at end of the financial year 641.0 5476
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23 Retirement benefit obligation continued
Changes in the fair value of pension scheme assets are as follows
1September 3 September
2012 2011
£m fm
Fair value of pension scheme assets at start of the finanaal year 5515 5238
Benefits paid (18.2) (175)
Company contnbutions 94 79
Expected return on pension scheme assets 42.6 307
Actuanal {losses)/gains (1.6) 66
Fair value of pension scheme assets at end of the financial year 583.7 5515
Movement in (deficit)/surplus dunng the financial year
1September 3 September
2012 2011
£m Em
Surplus/{deficit) in the schemes at start of the financial year 3.9 (807
Movement in the finanaal year
- Pension credit 1.7 09
- Company contributions 94 7%
- Netactuanal (losses)/gains {82.3) 758
{Deficit)/surplus in the schemes at end of the financial year {572.3) 39
Cumulative actuanal gamns and losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
1September 3 September
2012 2011
£m £m
At start of the financial year (50.4) (126 2)
Net actuanal (losses)/gamns recogrised in the financial year (82.3) 758
Net actuarial losses recognised at end of the financial year 132.7) (504)
History of experence gains and losses
1September 3 Septemnber 28 August 29 August 30 August
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Actuanal losses/(gains) ansing on scheme assets
- Amounts £1.6m £(6 6)m £(120)m £627m £557m
- Percentage of scheme assets 0.3% (12)% (23% 128% 106%
Expenence losses/{gains) ansing on defined benefit
obhgation
- Armnounts £6.9m £{51)m £76m £(18 2)m fl46m
- Percentage of the present value of scheme habilities L1% (09)% 13% 34)% 29%
Present value of scheme liabilities £(641.0)m £(5476)m £(6045)m (5420m  £(5006)m
Fair value of scheme assets £583.7m £5515m £5238m £4884m £5256m
(Dehat)/surplus £(57.3)m £39m £(807)m £(536)m £250m

The contnbutions expected to be paid dunng the financial year ended 31 August 2013 amount to £10°5 mullion

Other Debenhams defined contribution schemes

The Group contnibutions to other defined contnbution schemes dunng the financial year were £12 0 mullion (2011 £11 8 rmallion)
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24 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax 1s calculated mn full on temporary differences under the hability method using a tax rate of 23% (2011 25%) for the UK

differences and the local tax rates for overseas differences

1September 3 Septemnber
2012 2011
£m £m

Non-current
Deferred tax assets 83.2 757
Deferred tax liabihties (64.7) (741)
185 16

Deferred tax assets have been recogmsed in respect of temporary differences giving nse to deferred tax assets because 1t 1s probable that

these assets will be recovered
The movement on the deferred tax account 15 as shown below

Developer's Retirement
contmnbution Fair value Other benefit
recerved losses provisions asset Total
Assets £m £m £m £m fm
AL 28 Aupgust 2010 444 48 210 218 920
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 28 - 79 2 105
Result of the change 1n the standard rate of corporation tax
charged to the income statement (32) (04) {16) (03] (53)
Charged to the statement of comprehensive income - - - (215) 215)
At 3 September 2011 440 44 273 - 757
{Charged)/credited to the income statemnent (68) (24) 91 (29) (30)
Result of the change in the standard rate of corporat:on tax
charged to the income staternent 29 01 (28) 02 (54)
Credited to the statement of comprehensive income - - - 159 159
At1September 2012 343 21 33.6 13.2 832
Accelerated Returement
tax Fairvalue benefit
depreciation gains liability Total
Liabilities £m £m £m fm
At 28 August 2010 (787 51 - (838)
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 28 {06) - 22
Result of the change in the standard rate of corporation tax charged
to the income statement 59 04 - 63
Credited/(charged) to the statement of comprehensive ncome - 22 ad 12
At 3 Septernber 2011 (700) 31 10y (741)
Credited to the income statement 18 27 - 45
Result of the change 1n the standard rate of corporation tax charged
to the income statermnent 54 - - 54
(Charged)/credited to the statement of comprehensive incorne - (15) 10 (05)
At1September 2012 (62.8) 1.9} - 64.7)

within other provistons 1s a deferred tax asset of £1 7 muthen (2011 £7 8 million) in relation to overseas operations which has been
recogmised In addinon to thas there i1s an unrecogrused deferred tax asset of £11 5 mulhon (2011 £15 8 mulhon) relating to operations

N Denmark.

25 Other non-current liabilities

1 September 3 September

2012 2011

£m tm

Other Labihties 3219 3189

Included within other habihities are lease incentives recerved from landlords either through mittal contnbutions or rent-free penods
These incentives are being credited to the income statement on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease Additionalty,
the Liabiity relates to the spreading of the charges relating to leases with fixed annual increments m rent
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26 Provisions
Closure Promotional  Restructunng Other
provision acnnes provision provisions Total
£m £m £m £m fm
At 28 August 2010 01 33 05 25 64
Charged to the income statement - 104 10 - 114
Unused amounts reversed i the financial year - (29) - on (30)
Uthsed durning the financial year - (60) (08) (06) 74)
At 3 Septemnber 2011 01 48 07 18 74
Charged to the income statement - 102 05 - 107
Unused amounts reversed 1n the financial year - (45) - - {45)
Utihsed dunng the financial year - G7) 12 03 72
At1September 2012 0.1 48 - 15 6.4
Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows
1September 3 September
2012 201
£Em fm
Current 53 62
Non-current L1 12
6.4 74
Closure provision

Relating to one vacated butlding which wall be utilised over the term of the lease, being the next two years

Promotional activities provision

Provisions for promotional activities represent the cost to the business of operating an mternal cosmenics loyalty scheme and the
Debenhams Reward Scheme in the Repubhc of Ireland and they are expected to be utilised duning the next 12 months

Restructuring provision

Thus included provisions for redundancy and restructunng costs wathin the Republic of Ireland, Denmark and the UK

Other provisions

The majonty of the Group's other provisions relate to dilaprdations on properties based upon the directors best estimate of the Group s
future habihty The remainder of the other provisions, none of which 1s individually significant represent the best estinate of the
expenditure required to settle present obligations i respect of other Liabilines These provisions are expected to be utiised withun

the next three years
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27 Share Capital and Reserves
1September 2012 3 September 2011

£ Number £ Number

Issued and fully paid - Ordinary shares of £0.0001 each

At start and end of the financial year 128,680 1,286,806,299 128680 1,286,806 295

Dunng the finanaial year ended 1 September 2012, 23,559,155 (2011 nil) of the above shares were purchased by the Company and are
held as treasury shares See retamned earnings below

Employee share trust - interest in share capital
The number of ordinary shares in the Company held by the DRET was as follows

1September 3 September

2012 2011

Ordinary Ordinary

shares shares

Number Number

Debenhams Retall Employee Trust 2004 723,536 723536

The market value of the shares on 1 September 2012 was £0 7 rillion for DRET (2011 £0 4 mullion) The cost of the shares held at the
year end 1s £0 6 mlion (2011 £0 6 muilion)

A descniption of the nature and purpose of each reserve 15 set out below

Share premium account

On admisston to the London Stock Exchange, the Company 1ssued 358,974,359 shares at £1 95, generating proceeds of £700 0 million
Costs directly associated with the 1ssue of the new shares totalled £17 1 million and 1n accordance with the Comparnues Act these costs
were set off against the prerruum generated on 1ssue of the new shares

Merger reserve
The merger reserve of £1 200 9 millilon exists as a result of the 2005 Group recenstruction

Reverse acquisition reserve
The reverse acquisition reserve exists as a resuli of the method of accounting for the 2005 Group reconstruction In accordance with
International Accounting Standards, the 2005 Group reconstruction has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve represents the change in fair value of all interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts which have
been designated as cash flow hedges The effechive portion of the changes in fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualfy

as cash flow hedges 1s recogmsed i equity The gan or loss relating to the neffective portion 1s recognised immedchately 1n the relevant
line of the income statement which will be affected by the underlying hedged item

Other reserves
The other reserve represents the change in fair value in respect of the Group's available-for-sale investments (see note 15) and exchange
differences artsing as part of a reporting entity’s net investment 1n a foreign operation Other reserves may be analysed as follows

Changein

fair value of

Translation available for sale
reserve nvestments Total
£m £m £m
At 28 August 2010 (58) 06 52
Currency translation differences 43 - 43
Change 11 the fair value of available-for-sale investments - 02 (0.2)
Sale of avallable-for-sale mvestments - 20 20)
At 3 September 2011 (15) (16) Gn
Currency translaton differences 67) - 67
Change 1n the fair value of available-for-sale investmentis - 07 (o))
At1September 2012 (8.2) {23) (10.5)

Retained earnings

The Company acquired 23,559,155 of its own shares through purchases on the Lendon Stock Exchange between 24 Apnl 2012 and

7 August 2012 The total amount paid to acquure the shares net of incorne tax was £20 1mulhon The shares are held as treasury shares
The Company has the nght to reissue these shares at a later date All shares acquired by the Company were fully paid
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28 Share-based payments
The total charge to operating profit relates to the following equity settled schemes
1September 3 September
2012 2011
£m Em
Performance Share Plan ('PSP’) 1.4 07
Executive Share Option Plan ("ESOP) 01 02
Share Incentive Plan ("SIP") - 04
Deferred Bonus Matchung Plan (*“DBMP) 01 01
Charge for the financial year 1.6 14
The following table reconciles the movement in shares awarded under the Company share schemes and the weighted average
exerase price (“WAEP") for the ESOF scheme Grants under the PSP, SIP and DBMP all compnse a nght to acquire shares for no
or nominal consideration
DBMP SIP PSP ESOP
Number Number Number Number WAEP Pence
Outstanding at 28 August 2010 - 715,000 5382579 2414,374 951
Granted 849,130 650,000 191250 - -
Exercised - (690.000) - - -
Lapsed - - (3410,092)  (1451682) 1030
Forfeited (12,927) {25,000) - - -
Outstanding at 3 Septernber 2011 836,203 650,000 2163737 962,692 855
Granted - 200000 5,947,558 - -
Forfeited (248,520)  (400,000) (634,410) (131.069) 855
Outstanding at 1 September 2012 587,283 450,000 7,476,885 831,623 85.5

1) The Debenhams Performance Share Plan

The PSP allows the company to grant awards of shares to senior management Anaward under the PSP wall normally vest on the third
anmversary of date of grant and must be exercised within six months of vesting No payment 1s required for the grant of an award

An award under the PSP compnses a night to receive free shares or a ml cost option with performance conditions attached

Awards granted on 24 November 2009 and 23 May 2011
The vesting of the shares granted under these PSP awards 1s dependent on Earnings Per Share ("EPS”) growth

Where growth 1s less than 6% per aninum over the three year peniod the awards lapse Where growth 1s 6% per annuim, 30%
of the shares awarded vest, where growth 15 10% per annurn, awards vest 1n full Between these two points, awards vest on a siraight
line basis between 30% and 100%

Awards granted on 1 November 2011 and 1 May 2012
The vesting of the shares granted under these awards 1s dependent upon the growth of both EPS and Return on Capital
Employed ("ROCE"}

75% of the awards 1s based upon EPS growth Where growth 15 less than 6% per annurmn over the three year pened, this element of the
awards lapse Where growth 1s 6% per annum, 30% of the shares awarded vest, where growth 15 12% per annum, the EPS element of the
awards vestin full Between these two points, awards vest on a straight line basis between 30% and 100%

The remaining 25% of the awards 15 dependent upon ROCE If average ROCE 1s below the cost of capital over the three year penod, this
element of the awards lapse If average ROCE 1s equal to the cost of capital over the three year penod, then 30% of the shares awarded
vest If average ROCE s equal to the cost of capital plus 5% then the ROCE element of the awards vest in full Between these two points,
awards vest on a straight Line basis between 30% and 100%
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28 Share-based payments continued

i) The Debenhams Performance Share Plan continued

Awards granted on 1 November 2011 and 1 May 2012 continued

In accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-Based Payments”, the vesting conditions attached to the PSP are classified as non-market conditions
and therefore the shares have been fair valued at face value with a discount to take into account the non-entitlernent to dividends in the
vesting penod where relevant The fair value of thege PSP awards 15 calculated based on a Black-Scholes model assuming the inputs
shown 1n the table below

1 May 1 Novemnber 23May 24 November
Grant date 2012 2011 2011 2009
Number of shares under award (number} 391,987 5,137,864 161,250 1,755,784
Expected term (years) 30 30 30 30
Share price at grant (pence) 840 640 720 833
Exercise price (pence) - - - -
Risk free rate 0% 0% 0% 23%
Expected volatility 40% 40% N/A 70 0%
Expected dividend yield 35% 74% 50% 0%
Fair value of award (pence) 750 590 620 833

Where volatility has been used in the calculation of farr value it has been estimated by taking the historical volatiity in the Company s
share price

1) Execufive Share Option Plan

The ESOP allows the Company to grant opticns to acquire shares to eligible employees These options will normally become exercisable
following a three year performance perod, only if and to the extent that the performance conditions to which they are subject have been
satisfied Once the options have vested, the employees have a seven year penod in which to exeraise Options are granted with

an exerase price equal to the middle market value of the shares on the day immediately preceding the date of grant

Options granted on 24 November 2009

The vesting of options granted under this plan 15 dependent on the Company’s ROCE exceeding the cost of capital Where the ROCE 15
less than or equal to the cost of capital over a three year penod, no options will vest Wherte the ROCE 1s greater than the cost of capital,
309% will vest, where the ROCE 1s greater than the cost of capital plus 5%, 100% will vest Between these two points the options will vest
on a straight hne basis between 30% and 100% The fair value of the share options has been calculated using a Black-Scholes model
The key assumptions are set out in the table below

24 Novemnber
Grant date 2009
Number of shares under opthion (number) 831623
Expected term (years) 30
Share pnce at grant (pence) 855
Exercise pnce (pence) 855
Risk free rate 23%
Expected volatihity 700%
Expected dividend yeld 0%
Fair value of option {pence) 407

Volatility has been estimated by taking the historical volatility in the Company's share pnce
The weighted average exercise price of the ESOP at 1 Septernber 2012 was 85 5 pence {2011 85 5 pence)

i1i) Share incentive plan
The SIP allows the Company to grant options to key senior managers below board level whom the Company wishes to retain
and incentivise in the short to medium term Once the options have vested the employee has six months in which to exercise
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28 Share-based payments continued
iii) Share incentive plan confinued
Options granted on 16 November 2010 and 21 May 2012
The options granted on 16 November 2010 and on 21 May 2012 have 24 month and 30 month vesting periods respectively, based on
the employee's continued employment and performance targets specific to the employee's role wathin the business, and are granted
with no exercise prnce
The fair value of the SIP options granted 1s calculated based on a Black-Scholes model assuming the nputs shown below
21May 16 November
Grant date 2012 2010
Number of shares under option (number) 200,000 250,000
Expected term (years) 25 20
Share pnce at grant (pence) 800 700
Exercise price (pence) _ _
Risk free rate 0% 0%
Expected volatility 40 0% 100 0%
Expected dividend yield 38% 50%
Fair value of option {pence) 730 633

The opticn over 150,000 shares granted under the SIP on 23 May 2011 was forfeited
iv) Deferred Bonus Matching Plan

The DBMP allows the Company to invite ehgible employees to invest up to 100% of their net annual bonus earned nto shares ("invested
shares”) If the participant remains 1n service for three years and retamns the beneficial ownership of all the invested shares s/he will,
subject to the satisfaction of certain performance conditions be entitied to a matching share award equal to the amount of the pre-tax
bonus that has been invested Once the options have vested they will be released to the employee within one month of the vesting date
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28 Share-based payments continued

iv) Deferred Bonus Matching Plan continued

Options granted on 26 November 2010

All bonus ehgible employees were offered the opporturity to nvest up to 50% of their 2010 bonus into invested shares The entitlerment
to the matching award 15 subject to the paroicipant retaining beneficial ownershup of their invested shares dunng the performance pened
and to the achievement of the following performance conditions The Group s ROCE must exceed the cost of capital by 2% over this
penod otherwise the options will not vest The Group's EPS growth must then exceed 6% per annum over the three year penod or the
options will not vest If the Group s EPS growth 1s 6% or more per annum over the three year period 30% of the options will vest, if the
growth 1s 12% or more per annum over the three year penod, 100% of the options wall vest Between these two points the options wall
vest on a straight hne basis between 30% and 100%

The fawr value of the DBMP options granted 15 calculated based on a Black-Scholes model assuming the inputs shown below

26 November
Grant date 2010
Number of shares under option (number) 587283
Expected term (years) 30
Share price at grant {pence) 740
Exercise price (pence) -
Risk free rate 0%
Expected volatihty 100 0%
Expected dividend yield 50%
Fair value of option (pence) 637
29 Operating lease commitments
1September 2012 3 September 2011
Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other
£m £m £m fm
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Within one year 195.0 14 1939 11
Later than one year and less than five years 7874 23 7799 20
After five years 41738 - 41935 -
5156.2 3.7 51673 31

The Group leases department stores and warehouses under non-cancellable operating leases The leases have vanous terms, escalation
clauses and renewal nghts The Group also leases vehicles and fixtures and equipment under non-cancellable operating leases
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30 Cash generated from operations
1September 3 September
2012

2011
£m fm
Profit for the financial year 125.3 n72
Taxation {note 10) 33.0 431
Depreciation {note 14) 82.4 835
Amortisation (note 13) 9.2 85
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equupment 0.2 01
Profit on disposal of avallable-for-sale nvestment - 20)
Employee options granted dunng the financial year (note 28) 16 14
Fair value (gains)/losses on dervative instruments (3.1) 27
Net movements m provisions (note 26) (1.0} 10
Finance income (1.2) 39
Finance costs 17.9 273
Difference between pension credit and contributions paid (note 23) (21.1) (88)
Net movement in other long term recervables (2.6) 01
Net movement n other non-current liabihhes 2.9 332
Changes in working capital
Increase in wrventones (1L5) (254)
Increase in trade and other recelvables 4.7 (46}
Increasef(decrease) 1n trade and other payables 324 (58)
Cash generated from operations 259.7 2676

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from the disposal of property, plant and equipment and finance leases compnse
1September 3 Septemnber

2012 2011

£m fm

Net book value (note 14) 0.2 555
Less non-cash movement 1n long-term finance leases - (42 8}
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.2) [(O]Y}
Cash proceeds from the disposal of property, plant and equipment - 126

Non-cash transactions
Other non-cash changes comprise

1September 3 September

2012 201

£m fm

Amortisation of 1ssue costs relating to debt 1ssues 2.9 58
Non-cash movements associated with term loan facthity (01) (24)
Revaluation of cash and cash equivalents 03 1o
Less offset to long-term loan - (428)
Non-cash movements associated with finance lease obligations 62 12

Non-cash transactions 93 (352}




Notes to the Financial Staterments continueed

31 Analysis of changes in net debt

3 September Noncash  1September
2011 Cash flow movernents 2012
fm Em £m £m
Analysis of net debt

Cash and cash equivalents 290 153 (03 4.0
Bank overdrafts {62} 32 - 9.4)
Net cash and cash equuvalents 228 121 03 34.6
Debt due within one year (160 6) 100 (12) (151.8)
Debt due after one year {2432y - (16) (244.8)
Finance lease obligations due within one year a3 22 3D 2.2)
Finance lease obhigations due after one year {14) - (3 (4.5)
(3837 243 (93) (368.7)

32 Contingent liabilities

The Group 15 subject to litigation from time to time as a result of its activites The Group establishes provisions in connection with
Iitigation where 1t has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and where 1t15 more hkely that not an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be rehably estimated Since these provisions, which are
reflected 1n the Group's consehdated financial statements, represent estimates, the final reselution of any suchmatters could

have a matenal effect on the Group's operating results and cash flows for a particular reporting penod

33 Principal subsidiary undertakings

The pninapal subsidiary undertalings of Deberthams ple at 1 September 2012 were as follows

Country of Country of
Company incorporation registraticn Activity
Debenhams Retall plc UK England  Department store retailing
Debenhams Group Holdings Limited* UK England Holding company
Debenhams Retail (Tretand) Limited Ireland Ireland  Department store retailling
Akteselskabet Th Wessel & Vett Magas:n du Nord Denmark Denmark  Department store retalling
Debenhamns Properties Limited UK England Property investment
Debenharns Hong Kong Limited HongKong  HongKong Sourcing of goods

*Denotes investments held by the Company All other investrments are held by subsidiary undertakings

The Company has taken advantage of section 410(2) of the Compamnies Act 2006 to list only its principal subsidiary and associated
undertakings at 1 September 2012 Unless otherwise stated, all of these are wholly owned by the Company or 1is subsidiary
undertakings, registered i England and Wales, and operate predeminantly in the Umted Kingdom

All subsidiary companies are consohdated A full ist of subsidianes 1s available from the registered office
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52 weeks 53 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks 52 weeks
2012 200 2010 2009 2008
£m fm £m £m fm
Gross transaction value 2,708.0 26793 25643 23397 23360
Revenue 2,229.8 22098 21199 19156 18392
Cost of sales (1,927.5) {15131 {1,829 5) (16507} (1,5716)
Gross profit 3023 2967 2904 2649 2676
Distnibution costs (81.0) (702) {551) (453) (500}
Administrative expenses (46.3) (428) (402) (374 (415)
Operating profit before exceptional items 175.0 1837 1951 1822 1761
Exceptional items - - 54) - -
Operating profit 175.0 1837 1897 1822 1761
Net finance costs (16.7) (2349) (49 8) (ol 4y (702)
Profit before taxation 158.3 1603 1399 1208 1059
Taxation (33.0) (431) (42 9) (257) (28 8)
Profit for the financial year attributable
to equity shareholders 1253 172 970 951 771
Gross transaction value

Revenue from concessions and consignment sales 15 required to be shown on a net basis, being the commussion received rather than
the gross value achieved by the concessionaie on the sale Management believes that gross transaction value, which presents revenue
on a gross basis before adjusting for concessions, consignments, staff discounts and the cost of loyalty scheme ponts, represents a good

guide to the overall activity of the Group




Five year record balance sheets

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£m £fm Em £m £m

Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 864.9 8581 8462 8399 8408
Tangible assets 661.6 6346 6761 6692 6933
Financial assets 2.7 40 87 90 192
Other receivables 19.3 183 172 - -
Retirement benefit assets - 39 - - 250
Deferred tax assets 832 757 920 806 574
Total non-current assets 1,637 15646 16402 15987 16357
Net current liabilities (267.5) (2920} (6365) (74 4) (296 7)
Non-current liabilities (703.2) (6430) {500 3) (1,099 0) (12137
Net assets 661.0 6596 5034 4253 1253
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 01 01 01 01 01
Share premium account 682.9 6829 6829 6829 6829
Other reserves {12.1) 83 (34) 2889 169
Retained earmings 9.9 151y (176 2) (546 6) (574 6)
Total equity 661.0 6596 5034 4253 1253
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We have audited the Parent Company financial staternents of Debenhams plc for the financial year ended 1 September 2012 which
comprise the Parent Company balance sheet and the related notes The finanicial reporting framework that has been apphed n ther
preparation 1s apphcable law and Unuted Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page 75, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the Parent Company financial staternents and for bemng satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility
1s to audit and express an opinion on the Parent Company financial statements tn accordance with apphcable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comnply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards
for Auditors

This report, mcluding the opimons, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body 1n accordance with Chapter 3

of Part 16 of the Compamnes Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opiruons, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 15 shown or mto whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed
by our pnior consent i wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and chsclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstaterment, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accountng policies are appropnate to the Parent Company's circumstances and have been consistently
apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigruficant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-fmancial mformation in the Annual Report

to 1dentify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements
of Inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the Parent Company finangial statements

o Grve a trie and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 1 September 2012,

» Have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
« Have been prepared 1n accordance wath the requirements of the Comparues Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
[n our opinion

« The part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Compares Act 2006, and

» The information given m the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Parent Company financial statements are prepared

1s consistent with the Parent Company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to repott to yot: If,
1 OUT OpLnIon

 Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returris adequate for our audit have not been recetved
from branches not visited by us, or

« The Parent Company financal statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

» Certain disclosures of directors rernuneration specified by law are not made, or
+ We have not recerved all the information and explanaticns we requure for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial staternents of Debenhams plc for the financial year ended 1 Septermnber 2012

Martin Hodgson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PncewaternouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
25 October 2012




Company Balance Sheet

Company number 5448421
As at 1September 2012
1September 3 September
2012 2011
Note Em £m
Fixed assets
[nvestments 4 2,745.9 27459
Current assets
Debtors 6 135.5 1151
Denvative financial instruments 5 - 01
1355 1152
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 7 (1.175.3) (12127
Denvanve financal instruments 5 - (03
Net current liabilities (1,039.8) (1,097 8)
Total assets less current liabilities 1,706.1 16481
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 8 (244.8) (243 2)
Denvative financal mstruments 5 (8.3) 38
Net assets 1,453.0 14011
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 1 0.1 01
Share prermum account i2 682.9 6829
Hedging reserve 12 {6.4) 29
Profit and loss account 12 776.4 7210
Total shareholders’ funds 13 14530 14011

The financial statements on pages 122 to 128 were approved by the board on 25 October 2012 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

Simon Herrick
Chuef Financial Officer

S Eleal
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For the financial year ended 1 September 2012

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statemnents have been prepared on the going concern basis and 1n accordance with UK GAAP using the historical cost
convention as modified by finanaal assets and financial habilities {including denvative instruments) at fair vatue through profit or loss
These finanaal statements have been prepared in accordance with apphicable accounting standards wathin the Unuted Kingdom and the
Compames Act 2006

The Company 15 also exemnpt under the terms of FRS 8 “Related Party Disclosures” from disclosing related party transactions with
entities that are wholly owned subsidianes

The principal accounting policies, which have been apphed consistently dunng the finanaial year, are set out below

Investments
Investments are held at cost less any provision for impairment

Impairment testing

Assets that have an indefimite useful hfe are not subject to amortisationt and are tested annually for impaurmment Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable Animpairment loss is recogmised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 1ts recoverable amount
The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset's net reabisable value and value-in-use

Borrowings

All borrowngs are stated at the fair value of the consideration recerved after deduction of 1ssue costs Issue costs, together with finance
costs, are charged to the profit and loss account over the term of the bormowings Finance costs represent a constant proportion of the
balance of capital repayments outstanding

Taxation
Current tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates that are 1n force dunng the period

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all timing differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result 1n an obligation to pay more tax 1n the future or a nght to pay less tax tn the future have occurred at the
balance sheet date Tirming differences are differences between the taxable profits and the results as stated in the financial staternents
that anse from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments 1n perlods different from those in which they are recogmsed in the
financial statements

Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis A deferred tax asset 15 regarded as recoverable and therefore recogrused only when,
on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be taxable profits from which the future
reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates which are expected to apply 1n the pernods in which the iming differences are expected
to reverse, based upon tax rates and laws whuch have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Dwvidend distribution
A final dividend distnbution to the Company s shareholders 1s recogmsed as a habihty in the Company's financial statements
1 the period in which the dividend 1s approved by the Company's sharehelders [ntenm dividends are recognised when paid

Share-based payments

Where the Company has granted options over the Company's shares to employees of 1ts subsidianes, a capital contribution has been
deemed made by the Company Thus1s then recharged to the subsichary and 15 based on the fair value of the options 1ssued spread over
the ophons vesting penod. At each balance sheet date, the Company revises 1ts estimate of the number of options that are expected to
vest It recognises the impact of the revision to onginal estimates, if any, with a correspending adjustment to equity
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1 Accounting policies continued
Derivatives
The denvative instruments used by the Company to manage its interest rate nsk are interest rate swaps

Denvatives are imitially recogrused at fair value on the date a denvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value The method of recogrusing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the denvative 1s designated as an effective hedgmg
mnstrurment and the nature of the itern being hedged The Company designates certamn denvatives as hedges of ighly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges)

The Company documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items as
well as 1ts nsk management objectives and strategy for undertalang vanous hedge transactions The Company also documents its
assessment, both at the inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the denvatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective 1n offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged itemns

1) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the changes in fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 1s recogrused in
equity The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion1s recogmsed immediately m the relevant ine of the profit and loss account
which will be affected by the underlying hedged itern

Amounts accumulated 1 equuty are reclassified and adjusted against the imitial measurement of the underlying hedged item when
the underlying hedged item 1s recognised on the balance sheet or n the profit and loss account

When a hedged instrument expires, 1s sold or when a hedge no longer meets the critena for hedge accounting, hedge accounting

15 discontinued Any cumulative gain or loss existing in equuty at that tune 15 held in equaty unul the forecast transachion occurs
When a forecasted transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported 1n equity 1s immediately
reclassified to the relevant line of the profit and loss account which would have been affected by the forecasted transaction

n) Denvatives that do not qualfy for hedge accounting
Certain denvatives do not qualify for hedge accounting Changes 1n fair value of any denvative mstruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of new shares are shown as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where the Company purchases its own ordinary shares the consideration paid, including any directly attnbutable incremental costs
{net of ncome taxes) 1s deducted from equity attnbutable to the Company s equuty holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued
Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration recetved, net of any directly attnbutable incremental
transaction costs together with the related income tax effects, 1s included in equity attnbutable to the Company's equaty holders

2 Profit and loss account

The directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and have not presented

a profit and loss account for the Company however the Cornpany’s profit and loss account has been produced for approval by the board.
A profit of £112 4 milhon 1s attributable to shareholders for the financial year ended 1 September 2012 (2011 £120 2 mullion)

The contracts of employment for all the executive directors are held by Debenhams plc. The total cost of employing the directors
15 disclosed in the remuneration report

Auditors' remuneration of £0 1tllion (2011 £0 1 rmullion) 1s bomne by another Group undertaking

3 Dividends
1 September 3 September
012 2011
£m fm
Final paid 2 0 pence (2011 nul pence) per £0 0001 share
- Settledwncash 25.6 -
Interim paid 1 O pence (2011 10 pence) per £0 000! share
- Settled incash 12.9 129
385 129

A final dvidend of 2 0 pence per share (2011 il pence per share) was paid dunng the year m respect of the financial year ended

3 September 2011, together with an intenm dividend of 1 0 pence per share (2011 1Q pence per share) in respect of the financial year
ended 1 September 2012 The directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 1 September 2012 of

2 3 pence per share {2011 2 0 pence per share), which will absorb an estimated £29 O mullions (2011 £25 6 milhion) of shareholders’
funds It will be paid on 11 January 2013 to shareholders who are on the register of members at close of business on 7 December 2012
No liabihity 1s recorded it the financial staternents in respect of the final dividend as it was not approved at the balance sheet date
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4 Investments
Investments in
subsidiary
undertakings
£m
Cost
At 3 September 2011 and at1 September 2012 4,068.8
Provision for impairment
At 3 September 2011 and at1 September 2012 1,322.9
Net book value
At 3 September 2011 and at 1 September 2012 2.745.9
The directors consider that the carrying value of the investments 1s supported by their underlying net assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings
In accordance with FRS 11 “Impairment of ixed assets and goodwill” the carnynng values of the Company s subsidiary undertakings
have been compared to their recoverable amounts represented by the value-in-use to the Company The review has resulted inan
impairment of rul 2011 ml} The chscount rate used in the calculation to arnve at the valuation was 8 2% (2011 8 9%) on a pre-tax basis
The pnncipal subsidiary undertakings of the Company at 1 Septernber 2012 are shown 1n note 33 of the Debenhams Group financial
statements
5 Derivative financial instruments
1September 3 September
2012 2011
£m fm
Current assets
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges - 01
Current liabilities
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges - (03
Non-current liabilities
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges (8.3) (38)
(8.3) 40)
Informanon relating to the denvatives held by the Company are shown i note 21 of the Debenthams Group financial statements
6 Debtors
1September 3 September
2012 2011
£m £m
Deferred tax asset (note 10} 1.9 11
Amounts owed by Group underiakings 133.6 140
1355 1151

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, repayable on demand and carry an average rate of interest of 3 0% (2011 2 8%)
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7 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
1 September 3 September
2012 2011

£m £m

Bank borrowings (note 9) 151.8 1606
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 1,022.9 1,0515
Accruals 0.6 06
1,175.3 12127

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, have no fixed date of redemption and esther carry an average interest rate of 30%
(2011 2 8%) or are interest free

8 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
1 September 3 September

2012 2011
£m £m
Bank borrowings (note 9) 244.8 2432
9 Borrowings
15eptember 3 September
2012 2011
£m £m
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Revolving credit facihty 155.0 1650
Term loan facthity - ol
Less 1ssue costs (3.2 (45)
151.8 1606
Creditors: amounts falling due in more than one year
Term loan facility 250.0 2500
Less 1ssue costs (52) &8
2448 2432
Maturity of debt
1 September 3 September
2012 2011
£m £m
Amounts falling due
In one year or less or on demand 155.0 1651
In more than one year but not more than two years - -
In more than two years but not more than five years 250.0 2500
405.0 4151

Information relating to the borrowings of the Company 1s shown 1n note 20 of the Debenhams Group finanaal statements

The Group has a £650 0 million credit facility compnsing a term loan of £250 O million and a Revolving Credit Facility (“RCF") of

£400 C mullion These facllities expire m October 2015, with an option to extend further to October 2016 At 1 September 2012 the
Group s faciities outstanding compnsed the term loan of £250 million (2011 £250 0 mullion) and RCF drawings of £155 O mullion {2011
£165 ¢ million) Duning the current and prior financial years the Company has complied with its covenants relating to 1ts credit facihties

Issue costs, which mainly relate to facility costs, are being amortised over the term of the facilities to October 2015 at the effective
nterest rate based on the committed amount of the term loan The total amertisation charge relating to the 1ssue costs of the Group's
crecit facithines cancelled and current for the financial year ended 1 September 2012 was £2 9 rmlhon (2011 £5 8 million)
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10 Deferred taxation
Faur value
gains
£m
At 3 September 2011 - asset 11
Crecited to reserves 08
At1September 2012 - asset 1.9

Deferred tax 1s calculated in full on all temporary differences under the hability method using a tax rate of 23 0% (2011 25 0%)

The Finance Act 2012, wiich became substanhally enacted on 3 July 2012, included legislahon reducing the main rate of corporation
tax from 26% to 24% from | April 2012 and also reducing the main rate of corporation tax from 24% to 23% from 1 April 2013 A further
reduction to the main rate 1s proposed to reduce the rate to 22% by 1 Apnl 2014 Thus further change has not been substantially enacted
at the balance sheet date and 1s therefore not included in these financial statements

The effect of the reduction in the corporation tax rate enacted in the 2012 Act has been to reduce the net deferred tax asset recogrused
at 3 September 2011 by approximately £0 1 ritlion

The proposed reduction of the main rate of corporation tax to 22% from 1 April 2014 1s expected to be enacted separately next year
The overall effect of the further change from 23% 10 22% 1if apphied to the deferred tax balances at 1 September 2012 would be to reduce
the net deferred tax asset be approxinately £0 1 million

Deferred tax provided on the fatr valite gains represents the deferred tax on the denvatives that qualify for cash flow hedges

11 Called-up share capital
1September 2012 3 September 2011
4 Number £ Number
Issued and fully paid - Ordinary shares of £0.0001 each
At start and end of year 128,680 1,286.806,299 128680 1,286,806,299

The Company acquired 23,559,155 of its own shares through purchases on the London Stock Exchange durning the financial year
The total amount paid to acquure the shares net of income tax was £20 1 mulhion The shares are held as treasury shares The Company
has the nght to retssue these shares at a later date All shares acquired by the Company were futly paid

The number of ordinary shares in the Company held by the Debenhams Retail Employee Trust 2004 ("DRET™)1n connection with the
Group's employee ownership plan described 15 as follows

1September 3 September
2012

201

Ordinary Crdinary

shares shares

Number Number

Debenhams Retail Employee Trust 2004 723,536 723536

The market value of the shares at 1 September 2012 was £0 7 million for the DRET (2011 £04 mlhon) The cost of the shares held at the
year end was £06 million (2011 £0 6 milhon)

Share option schemes

At 1 Septemnber 2012 the Group had four schemes in operation the Performance Share Plan ("PSP"} the Executive Share Option Plan
("ESOP"}, the Share Incentive Plan (*SIP") and the Deferred Bonus Matching Plan ("DBMP"} The following table reconciles the movement
1n share options and the weighted average exercise pnce ("WAEF") for the ESOP scheme Grants under the PSP, SIP and DBMP share
optons all compnse a nght to acquire shares for no or norminal consideration

For further information on these schemes please see note 28 of the Debenhams Group financial statements

ESCP

DBMP SIp PSP WAEP

Number Number Number Number Pence

Outstanding at 28 August 2010 - 715000 5.382,579 2414374 951
Granted 849130 650,000 191,250 - -
Exercised - (690,000} - - -
Lapsed - - (3410,092) (1,451,682} 1030
Forfeited (12,927) (25000) - - -
Qutstanding at 3 Septernber 2011 836203 650,000 2163737 962,692 855
Granted - 200,000 5947558 - -
Forfeited (248520)  (400,000) (634,410) (131,069) 855

Outstanding at 1 September 2012 587,283 450,000 7,476,885 831,623 855
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12 Reserves

Share premium Hedging  Profit and loss
account reserve account
fm fm £m
At 3 September 2011 6829 29) 7210
Profit for the financial year - - nz4
Cash flow hedges - net fair vahie losses (net of tax} - 35) -
Employee share ownerstup plans (net of tax} - - 16
Purchase of treasury shares - - (200
Dividends to shareholders (note 3) - - (385)
At1September 2012 6829 {6.4) 776.4

Hedging Reserve

The hedging reserve represents the change in fair value of the interest rate swaps which have been designated as cash flow hedges
Profit and Loss Account
A dnndend of £38 5 mlhon (2011 £12 9 milhon)} was paid by the Company dunng the financial year ended 1 September 2012

13 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
1September 3 September

2012 2011
£m £m
Profit for the financiat year 112.4 1202
Dividends pad (note 3) (38.5) (129)
Retained profit 73.9 1073
Cash flow hedges
- Net farr value (losses)/gains (net of tax) (3.5) 10
Purchase of treasury shares {20.1) -
Employee share ownership plans (net of tax)} 16 14
Net increase to shareholders’ funds 519 1097
Opemng shareholders’ funds 14011 12914
Closing shareholders’ funds 1,453.0 14011
14 Contingent liabilities

The Company 15 also liable for the pension schemes contributions and deficits, where relevant, for both the Debenthams Executive
Pension Plan and the Debenhams Retirement Scheme The liability in the schemes at 1 Septeniber 2012 was £57 3 million (2011 asset
of £3 9 rulhon)

There are a number of contingent habilittes that anse in the normal course of business which, if realised are not expected to result in
a material hability to the Company The Comparny recognises provisions for labihties when 1t 1s more hikely than not that a settlement
wnll be requured and the value of such a payment can be reliably eshmated




Store list

UK
Aberdeen
Altnncham
Ashford

AyT
Ballyrnena
Banbuiry
Bangor
Barrow
Basidon
Basingstoke
Bath
Bedford
Belfast
Bimngham
Rirmingharm Fort
Blackburmn
Blackpool
Bolton
Boumemouth
Brighton
Bristol
Bromley
Bury (Gtr Manchester)
Bury St Edmunds
Cambndge
Canterbury
Carchff
Carlisle
Carmarthen
Chatham
Chelmsford
Cheltenham
Chester
Chesterfield*
Clapham
Colchester
Coverntry
Crawley
Croyden
Derby
Doncaster
Dumfres
Dundee
Dunfermline
East Kilbnde
Eastboume
Edinburgh
Eltham
Exeter
Fallark
Fareham
Famborough
Folkestone

Foyleside
Gateshead -

Metro Centre
Glasgow

Glasgow Silverburn
Gloucester
Gravesend

Great Yarmouth
Guildford

Hanley

Harrogate

Hatrow

Hastmgs

Hemel Hempstead
Hounslow

Hull

Nford

Inverness

Ipswich
Kidderminster
KingsLynn
Kirkealdy
Lakeside

Leeds - City Centre
Leeds - White Rose
Leicester

Letth

Lincoln

Liverpool
Livingston
Llandudno
Llanell

London - Oxford Street
Landon - Westheld
Luton

Manchester
Manchester -
Trafford Park
Mansheld
Merryhill

Merthyr Tydfil
Middlesbrough
Mlten Keynes
Monks Cross
Newbndge
Newbury - Outlet
Newbury - Parkway
Newcastle-upon-Tyne
Newrty
Northampton
Norwich
Nottingham
Nuneaton

Oldham
Orpington
Oxford

Perth
Plymouth
Portsmouth
Preston
Reading
Redditch
Romford
Rushmere
Sahsbury
Scarborough
Sheffield
Sheffield - Meadowhall
Slough
Southampton
Southend
Southport
Southsea
South Shields
Stames
Stirhng
Stockport
Stockton
Stratford-upon-Avon
Sunderland
Sutton
Swansea
Swindon
Taunton
Telford
Torquay
Truro
Uxbnidge
Wakeheld
Walsall
Walton
Warmngton
Welwyn Garden City
Westwood Cross
Weymouth
Wigan
Wimbledon
Winchester
Witney
Woking
Worcester
Workington
Worthing
Wrexham
York

International
Magasin du Nord
Arhus

Fields- Copenhagen
Kgs Nytorv -
Copenhagen
Lyngby

Odense

Radovre

RepublicofIreland
Cork -Mahon Point
Cork - Patnick Street
Dublin - Blackrock
Dublin - Blanchardstown
Dublin- Henry Streat
Dublin - Tallaght
Galway

Limerick

Newbridge

Tralee

Waterford

Franchise stores
Armenia

SAS Home Store

SAS Homne Store (Komitas)
Yerevan

Azerbayan
Baku

Bahram
Manama

Cyprus

Avenue
Apollon
Central
Engom
Kinyras
Konvos
Ledra
Nicosia
Olympia
Zenon

Czech Republic
Prague

Egypt
Alexandna

Georgla
Thhsi*

Hungary
Budapest

Iceland
Reykjavik

India
Bangalare
Delln
Mumbai

Indonesia
Jakarta Senayan City
Karawaa

Kemang Village*

Iran

Mashad

Shiraz

Tehran

Tehran Jame Jam

Jordan
Amman

Kazakhstan
Astana

Kuwant
Airport
Averes
Souq Sharq

Malaysia
Kuala Lumpur
Kuala Lumpur -
The Curve

Malta
Tigne Pomt

Philippines
Davao Abreeza Mall

Marnila Gloneta
MarnulaShangnLa
Manila Tninoma

Qatar
Doha

Romarma
Banessa
Bucharest
Constanta
Oradea
Plaza

Sun Plaza

Russia
Moscow

Palastan
Karachn

Saudi Arabia

Gallery

Jeddah

Jeddah Airport
Khobar

Madinah Al Noor
Mecca

Riyadh Graniada Mall
Riyadh Kingdom Mall
Riyadh Sahara Mall

Istanbul

UAE

Abu Dhabi

Abu Dhabi Dalma*
Dubai Deira

Dubai [bn Battuta
DubaiMall

Dubai Mall of Emirates
Dubai Mirdhff

Sharjah

Vietnam
HoChiMinh City

*Opened after 1 Septernber 2012
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Concessions
Brands wiuch are sold through our stores where the stock belongs to athird party concessionaire They are found chiefly 10 wormnenswear
(eg Wallis, Oasis, Warehouse) and accessories (e g Tnpp luggage)

Corebrands
Brands designed and produced exclusively for Debenhams They inchide brands such as Collection, Mantaray Mame New England and
Red Herring They are found n all product categones

atDebenhams
Exclusive diffusion ranges designed for Debenhams by leading internanional designers mcluding Juben Macdonald, Jasper Conran
and JohnRocha

Earnings pershare (“EPS™)
The profit for the year attributable to shareholders divided by the weighted average number of shares 1n1ssue

EBITDA
Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation

Flagshipstore
Alarge store typically over 100,000 sq ft, inamajor city They include Oxford Street and Westfield in Londen Henry Street in Dublir,
Birrnimgham, Liverpool and Newcastle-uponTyne

Footfall
The number of people who visit our stores

Freecashflow
Cash generated from operations before exceptional itemns less net cash used minvesting achvities

Gross margin
Gross transaction valueless the cost of goods sold, as a percentage of gross transaction value

Gross transaction value
Revenue (excluding VAT) on a gross basis before adjusting for concessions consignments and staff discounts

International brands
Brandssuch as Lewvis, Ben Sherman, Clanns and Estee Lauder for which Debenhams owns the stock,

Market share
The percentage of the market or market segment that 1s being serviced by Debenhams For instance, 1if 100 T-shurts were sold a year in the UK
and Debenhams sold ten of them, it would have 0% market share

Multi-channel

Multi-channel sales compnse those from online, mobile, instore ordenng and chck and collect We use onhne sales as a measure of the growth
of the multi-channel business as it 1s the largest of these sales channels

Own bought brands

Brands for which Debenhams owns the stock. They include core brands, Designers at Debenhams and international brands

Uninvested core store
A store which1s netther new nor modernised All remaining uninvested core stores will be modernised by Chnstrnas 2014

130 Debenhams plc Annual Report and Accolinis 2012



Shareholder information

Registered office and head office
1Welbeck Street

London WIGQAA

Registered m England and Wales
Company number 5448421

Financial advisors
Lazard

50 Stratton Street
London W1J8LL

Stockbrokers

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Cingroup Centre

Canada Square

London Ei4 5LB

Onel Secuntes Limited
150 Cheapside
London EC2V6ET

Solicitors

Freshfields Bruckhaus Dermnger
65 Fleet Street

London EC4Y 1HS

Independent auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
1 Embankment Place

London WC2N 6RH

Registrars

Equumt: Lirruted

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancng

West Sussex BNSS6DA
Telephone 0871384 2766
www shareviewcouk

*Calls to this number cost 8p per minute from a BT landhine other providers costs may vary
Linesare open 8 30am to 530pm, Monday to Fiday
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Business model
Understanding Debenhams

Debenhams is aleading international, multi-channel brand which is available
in 92 countries through stores or online. We put our customers at the heart

of everything we do and are truly passionate about the products that we sell,
half of which are exclusive to Debenhams.

| Adiversesupply chain . Aunique, differentiated and exclusive product offer

v Our sourcing strategy 1s based on "right product, nght country™ Delivering a cormpelimg custormer proposition 1s a key part of
Wehave been direct sourcing for many years resulting m '
long-standing relationships with supphers around the world
China/Hong Kong remains our largest sourcing hub whilst
other countnes hlke Bangladesh are growing At alltimes we
need to meet our customers expectanorns that every one of
our productsis manufactured n a factory which 1ssocially

ethical and quahty assurance comphant.

our strategy Our offer 1s urngue through a combination of own
brands, international and concession brands 1tisexclusive !
through core and designer own brands which account for

almost half of everythmg that we sell Itisdifferentiated

through Designers at Debenhams, a portfohio of diffusion

brands from same of the UK s top fastuon designers Wealso

give our customers the wide choice of product categones that

they expect from a department store

| Country sourcing Direct vs indirect sourcing . Uniquemix of brands wﬂedﬂcedpudm:tm

\

|

| I

i
]
1
il
]

1 c O
Country % % Salesbybrand % Own bought sales by category %
China/Hong Kong 50 Direct 65 Own bought corebrands Womenswear 17 6
India 12 _ Indirect 35 Own bought deslgners brands 17 z M 13 8
Bangladesh 9 l' Own bought international Childrenswear 9 9
Vietnam 5 - brands 3 06  Lingerie 6. 3
Romanta 5 Concessions/consignment 233 jrcessores 140
Turkey 4 Health&beauty 22 8
Pakistan 3 Home & furniture 115
Cambodia 2 , Sports & leisure 0 5
Uk 2 _ ! Food servicey, 3 4
Sri Lanka 2 Other 02
WMorecco 1
Egypt 1
Restof world 4

65%

Direct sourcingin 2012

Read more about trends in sustainable sourcing
n the Sustainabibty Review on page 48

76.7%

2012 Ownbought sales mix

Read more about ' Delivenng a cornpelhng
customer proposition” on page 20



Howwesell [l Whowesellto

Giving customers around the world more ways toshop A family depariment store withsomething foreveryone |
The Debenhams brand trades through 239 sioresin 28 Debenhams 1s a farmily department store that operates i
countries and 1s avallable online in 67 countries Customers at theheart of the commumities in which we are present |
can also shop through smartphones, tablet computers and Our customer base reflects our farmly ornientanon In 2012 we ‘
other mobile devices as well as more tradihonal sales channels gained market share in key categones ncluding wormenswear, |
such as catalogues and by telephone Our flexible approach menswear, prerrium health &beauty and home & furmture
mears that we can tator our product range to meet the Over the past year we have focused commurcanons with 'l
demands of a particular local market or channel our customers on the Life Made Fabulous™ therme |

|
Store numbers Grosstransactionvahebysegment .  Frequency of visit

No Em %
UK 154 UK 22046 Daily 2
international- Ireland 11 Imternational 5034 I 2.3 times a week 8
international - Denmark 6 Once a week i
International - franchises 68 Omnce a fortnight 17
! Once amonth 23
Every couplc of months 17
Salesby channel Sales by channel trend ‘ Lessoften 1
|, Marketsharebyage Market share gainsin 2012 i
" % )
Under20 24 Totalclothing +
20 24 years 35 Womenswear £
2534years 55 Menswear +
' 35-14 years 58 Childrenswear -
1 45 54 years 57 Health & beauty + '
f 55-64 years 63 Home & furnitare L3 |
65+ 52  Source Kantar NPD GfK
1 Source Kantar Worldpanel Fashion
Channel £m % s market share data 24 weeks to
Iastore {UK and i 2 September 2012
ntemational) 24574 207 :
Online (UK and |
international) 2506 93

—_———

239 42

Stores trading the Debenhams brand Average age of Debenhams customer

Read mare about how we are “Focusing on ' Read more about how we commuricate with
UKretall "Increasingavallablity and choice | our customers through cur marketing activities
throughmulti-channel and “Expanding the ! onpage22

brand internanonally” on pages 16 to19, |

pages24to27 and pages 28to31

—_—— — —_ - - - - .




£2.2

Profit before tax*

£158.3m

Basic earnings per share *

9.8p

Dividend per share**

3.3p

+4.2%
14.0%
10.0%

52 weeks to 1 September 2012 va 53 weeks to 3 Septernber 2011

Note:

The 2012 financial year compnsed 52 weeks to1 September 2012 wherteas the 2011 financial

year comprised 53 weeks to 3 September 2011 The board believes that 1n order to have a proper

understanding of the perforrance of the business, in many cases it 15 more appropnate to
compare the 52 weeks of the 2012 financial year with the first 52 weeks of the 2011 financial
year (the 52 weeks to 27 August 2011) The basison which comparisons are made s clearly
stated throughout this Annual Report and Accounts Further details are set out i the Chef

Financial Officersteview on pages 34 to 38
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Chairmann's letter

Resilient performance in challenging markets

Nigel Northridge, Chairman

4 Debenhams ple Annual Report and Accounts 2012

2012 was a year of celebration across the
UK for many reasons, not least the Queen's
Diamond Jubilee and the hosting of
enormously successful Olympicand
Paralympic Games. For retailers, however, it

was one of the most challenging years on record.




Dear shareholder

2012 was a year of celebration across

the UK for many reascns, not least the
Queen s Diarnond Jubilee and the hoshng
of enormousty successful Otympic and
Paralympic Games Fer retailers, however,
1t was one of the most challenging years
onrecord

A warm autumn/winter season was followed
by a wet spring/sumimer season which
depressed consumer demand in an already
fragile environment Despiie thus Iam
dehghted totell you that Debenhams not
only weathered these difficult conditions but
came out n good shape Our hike-for-like sales
performance during the year wasby far the
strongest for anumber of years and we
dehvered our fourth successive year of

profit before tax growth*

This was Debenhams’ first year under
Michael Sharpsleadership Asavastly
expenenced retailer with an unparalleled
knowledge of and passion for Debenthams,
the board was confident in Michael's ability
to develop and execute a successful strategy
that would write the next chapterin
Debenhams' history Thus has undoubtedly
been the case The strategy to create a leading
multi-channej, internationat brand 1s centred
around the four pillars, about which you can
read more on pages 16 to 31 Our stakeholders
- inchuding our customers, emnployees,
suppliers and of course shareholders - have
responded well to this clear ariculation of
strategy and consistent delivery against it
and we believe that our performance in 2012
1s clear evidence that the strategy s working.

We are aware that capital allocanonis a
subject at the forefront of many shareholders’
mnds The first prionty for the use of capital
i Debenhams is toinvest in the strategy that
Michaella:d out in October 2011 Having
reinstated the dnvidend 1n Apnl 2C11, we
announced in October 2011 that we would
commence along-term share buyback
programme in the second half of the year
Thus decision was based on the board's belief
that there1s Ixtle benefit to the business of
sustaining leverage below one imes net debt
to EBITDA and that a share buyback
programme s the most flexible method to
retum cash to shareholders The buyback
started in Apnl 2012 and by the end of the
financial year we had completed the ninal
tranche of £20 milhon The programime wall
contimue 1n the 2013 inanaal year

* 52 weeks to 1 September 2012 vs 52 weeks to 27 August 201

Debenhams' Corporate Governance Report
can be found on pages 58 to 62 of this Annual
Report and the Rermuneration Report on
pages66to74

Dunng the year, there were anumber

of changesto the board Havingjowned
Debenhams at the beginning of Novemnber
2011, Sinon Hernek was appointed Chief
Finanaal Officer at the Annual General
Meeting in January 2012, replacing Chnis
Woodhouse who resigned from the board
on that day Adam Crozier stepped down
from the board at the end of the inanaial
year, having served as a non-executive
director for more than six years We thank
Chns and Adam for their commutment to
the business Following Adams resignation,
Denmis Millard assumed chairmanship of
the Remuneraton Commttee and Mark
Rolfe succeeded Dennis as charman of the
Audit Commuittee

In October 2012 we announced the
appotntment of Peter Fitzgerald to the
board as a non-executive director Peter
has extensive expenence 1n helping retail
businesses to succeed online with market
leaders Amazon and Google Welook
forward to his contnibution

Tosucceed as we havedoneinsucha
difficult year hasonly been achieved through
the dedication and hard work of the many
thousands of people who work for
Debenharns, m cur stores, our head office
locations, our international offices and our
logstics and pnint operations We do not take
their support and enthusiasm for our
business for granted. The board thanks each
of them for the tremendous effort they made
111 2012 and Yooks forward to ancther
successfus} year in 2013

Nigel Northridge
Chaiman

Overview

Strategy review
Finance and rgk review
Sustamabhty

A& B

Ancounts

Veste ore, vt ap 1Ty gt 1 psliedt
pthefor’n Oy sh petoidens mnds
Fo sty e Us fordp AT
Tebertnne fo nest eibestntey that
Michael rdott nOcober 2000
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2012 performance
Key performance indicators

Group financial KPls

All compansons for 2011 are for
the 52 weeks to 27 August 2011
unless otherwise stated
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and includes sales from own bought
brands and concession brands Theboard
beleves that GTVisagood gude to the
overalllevel of activity in the Group

2012 performance

Debenhams reported anincrease in
GTVof 26%1n 2012 Thiswasdnven
by like-for-like sales growthin stores
and online in the UK and international
businesses as well as new store space

KPI

Grosstransaction value
(2008 £233Gm |
(200 E2564m |
(200 £2.640m |
Further information

« Finance review p35

Profit before tax

Profit before tax1s the board s principal

measure of profitability The use of
headline proft before tax has now been
discontinued as explatned 1n the finance

Profit before tax grew by 4 2%n 2012
versus the pnor year The mam dnvers
of growth were higher sales and
asmaller interest charge as aresult

of reduced net debt and lower funding

" costs followingrefinancing of the

bank faalities in July 2011

KPi

Profit before tax*
(200 f151.9m |

2012, . ol G R FISERR

Al numbers are before exceptionals

Furtherinformation
+ Finance review p3s

Like-for-like sales 1
Like-forlike sales measures the annual
sales performance of stores that have

been open for one year or more The board
therefore views it asa useful indication of
organic sales growth across the business

2012 performance

Like-for-like sales increased by 1 6% 1n
2012, the first ime 1t has grown in the past
five years This was agood performance
given the difficult market condittons that
prevailed throughout the year Further
details on the dnvers of ike-for-hke sales

growth can be found on pages 36
KPI
Like-for-like sales
2008
2009
2010 flat )
-03% [l 2011

« Finance eview p35

s
|

Net debt |
Net debtisthe KPlusedbytheboardte |
measuire balance sheet strength Itisvital

that the Company has the right capital l
structure (o support its strategic objectives. |

2012 performance '
Net debt contimued to fallin 2012,
ending the year £15 million lower than

last year despite lugher ¢capex, payment

. of both the 2011 final drwvidend and 2012

mterim drvidend and the £20 million l
1minal tranche of the long-term share i
buyback programme.




Strategic KPIs

All compansons for 2011 are for
the 52 weeks to 27 August 2011
unless otherwise stated

Opening new stores in the UK will
continue tobe adnver of sales growth
as detalled on page 18 Debenhams
generatesa strong return onnvestment
on new stores, averaging c40% for

the 35 stores opened since 2007

2012 performance

Two new stores were opented dunng
2012 The UK store portfoho comprised
154 stores at year end The contracted
store pipeline at the end of the year
stood at 18 stores scheduled to open
over the next five years The first of these
Chesterfield opened i Septernber 2012

g iiiii§§

« Strategy review pl8

Increasing availability and
choice through multi-channel
-online sales

Online sales are a good indicator of the
perforrmnance of Debenhams' mult-
channel business You can read more
about the developments in this fast
Erowing areaon page 26

2012 performance

2012 was another year of strong growth
mnonhne sales. Group sales increased by
39 8%, dnven by increased choce of
products, brands and ways to shop and
a54% increase i the number of visits
todebenhams com The medum-term
sales target for online1s £60¢ mullion

KP1
Online sales

EII £421m
EITFEl £55 tm

Overview

Strategy review
Fnance and rsk review
Sustainabhity
Governance

Accounts
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differentiated and exclusive custorner
proposition 1s the high percentage of sales
generated by own bought brands

Group own bought sales mix was 76 7%
1n 2012, down slightly from 771%last year '
largely due to a better performance from

stores and concession expansion online

KPI
Own bought sales mix
’
2012 76.7% :
!

Further information
= Strategy review p22

|
Expanding thebrand !
intemationally - number
of international stores

Debenhams mntemational activities |
compnse stores that we ownin Denmark
and the Republicof Ireland, the franchise
stores and international online

2012 performance

The number of intemational stores
increased by four in 2012 due to franchise
store operungs At the end of the year, the
Debenhamsbrand traded from 85 stores
1 27 countnes six1n Denmark, 111nthe
Repubhc of Ireland and 68 franchise
stores 1 25 countnes



Market overview
Putting our performance in context
Market conditions in 2012 by the long iamond Jubilee weekend but
Market condiions remained challenging the Olympic and Paralympic Games in July
throughout 2012 Macroeconormic factors and August donot appear to havednven
were compounded by unseasonal weather like-for-hke sales growth on UK hugh streets
throughout the year with a warm, dry In
put costs
autumn followed by a cold, wet spring After a volatile year in 2011, input costs were
and summer The sumimer of 2012 sawan farmore stablen 2012 As canbe seenin
uniprecedented number of special events igure 3, cotion prices fell sigrmficantly from
m(ijluthenglthe Queex:jsPDlamond Jlébllee thewr 2610]11 hlgl?s leading to lower cotton
an ympicand Paralympic Games. fabnc pnees dunng the course of the year
Consumer confidence Other fabne costs such as viscose, polyester
Consurmer confidencemn the UK remamnedin  and wool have also fallen Thereissall
negative territory throughout 2012 (figure 1), pressure on Input costs, however, from nsimg
causing Nick Moon, Managing Director labour rates The Chuniese govemnment's five
of GfK Social Research, to comment that year plan will increase minimurm wages by
“confidence has never beensolow forsolong,  13% perannum Labour costs are alsonsing
even during the dark days of the 20082009 nother countnes, particularly Bangladesh.
recession " The widely reported *feel good Freight rates have remained broadly flat with
factor” from the vanous events that took some shipping lines reduang tonnage due
place during the summer did not translate tofallingdemand Sterling has appreciated
nto discermble improvernents in consumer against the matn sourcing currencaies
confidence daia including the Chinese yuar, US dollar
Highstreetsales and Indian rupee
Highstreet sales showed a fair degree UK clothing market
of volatility 1n 2012, as measured by the The total market for clothing, footwear and
BRCKPMG Retail Sales Monitor {iigure 2} accessones grew n 2012 [n the 24 weeks
The year-on-year percentage change 10 2 September 2012, 1t ncreased by 03%
n hke-for-hke sales dechned inthe This was largely a result of increases in
unseasonably warm autumn months of average prices which offset a decline n
October and November 2011 but recovered volume as shownrt figure 4 Amongst
n Decernber as peak tradimg finally got the mayor product categones, the size of
| underway April saw asharpdrop, although the womenswear market dechined whilst
| this1s only to be expected given the very menswear and chldrenswear both grew
| strong performance assoclated with the
\ Royal Wedding m that month last year
Juneshowed some growth, possibly driven
: Market metrics
| Figure1 Figure 3
| UK consumer conhidence Monthly average cotton prices (US cents per pound)
1 i o 150
I
i LS (4] 100 \—f—————\_— |
-15 1
20
a5 50
l '30 W
1F‘SepuOctNmrDevcJanl‘ebMar.\prnizylun.lulAn;l.! O&pumﬂwbeclmhbmnprﬂzylunmmu
(Sowrce GEK Consumer Confidence Index Scare) {Source; National Cotton Councll of America A® Index) ;
Figure 2 Figure 4 |
: UK lugh street sales (% change year-on-year) UK clothing market overview

W Total clottung/footwear/accessory wmits sold 30

Total clothing/foctwearfaccessones average price 33

Total market for clothing/footwear/accessories 03

A S A
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‘Total sales % change vs LY

I

|

‘ == LFL Sales % change vs LY

‘ (Source- BRC KPMG Retall Sales Momtor)
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(Source- Kantar Worldpanel fashton market share 24 weeks to 2 September 2012 vs 2011)




AEMGA P ACIIGCTIN
L“EE\JC*T"“

“ﬁbiﬁ"d dieenecRol B@Msxata}mmm fo v oy
WISretail8vesp ,;FiTt( _'

&&-@&L@.‘Q&o A1l

@ﬁsm‘m’c@@u-

belalEmelaghet

@zﬂs‘g‘s@mﬂs 7

ftmrxﬂarpfﬁléma‘@ @m n:sﬁﬂ‘rr r@ 3

Eﬁ@]‘?ﬂ‘}m@ﬁ

Vefanothenyea

Blisthierrnerey et

alreadvitacinglsa

o dedumisee

WhIPrOpesIio O

A ndRFderpinRed "E?CG%

Aoty s

ﬁm m&!ﬂ j(??
7 "iﬁlljﬁl‘,m

LIT o,_aon_T iz CE@‘EI@)E bﬂsﬁoiﬂ-‘
E CT"

ilershavellereassessiiabasicSiof
2 r*(e’méﬁrlm@@ﬂ *ti,ai‘:‘rs

?ll&i;’;:l B8 G [‘, LT 3L,

divh wﬁﬁgmmwﬁau- lonsandibe
SUDPIYGHANIS GG ANASeloballdemandIFISEYHel
ﬁ‘;‘-\,\"@@a@“ TR Es D eamER iens and| ﬁ%ﬂm@ﬁd
cumicbm T S TS Sy TR CauvGiaT
owymp-@mﬂmmm@wm
Tnmemﬂ@C?ﬁ@@a@Lwam
effie uecesisefitewind eammiydEin,
Tu}(grmumc:nlﬁﬂpa‘@%*ﬂjﬂﬁj&®@@mﬁ®@mmﬁmm
andEonaelmareIsKSSIhise l%.@intd@.’
‘G&ﬂﬁmCﬁdme@I@Iiﬁ@@o
WmckLﬁunim%_@M@@W]m
7SEEER @Cr“msﬂ@a@tﬁmwl@@m@’

‘ﬁ;ﬁ‘@lmcﬂm Retailers)
TET) Bk ofﬁijﬁi}[}u S
,.mm ' ggethen

[jr@\u‘r:ﬁﬁm:. “nrﬂ o -szisﬁs
A dihnallyaslinarketnes ]
@Q%rmﬁﬂgmwmmﬂmmg@m 3 "nl |
ﬁ;ﬁﬂlzrt@@@f ﬁmmmrmﬁ@aﬁim de

spenciCusiomenloyaltywallbefvatathn) @mmwmo
r&iﬁi;ﬁgf

' &mcmum- 7% VerthctiResearalisiheleadingy
quihe :m u.f@ai? ODed; mﬂmﬁa@ﬂ@ﬂg
e

Cverview 2
Strategy review 10
Finance and sk review EY]
Sustamability 46
Governance 52
Acoounts 75

Our conchusions

Debenhams performed wellin 20121na
market that was challenging on many levels
Like-forlike sales growth of 1 6% for the year
clearly outperformed both the UK hugh street
and clothing sector We achieved this
through meeting our customers' needs,
especially when footfall was at its ighest
around key events as well as month ends.
Webegantosee the benefit of lower
commodxy prices i the final months of
the year although inflabon in other areas

of the supply chain, espeially labour costs,
will requare careful management.

We agree with the sentiments expressed

n Verdict'soutlook for the UK retall market
1n 2013 and there are clear correlations
between these trends and the four pillars

of Debenhams’ strategy Oururuque,
differentiated and exclustve customer
proposition helps us to get the price/

product equation: nght. Cur buying and
merchandising and supply chain teams
who have many years of expenence of
chrect sourcing and have developed
long-standing relanonships with many of
our suppliers will help us to manage mput
costs. The development of a true customer-
focused multi-channel mode! which focuses
onimproving choice, availability, convenience
and service for customers will help to
optimuse all sales channels, whether store
based or otherwise Finally we are mnvesting
ITIOre LN COMUITILFUCANIE OUT DFOPOSIton
and have aproven record of dnving sales
and improving the perceptions of the
Debenhams' brand through this mvestment.
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Chief Executive’s review
Delivering a clear and consistent strategy

Michael Sharp, Chief Executive My first year as Chief Executive of
Debenhams has been both hugely

rewarding and hugely challenging.

12 Debenhams ple Annual Report and Accounts 2012




My firstyear as Chuef Executive of Debenhams
has been both hugely rewardhing and hugely
challenging We made sigmficant progress

i many areas of the business whilst at the
same time facing what could beseenasa
“perfect storm * Consumer confidence was
already fragile before the warm autumn/
winter and wet spring/summer $easons
dented demand further The summer saw
anunprecedented mumber of special events
mcludmg the Queen's iamond Tubilee

and the London Olympics and Paralympics
whiuch threatened to change consumer
behaviour At Debenharns, we focused

on controlling factors that were within

our power takmg a flexible and pragmatic
attitude towards tradmg in hght of the market
conditions Ibeheve thiswas a successful
approach as the results for the finanaal

year demonstrate

A clear and consistent strategy
Throughout 2012 we focused on the
relentless implementation of the four pillars
of the strategy that I set out in October 2011
to build aleading international, mult-
channel brand. As [ said inlast year's Annual
Report, almost every major retailer has

the same ambition sowhy doLbelieve
Debenhams can succeed? We already have a
strong brand equuity We have abroad base of
customers in terms of age and demographics
We have auruque and differennated product
offer which gives our customers amarket-
leading choice of brands and products

We give our customers lots of different ways
to shop through marny different channels
We already have a wide international reach
By the end of 2012 the Debenhams brand
traded from 239 stores 1n 28 countres

and was available online in 67 countries

You can read about the progress we made
12012 and future drivers for growthin

each of the four pillars on pages 16 to 31

Theright team to deliver

One of my priornes during my first year was
to ensure we have the nght team with the
capability and capacity to deliver the strategy
1 firmly beheve wehave the best group of
retailers in the UK today

Imade a number of changes to the seror
management teamn durnng 2012 and at the
same timeTedefined some of the keyroles
tomprove clarty, align them more fully
with our strategy and allow for faster
implementation of best practice across
the business

We welcomed Simon Hernck to Debenhams
1 November 2011 and he subsequently

took up the role of Chuef Fmanaal Officer

1 January 2012 Aswell as hus fmance

role, Simon heads our systems and

logistics activities

Make Gormig joined us as Retail Directorin
January 2012 Mike's role bnings together for
the first e the operation of all Debenhams
stores, whether owned or franchised, UK or
international, and store development. As

such, Mike's responsibilies are aligned to
the first and fourth pillars of the strategy,
“Focusingon UK retall” and “Expanding
the brand internationally”

Group Tradimg Director Suzanne Harlow,
whohas been with Debenhams since 1994,
leads our buying and merchandising
activities which are cruaal to any husiness
with an extensive own brand programme
Suzanne s 1esponsible for the development
of the brand and product strategy that
underpins the second pillar ‘Deliveringa
compelling custormer proposition.” During
the past year Suzanne has also assumed
responsibility for the sourcing and supply
chan functons

Richard Cnistofol joned Debenhams as
Marketing Director m 2011 the first semor
marketing appointment to the executive
committee Richard has beeninstrumentalin
the changes we have made to communicating
the proposition, another key tenet of the
second pillar of our strategy

Nikki Zamblera has been HR Director since
2004 Inabusiness that employs 30,000
people, attracting, retaiming and rewarding
our people 1s of paramount importance We
have recently launched the first employee
chmate survey

It1s not just the seruor tearn which has been
strengthened We are investing in people
acrossthe business, including the teams
nbuying and merchandising, marketing,
customer analytics, systems and logistics

Highlights of the year

Overall [ was very pleased with our
performance which Ibelieve 1s evidence that
the strategy 1s starting to work In particular
I'was delighted with our like-for-like sales
performance At 16%, this was by far the
strongest hke-for-hike sales since Debenhams
became a public company in 2006 Topline
growth has been the mussing part of our story
nrecent years We delvered this by focusing
on what customers wanted when they
wanted 1t We played into key calendar events
- not just Christmas but also Valentine's Day,
Easter Mother's Day and the Diamond
Jubtiee - when footfall was at its mghest.

The store modermisation programime
alsocontnbuted sales growth Eighteen
modernisations were completed between
January and September 2012 This 1s more
stores than we have ever unidertaken before
mnasmgle yearand it 1s testarnent to our
planning and execution that we kept
disruption to a minumum

We saw continued strong progress in our
multi-channel business which grew faster
than the market 11 2012 Onlhnesales
increased by 39 8% during the year to
£250 6 mullion and on a three year basis
have grown by 355%

*52 weeks to1 September 2012 vs 52 weeks
t0 27 August 2011

Overview

Strategy review 10
Finance and nskreview 32
Sustainabiliry 46
Governarnce 52
Accounts 75

| hroughout 2012w e focused on the telentle ss
i 'ementat ot the 'our prlas of the

s ey that Lset subinOctober 2011 o huuld
awadmng imtetmitional multi-Channelbiand
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Chief Executive's review continued

Focusing on UK retail

Improving uninvested
corestores

We Bave begun 10 s Somic ueada b s s fom
the LifeMadet bulous mai o rgaa rpaist
that ran thioughour 2012 Ne orly g sale s
of feanped mesbe poe v s ongbutow
uidependent]y conduetedboandiesea o F
augpests that atiudes s ards Debonthans
atedhanging e aposl e way

|
1
'
{
1

Instore execution

Communicating
the proposition
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Delivering a compelling customer proposition

Brand and product
strategy

I'was also pleased with our international
businesses The franchise stores performed
well with seven new store openings it 2012
and a contracted new store pipeline of

21 stores. Our Damsh department store
cham Magasin du Nord had a successful
year, delivening like-for-like sales growth
despite a slowing of the local economy The
environment 1s still difficult m the Republic
of Ireland but we believe we are gairung
market share International online has also
been expanded significantly The number
of countries we delver to from debenthams
com outside the UK has expanded from
seven to 66 and we have launched alocal
language website in Germany

For a number of years we have been seeking
to expand our non-clothing business and

we saw further progress in this area in 2012
Non-clothing accounted for 49% of gross
transaction valuein 2012 Health & beauty1s
akey part of our non-clothing offer and our
prermum health & beauty sales increased by
11%, ahead of the market which grew at 8%
(source NPD, 52 weeks toend August 2012)
‘We have also seen traction 1n areas where we
have been speaficalty targeting markel share
growth such as women's footwear where
market share has increased by 40 basis

points to 2 5% over the year (source Kantar
52 weeks to 2 September 2012 vs 2011)
Home sales have alsoheld up wellina
difficult market driven by online which
now accounts for over 20% of all home sales

We have begun to see sorme real results
fromthe Life Made Fabulous” marketing
carmpaign that ran throughout 2012 Not
only havesales of featured hines been very
strong, but ourindependently conducted
brand research suggests that attitudes
towards Debenhams are changing n

avery posihve way

In Apnl, we commenced along-term share
buyback programme and stibsequently
purchased £20 mullion of shares We expect
tobuy back up to £40 milhion of shares over
the next12months

Next steps: future growth drivers
Whilst I am pleased with the great progress
made over the past year, l am more excited
about what1s to come next. You can read
more about future growth drivers in all four
pillars but [ would highlight a few areas
where I am impatient for success

Iwould include amongst these the work we
are doingonwhat we call single view of the
customer which wall give usa clearer

More choice
and better availability

More ways to shop

Improving the

Increasing availability and choice through multi-channel

|
I
|
|
|

i
|
i
|
|
|
|
1

International
franchise stores

Owned international

Intermanonal online

Expanding the brand internationally




perspective on shopping patterns and
customer behaviour Oneof the benefits
of thus will be more taillored marketing
to indmvidual customers because we wall
have abetter understanding of how they
shop and will be able to personalise cur
commumcations to them., In fact we

are strengthening our overall customer
strategy and msight capabtlity

With the success of the stores we have
modermsed over the past two years,

I would Iike to have all the qutstanding store
modermsations - including Oxford Street -
completed more quickly But we are working
at full capacity and so our target remains
Chnistrnas 2014 to complete the core store
modermisations, after which we will have
arolling programme of 10-12 stores a year

We also need to improve our delivery
promuse for customers who shop online
The groundwaork has been done with the
completion of the Sherburn distnbution
centre and the conversion of Peterborough
to a fulfilment centre but we will start to gain
real momenturn next year as third party
fulhlment contracts end and we bring the
majority of online fulhllment in-house
thereby allowing us to reduce delivery times
and offer abetter range of dehvery options

Outlook for 2013

Overview 2
Strategy review 10
Funance and riskreview 2
Sustainatlity 46
Governance 52
Accounts 75

We believe that customers are to alarge
extent acchmansed to the new econoruc
reality We do not antictpate a sigrhicant
change1n the economic environment over
the course of 2013 but we expect to make
further progress dunng the year as our
strategy delivers further benefits We will
always manage cash, costs, stocks and
margimns closely but we are commuitted

to continue investing in key areas of the
business to deliver long term sustainable
growth as well as further retumns of capital

to drive shareholder vatue

Michael Sharp
Chief Executive

Fromleft to nght Nildki Zamblera HR Director,
Simon Herrick Chief Finanaal Officer Richard
Cristofoli Marketing Direcior, Michael Sharp
Chief Executive, Mike Goring Retail Director,
Suzanne Hardow Group Trading Director
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Strategy review
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© Improving uninvested
core stores
We are driving sales ahead
of moderrusation by focusing
on basic retail standards and
improving choice

© Accelerating store

lernisations

18 stores were modermsed 1n
2012 Allremaimng umnvested
core stores will be modermused
by Chnstmas 2014

© Opening new stores
New stores i the UK could
provide an additional £1 illion
of sales The pipelne stands at
18 stores over the next five years

Cverview

Strategy review
Frnance and nsk review
Sustainabiiy
Governance

Accounts

A&l 8l
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Strategy review comntimnued
Focusing on UK retail

Improving uninvested core stores

At the end of 2012, there were 30 uninvested
core stores 1n the UK portfolio of 154 stores
All of these stores, none of which 1s loss-
making, will be modermsed over the next
two years but we are taking action ahead

of this to1mprove their performance and

to put these stores in1 the best possible
position to benefit from modermigation
Thus action 1s a question of focus rather than
mncurnng addibonal costs or capital spend.

Amongst the Imtiatives we take are
reviewing management teams, undertaking
space optrrusaton work to ensure each
product category trades from an approprate
amount of space, replacing choice that may
have been lost through concession closuires
over the past few years and improving
presentation standards In sofme cases we
hold a pre-modermisation sale to dnve sales
and counteract the impact of disruption from
modermisation work.

In 2012 we started to see an anprovement
in the performance of the umnvested core
stores as we undertock these achons

We will continue to pursue this programrme
untl all these stores have been modernised

Accelerating store modernisations

We modermise stores for a number of reasons
tomeet customers’ demands foramodemn
and contemporary place to shop: toimprove
perceptions of the Debenthams brand, to
improve choice to suit the needs of local
markets, and to bk a stronger relatonshup
with our international brands and
concessions Qur thorough planning process,
expertise iIn implementation and strong
capital disciphine result in a modemisation
programme that 15 delivenng increases in
sales and market share and a good retum
oninvestment.

154

UK storesat the end of 2012

10.9m

Total UK trading space (sqft)

We operated 154 stores 11 the UK at the end

of 2012, tradung from a total of 109 mulhon sq ft
Qur stores vary in size from 13 00010 200000
sq ftand are located in hugh streets town
shoppingcentres regional shopping centres
and retail parks

18 Debenhams plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Ttts notjust as case of improving astore’s
infrastructure- in order to achieve acceptable
returns, store modernisations need togive
customers something different We add
new procduct offer through addwonal brands
and categones We rermux space based on
performance, ideal adjacencies and ease

of shopping as well as the Group's overall
strategy Wenvestin the health & beauty
department We reclaim space from
back-of-house where possible and we
upgrade restaurants, WCs and cther services

In 2012 we modernised 18 stores in two
tranches, one starting in January and the
second in May, and spent some £32 mullion
1 total, averaging £20-25 per sq ft Thiswas
the most stores we have ever undertaken in
asingle year

The 32 stores which have been modermsed
over the past two years are performing well
Onaverage these stores have recorded a sales
mcrease n the first year after completion of
c6% ltis particularly pleasing to note that for
those stores which have completed two years
since modermsation, we have seen a sales
uphift in the second year of an average ¢15%
Previcus modemuisation progeamimes have
generally achieved a one yearincrease, after
which stores perform in line with the rest

of the estate We believe the second year
uplift 15 due to the extensive nature of the
modernisaton work we are undertaking as
well as being a function of the investment

n health & beauty wiich can take more

than 12 months to translate into higher sales
Returnon imvestiment 1s averaging 15%

The remamng 30 umnvested core stores
will be comnpleted in ime for Chnistmas 2014
with 15taking place in each of 2013 and 2014
Amongst these 1s Oxford Street which will be
transformed mside and out by October 2013
It wall become a true company flagship
showcasing the best of everythung that
Debenhams has to offer and a beacon for
mternational expansion

18

Store modernisationsin 2012

30

Modernisations over next two years

Weare transforming our UK portfolio
by modermsing all uninvested core
stores 32 have already been completed
The remairung 30 will be completed by
Chnstmas 2014 including Oxford Street.

Opening new stores

Debenhams 1s one of very few UK retailers
with aspace expansion strategy Webelieve
we could operate upto 225 stores In the UK,
anincrease of 70 stores over the QuITerlt estate
These stores could add £1 ilhion of sales

and offer economues of scale which should
provide margin enhancement over time

Stores wall continue to be the largest channel
for the majonty of custorners despite the
expected growth 1n online shopping. As
such they form a key component of the
muli-channel shopping envirotiment

and we know that custorners who live

near a storespend more cnline

We have a strong track record of creating
value from new store opemings The 35 stores
opened since 2007 have delivered an average
return on investment of c 40% We employ
robust acquisiion criteria to ensure every
new store has the nght location, the nght
developer, the nght type and size of store

and thenght deal so that it can achieve these
supenor levels of returm.

Of the 70 potential opporturnities in the UK,
at the end of 2012 18 were contracted and
are expected to open in the next five years
These stores total 845000 sq ft of trading
space and have predicted sales in excess of
£150 mullion at matunty One has already
opened (Chesterfield in September 2012)
with Lichfield due to open i March 2013

Discusstons are ongoing on another
25 opportunities

18

New store pipeline

£150m

Potenhaladditional sales from pipeline

We have atrack record of delivening strong
hnancial returns from new stores The average
return oninvestment of the 35 stores opened
dunng thelast five years 1sc 40% New stores
could add £1 billion of sales in the UK



Overview

Strategy review

Finance and nisk review

Sustainability

Governance

AN Eal ST P

AcCcounts

o 1. Modernising Oxford Street

QOur vision is to create a branded
environment that redefines Debenhams
1n the Oxford Street store and beyond

2.Improving uninvested core stores
We saw an improverment inthe

performance of uninvested core stores in
2012 by focusing on basic retan! standards

3. Opening new stores
Designer at Debenhams Ashley Thomas

opens our new store n Chesterfield in
September 2012 Another 17 stores will
open over the next five years
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© Brand and product strategy
We offer our customersa
urnque, differenbated and
exclusive collection of brands,
products and categones

© Instore execution
Raising standards of visual
merchandising and product
presentanon reinforces
Debenhams asamodern and
contermporary place to shop

© Communicating the
ition
Our marketing and PR activities
are fully joined up and we are
speaking with one voice across
all media under the banner
of "Life Made Fabulous”

Qverview
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Strategy review continued

Delivering a compelling customer proposition

Brand and product strategy

Our brand and product strategy gives
customers a unique, exclusive and
differennated chaoice. Itis urque through the
combination of own brands, international
brands and concession brands It 1s exclusive
through our core own brands and Designers
at Debenhams which together account for
half of everything we sell It s differentiated
through Designers at Debernthams, which
two-thirds of our customers tell usisan
important reasern they shop with us

Anarea of focus in 2012 has been the further
developmert of our non-clothing business,
particularty in areas such as health & beauty,
footwear and accessories where there 1s clear
market share momentumn. Non-clothing
sales accounted for 49% of total sales dunng
the year, providing the balance and resithence
which 1s an inherent strength of the
department store rnodel. We are targeting
further growth 1n non-clothing salesand
market share going forward.

Newness and product iInnovation are

key to delivenng a compelling customner
proposition. We added several new brands
tothe portfolion 2012 These include-
No1by Jenny Packharn, a glamorous new
occasionwear range by one of the UK's best
designers, classic Amencan menswear brand
Nautica which 1s now available in the UK
exclusively at Debenthams, footwear brand
Call It Spring, and the extension of the
Edon Designer concept into horme through
Ashley Thomas, Yukan Sweeney and Carcle
Lake New launches for 2013 include Manos
Schwabin womenswear and Donna & Mark
mchldrenswear

Looking forward, we will drive growth
by investing m our differentiated own
bought strategy In particular, tnalsin
Red Hernng, Pninciples by Bende Lisi
and the footwear division will be airmng

26

Designers at Debenhams brands

£552m

Designers at Debenhams 2012 sales nc VAT

Designers at Debenhams s an exclusive
portfoho of diffusion brands designed by
some of the UK sleading fashion designers
Our medum-term target for Designer sales
15 £750 mulhon
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to replicate concession salesdensities at
own bought gross margins This requures
end-to-end investrnent, frorm buying
and merchandising to supply chain to
markefing to instore resourang.

Instore execution

Good visual merchandising and product
presenitation are Key to Creating an exciing
shopping expenence Historically, our
standards have been inconsistent actoss
the store estate and they need toimprove
Creating great looking stores must be a
core competence for the retail community

We will achueve this by defining standards
of merchandising and presentation for

each seasonin regional model” stores

and cascading them throuigh the estate,
thereby ensunng that every store tearn
understands and 1s equipped todeliver
these standards Excellence will be rewarded
on aregional bass,

Standards are complemented by increasingly
strong instore graphucs and displays which
reflect the overall markenng and adverusing
themes, giving custormners aclear
commurucaton trail to follow from advert io
store window toinstore collateral to hicketing.

the proposition
For toolong Debenhams wasahidden
secret toatl but our regular customers Our
marketing and brand communication has
mproved significantly over the past year
with ajoined up approach under the theme
of “Life Made Fabulous”

We ncreased our marketing spend in 2012
which has both driven sales and begun to
change perceptions about the Deberthams
brand We have increased TV advertising at
the times and on the channels our custormers
are most likely to see them and we have fully
embraced digital and social media marketing.
Further, we are using the same images and

49%

2012 sales mix of non-clothing categones

40bps

Increasein women's footwearshare

Non clothing categones accounted for almost
half of everything we sold in 2012 We saw
goaod growth in market share in non-clothing
including women s footwear (source- Kantar
Worldpanel Fashion market share 52 weeks
t0 2 September 2012 vs 2011)

production values for both premium brand
marketing and promotional marketing,
which in the past had been dissumilar

and confusing,

We saw tangible evidenice of market share |
growth in.some of the categones where ‘
we mtroduced focused marketing activities

Women's footwear market share, forexarmple,

grew by 40 basis points following the launch

of ashoe brochure and prominence ina

number of premium adverts

We have seen sigrificant shifts tn customer
perception n our independently conducted
brand tracker with greater recognition

for exclusive brands, fashionability

and engagement

Lookng forward, we will contirue to nvest !
mmarketing, thereby demonstrating our
contimung confidence in communicating '
the proposition For the first imen si1x years !
wewill havea TV advertising campaigh at
Chnstmas 2012, aiming to ncrease our share
of voice when the market 15 at its largest.

Through our work to gan a single view of

the custorner we will also be able to dnive
sales through more tarlored and personalised
communication with customers Thereare
atso new developments in our successful
Beauty Clubloyalty scheme - which already
has 13 mullion cards n regular use - and the
introduction of a new store card and credit
card withaloyalty element.

1.3m

Beauty Clubcards inregular use

485,000

Facebook fans

We commuricate with cur customers in many
different ways including the Beauty Club
which offers treats as well asloyalty pomts

1n our premium health & beauty department
We are increasingly using all forms of social
medta asamarketing channel
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1.No.1by Jenny Packham

We were delighted towelcome: Jenny
Packham to Designersat Debenhams
11 2012 with a glamorous new range of
occasionwear clothing and accessones

2.Improving instore execution

We are raising our standards of visual
merchandising and product presentation
inour UK stores

3.Life Made Fabulous

We are investing in marketing through

the "Life Made Fabulous” campaign which
focuses on Designers at Debenhams to
dimve sales and improve brand perceptions
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© More choiceand
better availability
We are increasing the choice of
brands, products and categones
that we sell online as well as
mmproving avallability and
working towards offennga
better range of delivery options
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Strategy review 10

Finance and nsk review 32

Sustainability 46

Governance 52
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© Moreways toshop
We know that the more ways
we offer customers to shop,
the more they do shop Mult-
channel customers spend
up to three times more than
single channel customers

© Improving the
customer experience
Growth will come through
making shopping easier for our
customers by better customer
service and encouraging more
customers to shop muli-channel
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Strategy review continued

Increasing availability and choice through multi-channel

Our multi-channel business continues

to grow strongly Onlinesales increased

by 398% 1n 2012 to £250 6 mulion* This
ongoing momentum has led us to increase
our medium-term online sales target from
£500 mullion to £600 mulhon

Mare choice and better availability
Multi-channel 1s all about choice. Customets
expect the walls of a multi-channel store

to be entirely elastic. As amulti-brand,
multi-category department store
Debenhams 1s well-placed to meet this
demand Our onhne product offer now
encompasses some 110,000 product lines.
one third larger than our biggest store and
five times bigger than the smallest stores

Online 1s becormung a key destination for
some key product categones. In 2012, eght
out of ten furmiture orders were placed
online Onen three dresses was sold online
- even higher for occasionwear - and one in
five pairs of shoes Onhine health & beauty
sales, although shill smail, increased by 76%

Dunng the first half of 2012 we ntroduced
astore-based fulfilment service we call
Endless Asle which improves availability by
meetng demand for products which are out
of stockn the fulfilment centre By utihsing
the stack held on the tracing floors and stock
toormns of 36 of our largest stores we are able
to meet some 95% of this potentially lost
demand. In 2012 we estimate this accounted
for sales of £16 mullion. Endless Aisle
rewrforces our stores asa vital element

of our muln-channel offer

A focus in 2013 wall be tommprove the choice
of delivery options for mulu-channel orders
At present we have a standard delivery
promuse of four days as well as offering
collect from store Investment in our delivery
infrastructure will allow us to shorten the
delivery promuse and offer a range of delivery
options, including next day delivery These
changes wall also improve collation, thereby
IMproving customer service and Lmproving
the margins of our cnline business over ime
by reducing delivery and logistics costs

£250.6m

2012 online sales

£600m

Medium-term onhine sales target

Over the past three years online sales have
grown by more than 350% Thus performance
has given us the confidence to increase our
medium-term sales target foronline sales
from E£500 rullion 1o £600 mulhon

26 Debenhams ple Annual Report and Accounts 2012

More ways toshop
It1s clear that the more ways we give
customers to shop, the more they do shop

The fastest growing sales channel 1s mobile
In 2012, 27% of all visits came from mobile
devices, gher than the industry average
of ¢15% In May 2012 we wereamong the
first major hugh street retailers to offer free
wi-frin all our stores Thisisundoubtedly
drmving some of the growth in mobile
channel vistt numbers Contnuing

to develop our mobile strategy will be
akey focus 1n 2013 through, for example,
meroducing device-specific content which
recogmises that customers use different
mobile devices to do dufferent things

The mstore kosks we mstalled across the
estate 1n ime for Christmas 2011 have been
very successful and customers are using
them to purchase both out of stock and
unranged items In 2013 new collateral will
be rolled out across the estate toimprove
their profile in store

Whilst technology is animportant part

of gnving customers more ways to shop,
more traditional channels such as the home
catalogue which was launched in September
2011 have also proved successful

the customer experience
In 2012 we made some important changes
inorder to improve customer service Track
and trace1s now available on all orders so
customerscan follow their delivenes online
We introduced webchat technology so
that customer service advisors can assist
customers through the website We also
made the difficult decision to close our
customer contact centre in Taunton and
outsource it to a dechcated call centre facilicy
run by Capitamn Leeds This took effect
n August 2012 and 1s providing us with
ncustry leading capatnlity and technology
which aims toimprove first call resolution,
thereby improving customer satisfachon
and reducing costs

177m

Visits to debenthams.com in 2012

11th

largest UK onhne retailer

Visits to debenharms com increased by 54%

in 2012 to 177 mulhon, We are now the 11th
ggest UK online retailer by traffic vohime
upfrom13th last year {source IMRG/ Expenan
Hitwise Hot Shops List May 2012).

Our refund policy has been updated toallow
custorners to return a product purchased
through one channel to any other channel
that 1s most converuent for them. Online
shoppers are now able to return goods

to any store, even 1f it does not stock that
particular item

Looking forward, growth will come from
improving the wisihity of other shopping
channels across all channels to convert
single-channel customers to mult-channel.
So we will be raising awareness of services
such as clickand collect and retum to store
We are usimg vouchers to enicolirage store
customers to try onhine shopping, reinforcing
the availabihty of instore kiosks and
promoting mobile sales channels and

free instore wi-h

We wall beimproving online visual
merchandising and product presentation by
introducing better photography and product
descnptions, particularly iInwomenswear
All clothung 1s now displayed on models,
including childrenswear We have invested
n an online aeative team which s drvang
improvementsin styling These initiatives
should also help to rechice the level of
returned goods.

Customers see onhine and instore as one

Debenhamsbrand and we as abusiness

need to seethe customer in the same way

To thus end stores are now being credited

with onhine sales within their locahity so

that eachchannet 1s focused on meeting |
customers'needs across thetr ownand

allother channels

*52 weeks to1September 2012 vs 52 weeks to
27 August 2011

200%

Increase in mobile visitsin 2012

537%

Increase mniPad visits in 2012

Mobile1sby far the fastest growing sales
channel through smartphone and tablet
appsandthe mobile website Mobile visits
increased by over 200% and now acoount
for 27% ofall visuts,
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1. Raising the visibhility of multd-channel
New coliateral 1s being introduced

n stores to reinforce the availabihity

of other shopping channels

2.Developing our mobile strategy
We are moducing device specific
content, particularly for IPads and
cther tablet dewvices.

3.Home

Autumn 2012 saw thelaunch of
the thurd edison of our catalogue
for the home department.
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© International franchise stores
Franchise stores are a proven
low-cost, low-capital way to
exparnd the brand i distant
and emerging markets We have
ambrtious plans toextend the
franchuse programme

© Owned international assets
We own 11 Debenhams storesn
the Republic of Ireland and six1n
Denmark which trade as Magasin
duNord.

© International online
We are begmming to see
momentum 1n intematonal
onhne which we expect to accournt
for £100 mulhon of sales over time

Strategy review
Finance and nsk review
Sustainability
Governance

Accounts
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Strategy review continued

Expanding the brand internationally

Debenhamsis already so much morethan

a UK departiment store We are extrernely
proud of our Bntish roots, but over tume

we believe that sales generated from outside
the UX should exceed those from within
our home market.

Franchisestores

Dunng 2012 we celebrated the 15th
anrversary of the opemng of our first
franchise store in Bahrain We continue to
believe that in most distant and emerging
markets this proven Jow capital, low cost
franchuse model 1s the way to extend the reach
of the Debenhamsbrand cutside the UK,

The key to a successful franchise store
programime 1s having the nght partners

Our partners are retailers with considerable
experience of operating in their local markets
aswell as the resources to makethe
sigruficant investment n capital and costs
requured to build and run a department store

We entered two new markets 1n 2012, Russia
and Pakistan We also opened new stores

n India, the Philippines and Iran By the

end of the yearour franchise partners were
operating from 68 stores across 25 countries,
anet increase of four stores dunng the year

In 2013, seven new stores are scheduled to
open in both existing markets - Indonesia,
Malta, Saudi Arabia and the UAE - and new
markets Bulgana, Georgla and Libya Beyond
thus, the contracted store pipeline compnses
14 stores which are expected toopen over
the subsequent three years. We are in
discusstons on another S0or so stores

As aresult of the strength of the new store
pipeline, we have increased our five year
franchise store target from 130 to 150

2.7%

2012 international sales growth®

18.5%

2012 mternational operating profit growth

The international segment performed

well1n 2012 with sales growingby 27% 1o
£503 4 million and operauing profit growing by
18 5% to £307 rmllion The mamndnversof this
were the franchuse stores and Magasin du Nord

52 weeks to 1 Seprernber 2012 vs 52 weeks 10 27 August 2011
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Ownedassets

Our owned store portfolio outside the UK
consists of 11stores in the Republic of Ireland,
which are branded as Debenhams, and six
stores tn Denmark which have continued

to operate as Magasin du Nord since their
acquusition th November 2009

Magasin had agood year with hike-for-like
sales increasing by 4 6% 1n local currency
During 2012 the Darush bustness was
Integrated into the Debenhams retail
operational management through the
international dmsion This will allow

for a faster and more effectve exchange
of1deas and roll out of best practice

Since acquisition Magasim du Nord has
increased sales and margins through the
introduction of both Debenhams own
brands and Magasm branded volume Lines
There 1s more benefit to come from thisn
future years Although the propenstty for
onlme shoppingislow and muln-channel
virtually unknown amongst Danish
consumers at this ime, this will change
and we are well placed to take advantage
of changing trends.

The business in the Republic of Ireland has
been affected by the extremnely difficult
economic envirenment. However 1t does
appear to be stabilising and we believe

we are ganing market share

68

Franchise stores atend of 2012

150

Frve year target for franchise stores

The contracted new store pipeline stands at

21 stores witha further 501n discussion. We
will be operung in anumber of new markets
including Bulgana Estorua Georgiaand Libya

Onlneretaihngs akey part of our plans for
mternational expansion Over the mednim-
term we anticipate it will generate sales of
some £100 mulion

Cur strategy 1s two-fold. For major markets
we will develop a series of country speaific
websttes, which are presented in the local
language and transact 1n local currency In
other markets we will use overseas delivery
from the UK We made progress inboth these
areas dunng 2012

The development of country specific
websites 1s facilitated by the mnvestment

made over the past year 1n thelatest
Websphere 7 internet technology An Insh
website has been cperating since Autumn
2010 The first local language site was
launched inGermany in surmmer 2012
We will momtar the performance of
debenhams.de and learm lessons from

1t before introducing further websites

m majer markets

Dunng the course of the year the number
of countnes we deliver to through
debenhams.com outside the UK increased
from sevento 66 Expansion to another

30 countnes s planned,

66

Countnes we deliver tooutside UK

£100m

International online sales target

Although small at present, we have ambntious
plans for international online. Qur approach s
for local websites in major rarkets and onhine
deliveryinothermarkets
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1 Welcome to Russia

Designers at Debenhams Ben de Lisy
Aliza Reger John Rochaand Juben
Macdonald at the launch of the first
franchise store 1n Russia

2.Magasindu Nord

Qur Damsh depariment store cham had
agood year in 2012 with hke-for hke sales
growih of 4686 inlowal currency

3 GutenTag Deutschland
The first local language local currency
wehsite launched mGarmany dunng 2012

Debenhamsple Annual Report and Accounts 2012 31



Overview

10

Funance and nsk review
Sustainability

Strategy review
Governance
Accounts




Chief Financial Officer’s review
Building strong foundations

Stmon Herrick. ChiefPinancialofficer YW@ made good progress in 2012,
Gross transaction value, like-for-hke sales, profit
before tax and earmings per share all increased*.
Net debt improved and we completed the first
tranche of the share buyback programme.

*52 weels to | Septernber 2012 vs 52 weeks 10 27 August 2011
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are available to us. A full year review will be
carned out n Apnl butimnal figures indicate
that we are now sending far less to landfll
resulting in sigmificant financal savings

Connecting with people

Customers are at the heart of our decision
making Delivenng on our customer prormise
relies on the comrmutment of our 30000
employees S0 we rermair commutted

to attracting, retaining and growing
the very best talent in the inchustry

We created 168 new jobs dunng 2012
through the opering of two new stores in
Newbury and Dumfries We also worked
I partnership with Capita to open a new
customer call centren Leeds

We contirued our policy to appoint the
majonty of store and head office managers
internally Over the 12 months to the

end of September 2012, 89% of retai!
managemernt appowntments and 69%

of senior executive appolntments at

head office were internal promotions.

Debenhams Design Team remains the
key vehicle for quantitative feedback from
customers 15,000 registered custormners
participate in regular surveys to provide
OpINIONS ¢n Inthatves such as advertising,
branding, chanty mnvolvernent and store
modcermsation. We use this feedback to
influence decision making throughout
the bustness.

Our Customner Closeness programimie has
proved extremnely valuable for qualitative
feedback. Qur Chief Execunive Michael Sharp
and other senor executives spend aday in
store each quarter garning msights directly
from customers and non-custormers

Our long tradition of connecting with local
commutnibes and supporting good causes
became more strategic dunng 2012 Following
feedback from our customers and emptloyees,
we have formed national partnerships with
BBC Chuldren in Need, NSPCC, Breakthrough
Breast Cancer, Breast Cancer Campaign,

Pink Ribbon Foundation and Movermnber

We now have a calendar of support for these
chanties that encourages indrvidual stores
to fundraise in their preferred style Stores
also have the freedom to support local
causes dunng other times of the year

The Debenhams Foundation (number
1147682) was formally registered with the
Chanty Commussion on 13 June 2012

All funds raised for chanty will go through
the Foundation, providing rmproved
transparency and accountability Nikla

Zamblera, HR Director, 15 chair of the trustees

who 1nclude former Debenhams senior
managers, Pat Skinner and Keith Markham

Our future plans

Dunng 2013 we plan to progress many
rubatives that wall contnibute towards
Debenhamns' sustamability goals

In supply, we wnll be undertaking tnals for
sourcing merchandise closer tohome n

Europe We will also progress trials toship
merchandise directly from the country of

manufacture to our international franchisees

Weexpect further improvernents through
OUr waste management contracts and to
see environmental and economic benefits
of our investmenis m store moderrusation
and our upgraded distnbution fleet

QOur new employee and customer surveys
should give us more relevant information
about ways toimprove people’s experience
of Debenhams. We alsolook forward to
our head office move 1n 2013

Updates on all actrviies wall be posted
onour dedicated sustainability website-
sustainabilitydebenhamsplc com
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Customer confidence

Debenhamns'long-running Inclusnity
Campaign was honoured with the
Campaign for Body Confidence Retail
Award 1n Apnl 2012 The judges believe the
campaign “showcases magery thatis
msprrational and reahistic by using models
who are older, curvier and visually disabled
to inspire modern day Bntish women”

For us, using models, mannequins and
phiotography that customers can identify
with 1s about more than taking a socially
responsiblestance Inclusivity 1s a business

decision that makes commercial sense
becauseit appeals toa wider audience

Debenhams also supports the UK All-Party
Parhiamentary Group on Body [mage; we are
asignatory to the Bakish Retail Consortim
guidelines cn responsible marketng to
children and the Mumsnet Let Girls be

Girls campaign. Campaigns like this are
important for sustaining consurmer trust
and confidence




Note: The Finanaal Staternents for the penod
ended 3 September 2011 1included 53 weeks
Therefore all comparative Income statement
numbers for the 2011 financial year relate

to the 52 weeks of trading to 27 August 2011
Managerment beheves that companng
like-for-like 52 week penods demonstrates
the underlying performance of the business
Comparative cash flow numbers reflect the
full 53 weeks to 3 September 2011 and the
comparative balance sheet1s also at this date

Sales and profit performance
Debenhams delivered a good performance
1n 2012 given the challenging market
condittons Key fimancial metnes are
summmarised in hgure 1 whulst our key
performance indicators are described
indetatl on page 6

Group

The Debenharms brand trades through
239 stores in 28 countines and onhne
67 couritries

Thetotal trading space of owned stores as
at 1 Septermnber 2012 was 12 521,000 sq ft,
anincrease of 78,000 sq ft (0 6%) dunng
the course of the year

Group gross transaction value increased
by 2 6% to £2,708 O mullion for the 52 weeks
to 1 September 2012 (2011 £2 639 5million)
Group revenue increased by 2 5% frorn
£2176 4 mullion to £2,229 8 mullion Group
like-for-like sales grew by 2 3% including
VAT and by 1 6% excluding VAT

Group gross margin decreased by 30 basis
pownts dunng the year due toa largely
weather-related sales mix change towards
health & beauty, which has alower gross
margin than own bought clothing, and to
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Ingher concession sales. The promotional
calendar was largely unchanged from last
year as stocks were very tightly controfled
across the business given the difficult
market conditions

Profit before tax for the year mcreased by

4 2% to £158 3 mullion {2011 £1519 mullion)
The use of "headhne profit before tax™ was
discontnued dunng 2012 as the quantum
of the amortisation of capitahised bank fees
which constituted the difference between
the reported and headline metncs has
become small enough that the distinction
1s o longer necessary

Profit after tax increased by 12 8% o
£125 3mullion, largely due toboth lowey
taxation and interest as detailed on page 37

Basic earmings per share for 2012 were 98
pence (2011 8 6 pence) and diluted eamings
per share were 98 pence (2011 8 6 pence)

Segmental performance

Debenhams 1s adopting a new segmental
analysis which better represents the way
we manage the Group This will provide
sales and operating profit information for
twosegments UK and international Each
segment represents the performance of
one pillar of the four pillar Debenhams
strategy The UK segment will reflect the
performance of “Focusing on UK retail’,
whule the international segment will reflect
“Expanding the brand internaticnally”
‘Theresults of the pillar “Improving choice
and availability through mult-channel
are split between the two segments based
on customer location,

Figure 1, Financlal summary
S2weeksto 52 weeksto S3weeksto
1September Z7August 3 Septernber
2012 201 2011
Gross transaction value - Group £2,708.0m £26395m  £26793m
Gross transaction value - UK £2,204.6m £21495m £21811m
Gross transaction value - international £503 4m £4500m £458.2m
Like-for -hke salesexc VAT 16% nfa nfa
Revenue - Group £2,229.8m £21764m  £2.2098m
Revenue - UK £1,860.3m £1823Im  £18506m
Revenue - international £369.5m £3533m £3552m
Operating profit - Group £175.0m £1750m £1837m
Operating profit -UK £144.3m £M91m £156 2m
Operating profit - international £307m £259m £275m
Netinterest £16.7/m £231m £234m
Profit before tax £158.3m £1519m £160 3m
Basic earmings per share 98p a6p 91p
Dituted earnings per share 98p 86p 91p
Dividend per share 33p 30p 30p
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UK

The UK segment compnses 154 stores inthe
UK plus online deliveries to UK customers
Dunng the year we opened two new stores
and modermised 18

UK gross transachon value increased by

2 6% to £2,204 6 rmlhon for the 52 weeks
to1September 2012 Revenue increased

by 20% to £1.860 3 mullion.

Sales growth in the UK was driven by a
number of factors

« Good performance from the 32 stores
which have been medermsed since 2010
Stores moderrused for one year are
achievinga sales uplift of 6% dunng
the first year Those stores whnch have
completed two years since modermisation
are achieving a further average uphft of
¢.1.5% m the second year This 1s significant
because previous modernisabion
programmes have generally only delivered
a first year uphft

+ Ammproved performance from
urinvested core stores (Le those awalting
modermusation) following the introduction
of imtiatives to 1mprove basic retail practices

+ Market share gains in key categories
including wormenswear, menswear and
health & beauty (scurces. Kantar
Worldpanel Fashion Market Share, NPD}

» Improvements in our marketing activities
and higher marketing spend that s both
dnving sales and improving perceptions
about the Debenthams brand

+» Growth in online sales

EBITDA for the UK segment decreased
by 0 2% to £224 8 milhon UK operating
profit for the UK segment decreased by

3.2%to £1443 rmullion, largely as aresult
of higher depreciation

International

The international segment represents 85
stores, comprising 11 Debenhams stores i
the Republic of Ireland, six Magasm du Nord
stores in Denmark, the 68 international
franctuse stores and online sales to
custormersoutside of the UK Duning the year
we opened seven franchise stores including
two new markets and closed three stores

International gross transaction vahue
increased by 2 7% to £503 4 mulhion
Revenue increased by 4 6% to £369.5 million

The key dnvers of international sales growth
dunng the year were:

« Astrong performance from Magasin du
Nord which recorded like-for-like sales
growth of 4 6% in local currency

» (Good results from the international
franchise stores Seven new storesopened
over the course of the year (two-each in
India and the Phulippines, one each in Iran,
Palastanand Russia) Three stores closed
(one eachm Moldova, Romama and
Slovakia)resulting 1n a total of 68 stores
1n 25 countnes at the end of the year

+ A growing international online business
Punng the year the nurnber of countnes
able to transact through debenhams com
outside the UK increased from seven to 66
Alocal language website was launched
i Germany

EBITDA for the international segrment
ncreased by 10 8% to £42 O milhon,
Operatimg profit for the mternational segment
ncreased by 18.5% to £307 mulhen Improved

profitatnhity was driven by higher sales.
' Figure2 Cashflow and uses of cash
52weeksto 53weeksto
1September  3September !
2012 201
EBITDA £266.8m £2722m
Working capital £(71)m £26m |

Proceeds from sale of fixed asset investments
Capual expenditure and investments

- £50m
£(118.6)m £(1140)m

Operating cash flow before financing and taxation £141.1m £1406m
Taxation £(44.6)m £486)m
Financing £(13.6)m £256)m |

. Dvidends pad £(38.5)m £129m
Share buyback £(20.1)m -
QOther £(9.3)m £796m |
Change in net debt £15.0m £1331m

- Openingnet debt £383.7m £5168m
Closing net debt £368.7m £3837m

"Adjustment for property sales and leaseback transactcns




Group costs

Ensunng the business has an appropnate
and well-controlled cost base continues tobe
animportant area of focus and we maintain
very strong cost management disciphnes
across all areas of the business The main cost
categones are descrbed in terms of their
percentage of gross transaction value

+ Store payroll as a ratio to gross transaction
improved 1010 5% (2011 109%) largelyasa
result of eficiency savings, m particular n
relation to the employment of temporary
staff over the peak trading period

Store rent as a ratio to gross transaction
value decreased from 70% last year to

6 8% this year

Warehousmng and distribution costs as a
ratio to GTVincreased from 2 6% to 30%
as aresult of ugher levels of acovity 1n

the muilti-channel business

Other costs compnse a number of
compenents, not least buying and
mercharidising, marketing, pension and
the costs associated with the muln-channel
business We are investing in a number

of these areas to ensure Debenharms can
deliver sustainable, long-term sales growth.
Asaresult, other costs as a percentage

of gross ttansaction value increased by

20 basis points dunng 2012

Depreciation

Group depreciation and amortisation of £916
million increased by 1 7% versus last year
(2011 £901 milhion) as they begin to reflect
mcreased mvestment incapital expenditure

Financing income and expense

The net interest cost of £16 7 mullion for the
52 weeks to 1 Septernber 2012 represented
adechne of 277% from last year (2011

Figure 3: Capital expenditure

FY 2012
New UX stores 8%
UK store modernisations 27%
UK maintenance 23%
Internaticnal 6%
Group systems 21%
Group warchouse 9%
Other 5%

£231mmlhon) This reflects the lower interest
Tate associated with therefinancing of the
semior crecit facthty in July 2011 and a
reduction in the Groupslevel of debt.

Taxation

The Group's tax charge of £33 0 m:llion on
aprofit of £158 3 rmlhon gave an effective tax
rate of 20 8% compared with 26 9% for the
pnor year The declinen effeciiverate1sm
part due to reductions in the headline rate

of corporation tax @ccounting for 2 0%of
the 6 1% nominal decrease) with the balance
largely due to the resolution of hustorcal
1ssues net of current year contingencies
Famings petshare

Total basic and diluted earnings per share
were 9 8 pence, compared with 86 pence for
the 52 weeks to 27 August 2011 The weighted
average number of shares inissuen 2012
was 1,281 3 mullion 2011 1,286 Srrullion)

Cash flow and uses of cash
Debenhams remains a hughly cash
generative business and has clear priorities
for the uses of cash which are

1 Invest in the business to support the
four pillars of the strategy

2 Grow dividend cover mhnewith
mawntaiming dividend cover of three
times earmings

3 Move towards one times net debt to
EBITDA over the medumn-term

4 Returmnsurpluscash to shareholders
through along-term share buyback
programme

FY 2013 guidance
New UK stores 10%
UK store moedernisations 29%
UK maintenance 15%
International %
Group systems 20%
Group warehouse 5%
Head office move 9%
Other 4%

Qverview

Strategy review
Finance and nsk review
Sustamnabiny
Governance

Accounts

Al&Iglslu

Cash flow generation, the uses of cash and
the movement in net debt are summansed

n figure2

Operating cash flow before finanang and
taxation was £141 1 mllon We used this cash
to pay taxaton of £44 6 mlhon and financing
of 136 million Payment of the 2011 final
dividend and 2012 intenmm dividend
accounted for £38 5 mullion A further

£201 milhon was spent on share buybacks

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure dunng the year was
£118 6 mullion, anincrease of 4 0% versus
the previous year (2011 £114 O rmullion)

The key componenisof capital expenditure
are detailed n hgure 3 as1s gindance for
capital expenditure 1n 2013

Dividends

Anintenmdividend of 1 O pence per share
was paid to sharehclders on 6 July 2012

The board 1s recommending a final divadend
of 2 3 pence per share (2011 2 0 pence) which
will be paid to shareholders on 11 January
2013, taking the total dividend for the year

to 3 3 pence (2011 30 pence)

Share buyback programme

In October 2011 the board announced that
astt could see no benefit inleverage below
1tmes EBITDA, itmtended to commence
along-termshare buyback programme as
leverage approached this | turies. It was
subsequently announced at the intenm
results in Apnl 2012 that this programme
would commence with the itial purchase
of £20 mullion of shares dunng the following
six months. This was duly completed by the
end of August 2012 The total number of
shares bought was 23 6 rmillion, consurning
£20 1 rrullion of cash These shares are
currently held as treasury shares.

Netdebt

The Group's net debt position as at
1September 2012 was £368 7rmlhon

(3 September 2011 £3837mullion) a
reducton of £150 mullion dunng the course
of the year after the sharebuyback. Asa
consequence the ratio of reported net debt
to EBITDA remained at 14 times
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Chief Financial Gfficer's review comntinued
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Balancesheet
Key balance sheetitems are summansed
in figure 4

Reported net assets were £661 O mullion
representing an mncrease of £14 rmihon from
the Balance Sheet at 3 September 2011

Inventory

Stock levels continued to be managed very
tightly durnng the year given the chfhicult
market conditions Store stock levels were
flat on the pnor year whilst stock levels n
the online and internaticnal businesses
increased 1 hne wath growing demand

As aresult, total stock increased by 34%to
£332 3mulhon Terrminal stock at year end of
2 6% was n line with the long term average

Pensions

The Group provides a number of pension
arrangements for its employees These
include the Debenhams Retirement Scheme
and the Debenhams Executive Pension Plan
(together the "Group s penston schemes™)
which closed for future service accrual from
31 October 2006 Under [AS 19 the Group's
pension schemes deficit as at 1 Septemnber
2012 was £573 mulhon (3 Septermber 2011

£3 9 mlhon surplus) Further informaton
can be foundn note 23 to the Group financial

devised by the trustees are intended to
restore the schemes to a fully funded position
onan cngong basis by the end of March
2022 (Debenhams Retirernent Scherne) and
August 2021(Debenhams Executive Pension
Plan) Asaconsequence of this agreed plan,
annual contnbutions to the two funds were
set at £8 9 mullion, nsing each year inline
with the RPL The Company also pays the
non-investment expenses and levies to

the Pension Protection Fund.

Financial position

In July 2011, the Grouprefinancedits

£650 mullion senior credit facility whach

has a matunty date of October 2015, with
anopton to extend further to October 2016
The faclity cormnprises a £250 million term loan
and a £400 mullion revolving credit facility

The seror credit facility contains fixed
charge cover and leverage covenants, which
were bothmet in full dunng the year The
directorsbehieve that the Group has sufficient
headroom to ensure complance for the
foreseeable future

Financingriskand

treasury management
The board has established an overall treasury
policy and has approved authonty levels

statements starting on page 107 within which the treasury function must
operate Treasury policy 1s to manage risks
Future pension arangements will be within the agreed framework whilst not
provided for Debenhams employees rakines {1Ve DOSITONS
by a money purchase stakeholder plan ng speculatrve po:
or defined contribuhon pension schemes. The pou?rflénd sgate]glseg(gor manajglm?
finanoa are disclosed in note 21 o
Dunng March this year the tnennial actuanal
valuation was completed and discussions :)l’;e Grc:.rl%flmanoal Slatements siartmng
with the pension fund trustees were pag
concluded The contributions from the Simon Herrick
Company and the Investment strategies Chief Fianaal Officer
Figure 4. Balance sheet —|
i
1September  3Septemnber !
2012 2011 !
Intangible assets E864.9m £8581m |
Property, plant and equipment £661.6m f6346m
Inventory £332.3m £3213m |
Other assets £105.2m £956m
Trade and other payables £(525.4)m £(4891)m
Other habtlines £(370.1)m £(3827)m
Retiremnent benefit (obhigahonsyassets £(57.3)m £39m .
Deferred tax assets/habilies £18.5m £16m
Net debt £(368.7)m £(3837ym
Reported net assets £661.0m £6556m




Risk review
Safeguarding future returns

Effective management of risks and
opportunities is essential if Debenhams
isto deliver its strategic and operational
goals, protect itsreputationand
ultimately enhance shareholder value,
The board, which has overall responsibiity
for nsk management and internal control,
considers it important that there should

be a regular and systematic approach to

the management of nsks 1n order to provide
assurance that strategic and operational
goals can be met and the Group's reputation
15 protected.

Inorder toidentfy and manage risks
effectively, ansk management framewaorlk has
been developed, which includes processesto
dentify the nsks facing the Group: a process
to evaluate the potential impact of nsks,
approprate conirols and strategies to treat the
risks, reporang requiremnerts for changes to
thensk profile- and details of speaficroles and
responsibihities relating to the management
of nsk. Management 18 expected to utilise the
nisk management framework when assessing
nsks and implementing suitable controls.

Risk management framework

The board 1s responsible for the Group's
systermn of mternal control, which 1s based
on the COSO model (covenng control
environment, risk assessment, information
and commmnication, control achvities

and monitonng) and for reviewing the
effectiveniess of the nternal control systems
mplace Such systems are designedto
manage rather than eliminate the nsk

of fathure to achieve the strategic business
objectives They can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against matenal
rmisstaternent or loss The board has
conducted areview of the effectiveness

of intermnal controls and 1s sansfied that

the controls1n place remain appropnate

The board exemphifies the control
environment to 1ts stakeholders through

1ts comphance with the UK Corporate
Governarnce Code, Debenhams’ policies
and procedures and, in particular, policies
covering nsk managernent, code of business
conduct and ant-bribery and comuption

Define principal risks
and risk treatment

Tosupport this system for nternal control,
the Debenharms nsk management
framework (figure 1) has been developed
using the prinaples of the international
standard ISO 31000 (Risk Management)

This framework huighlights the central role
that the management of nsk plays in the
successful delvery of strategic objectives
and the fact that this process 1s dependent
on people futhlhng therr clearly defined
roles and responsibilities

The key points of the process are descnbed
1 more detail below

Risk identificahion

Risks exist within att operationsand it 1s
important to identify them in order to
understand the degree to which their
occurrence would threaten the delivery
of key objectives

Risks are 1dentified through & number of
routes They include membership of industry
bodies, environmental scanning € market
research), changes to legislation, enterprise
nsk management best practices, strategic
planning exercises, cngoing operatonal
reviews by management, project governance
processes, internal audits and control
ENVIIONment [EVIEWS

Whilst there are ongoing moniters in place,
the most extensive prece of work undertaken
toidentify nsks 15 the annual orgamsation-
wide review faclitated by the nsk
management teamn. This was most recently
conducted in October 2012 All seruor
marnagers participate in the exercise,
including the board. Ik considers strategy,
objectives and nisks to their achievement
together with the existing and new controls
required tormutigate nsk. The outputs from
this process are collated into the Group's nsk
register and are taken into consideration
when setting the annual internal audit plan.
Management 1s requured to update the
register with any new or emerging nsks

as they are idennfied

Figure 1. Debenhams risk management framework
Strategic objectives

Define risk appetite

Risk reporting

Risk identification . .

Risk evaluation

Overview

Strategy review

Financeand nsk review

Sustainabiliry

Governance

IS M

Accounts
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Risk review continued

Risk evaluation

In order to understand the impact specific
nsks would have to the Group, each risk s
evaluated based on the likehhood of
occurrence and its seventy

The sk ranking matnx (igure 2) has

been developed to ensure that a consistent
approach s taken when assessing the overall
impact to the Group Likelihood 15 based

on the frequency of occurrence inarolhng
12 meonth penod and sevenity 1s determined
by the degree of change across key
performance mdicators

Managerment 1s responstble for ensuring
that nsks are evaluated correctly, with
support from the finance department
asrequired Indnidual managers consider
the cumulative impact of all nsks across
their particular area of operation when
deterrmimng the state of their overall control
environment. The purpose of this exercise
1s to caleulate the nsk score for each nsk
dentified which determunes the level of
treatment expected

The board reviews the key rnisks to the Group,
taking action to strengthen where necessary,
and the output from thisis used to populate
the Group's nsk map

Risk treatment

The board 1s responsible for determining
the nature and extent of the nsks 1t s willing
to take 1n achieving its strategic objectives,
which s defined as thensk appetite and 1s
outhned n iigure 3

Rusk scares are compared to the nsk appehte
matrix, which provides gusdance onthe
expected level of treatment, imeframes
and authontylevels The four methods
used to treat nsk are

« Tolerate (accept risk and take no
further action)

« Treat (reduce nsk by defiming and
completing appropnate actions to
mprove orunplement controls)

+ Transfer (share a nsk via insurance policies
or asking a thurd party totake the nskin
another way)

« Termnate (@avoid nsk quuckly and decisively
by ehrminating or re-engineenng the
activities that lead to the nsk occurmnng)
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Risk reporting and monitoring
Indrvidual managers are expected to
define and analyse the reports they require
to enhance financial and operational
performance and identify emerging nsks
or control falures

Financial performance1s monstored through
anumber of processes An operating plan

15 prepared 1n August of each year shortly
before the start of the financal yearand
arevised forecast 1s prepared each month

of the financial year which analyses actual
performance and highlights vanances
aganst the plan. In particular, performance
1s morutored through a seres of key metrics
Daily sales, weekly sales and margin and
monthly management accounts are
prepared, all of which report on performance
against the operating plan last year and
forecast. Addwionally, a treasury report 1s
made to each board meeting which covers
matters such as senior operating restrictions,
covenarit reporting and forecasting (unider
the Group's banking facilities), exposure to

foreign exchange and hedging arrangements,

net debt and interest rate hedging, cash flow
and cash flow forecasting and amounts
deposited with counterparties

Performance 15 reviewed at board meetings,
SETIOr Management meetings, Audit
Commuttee, business contniuity
management commuttee and executive
health and safety meetings Therearealso
other mecharisms in place tomonitor risks
such as internal audit reviews, criical and
senous sk mortor, fraud detection systerns,
whustieblowmng, stock counts and secunity
equipment suchas CCTV

Common Frequent

Occasional

Likelhood
Unlikely

Low Moderate

Inaddinon the Aucht Commuttee satisfies
itself that key nsks are being momtored by
senior management and that theinternal
audit plan s focused on high prionty areas
The intemnal audit team updates the board
and the Audit Commuttee on the effectiveness
of nsk management within each discrete
area audited throughout the year The Audit
Cornmittee will bnng any areas of concerm
to the attention of the board

Roles and responsibilities

The effective managerment of risk 1s reliant
upon ail employees successfully perforrming
thewr speaific roles and responsibiliies

and indmvicual managers are expected

to famulanse themselves with ther
responsibilines, which are outlined below,
and to act accordingly

Only suitably quahfied employees are
responsible for each of the functions
within the Group to ensure that each area
operates effectively Trarung, performance
reviews and support mechanisms aren
place toensure performance standards

are maintamed.

Board of directors

The board of directors 1s responsible for
approving the nisk management policy
and related framework, setting and
comumumnicating the Groups nsk appetite
and related policies, seting the tone and
culture for managing risk, providing
strategic direction and guidance on nsk
related deasion malang, ensunng that nsk
management processes are adopted across
the whole Group; obtaining assurance on
the effectiveness and compliance with the
nsk management framework, reporting

Senous Cnitical

1{1%) 4(29) 9(3) 16 (4%
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on the management of nisk to stakeholders,
and sigring off public chsclosures related
tonsk and nsk management.

Divisional directors

ami heads of function

Dmvisional directors and heads of function are
responsible for identifying and evaluating
the nisks that relate to their areas and
actvities, Implementing appropnate controls
to manage nsks inkine with the Group s nsk
appetite, and taking ownership for nsks and
controls within their area of responsibility

Allemployees

Allemployees are responsible for being
aware of the nsks that relate to their roles
and their activities, continuously improving
ther managermnent of nisk, implementing
approprate controls to manage risks, and
reporting meffective and/or mefficient
controls wherever they sit

Riskmanagement

and internal audit function

The Group's risk management and mtemal
audit function 1s made up of three discrete
areas. nsk management, internal andit and
profit proteciion This combination enables
the Group tomaintain a cohesive approach
to all aspects of sk managemert whalst
allowng the internal aucht team to benefit
from the msights that other areas of the
function can provide

Risk management team

The nsk management tearm 1s responsible
for developing, implementing and reviewmg
the nsk management framework and
process promotmg effectiverisk
management at all levels of the Group,
encouraging an approprate nisk culture
within the Group, haising wath other
functions that adwvise on speciahst areas,
coordinating responises where risks impact
more than onearea reporting escalating
and commurnicating nsk management 1ssues
to key stalcehotders, and providing assurance
regarding nsk management within the
Group In addion, the team manages
corporate insurance and undertakes

Internal audit tearmn

In relation to sk management, the internal
audit team 15 responsible for providing
independent assessment of the design,
operation and effectiveness of the nsk
management framework and process,
management of key nsks, including the
effectiveness of the controls reporting
of nsk and control status, reliability of
assurances provided by management
relating to nsk management

Profit protechon

The profit protection team s responsibilities
mchude actrities such as ensunng

loss prevention strategies are developed
and mplemented, ant-fraud monitoring
across the Group and the management

of whistleblowing,

Whistle!

All Debenhams' employees are required to
adhere tothe code of busmess conduct and
the ant-brnibery and cormuption policy, with
seror employees required to confirm their
comphance n wnting. These policies set out
the ethical standards expected by the Group
and include details of how matters canbe
raised m strict confidence Twomam routes
are avaiable to employees at all levels within
the Group toraise Concems over
malprachces The first, ‘Employees’
guidehnes to problem solving”, encourages
employees totalk to their line manager, their
manager’s line manager or, if still concerned,
to call HR Connect (the central hurnan
resources team)directly The second routeis
aconfidential reporting line through which
employees can speak to the Group ani-fraud
team If anemployee feels that the matteris
s0 serous that itcannot be discussed nany
of these ways, s/he can contact the Company
Secretary or the Director of Internat Andit
and Risk Management. The Group's policy
onwhistleblowing and these methods of
raisingssues of concerm are published on
Debenhams'intranet and ernphasised on
posters The policy 1s teviewed anmually by
the Audit Commuttee All serious matters
identfied are raised with the chairman of

business contimuty planning activities the Audit Committee
Figure 3: Risk appetite matrix
Risk
Risk matmx Risk Treatment acceptance
Riskscore  zone Action response umeframe owner
: A Treator Head of

tolerate 912months  department
Treator
tolerate 69months  Lmedirector
Treat, transfer Executive
orterminate  3-6months  director !
Treat, transfer
orterrninate 0-3months  Main board

- - e ————
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Business continuity planning

The busimess contimuty committes
comprses the Chnef Finanaal Officer

Retail Dhrector, HR Durector and Director
of Internal Audit and Risk Management
Other executives are invited o attend
meetingsas and when approprnate

The objectives of this cornrmittee are to
ensure that potential threats to the Group
and the impact that those threats might
cause havebeenidennfied, that a framework
tobuld organusational resilience to known
threats1s1n place and that the framework

15 capable of providing an effective response
to safeguard the Group

The commuttee uses a framework based
on [S0 22301 2012 (Business Continuity
Management Systermns) and undertakes
anumberof key activities These are to
review andagree the business contimuty
management policy and how 1t will be
managed and commumcated, the nisks
and threats facing the Group and priontise
them based on the evaluation of their
seventy and likehhood, the business
contimuty managerment strategy. the
business contimity managernent response
and its implementation, the process for
EXErCIsing, mantaning and reviewing
business contimuty management
arrangements, and the mechanisms to
embed business continuity management
in the Group's culture

Principal risks and uncertainties

The nsks detalled on pages 42 1045 andin
the Notes tothe Financial Statements are the
prnncapal nsks and uncertaintes that may
impact the Group's ability to achieve its
strategic and operational goals Both external
factors, such as the economic environment,
and internal factors, such as the retention of
key management, are includec i the nsks
and uncertainties that could substantially
impact performarnce Relevant mitigation

for each nskis also outhned. These nisks are
presented innio particular order

It should be noted that any system of nsk
management and internal control is designed
tomanage rather than ehminate the nsk of
falure to achieve business objectives and

can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against matenal rmusstaternent

or loss.
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Risk review continued

Risk and impact

Consistent fall in customer spending
asaresult ofeconomic dowvmtum,
inflation or deflation

Reduction1in gross transaction valueand a
decline in sales on discretionary purchases

Competitive pressuresin existing
markets influence customer behaviour

Place pressure on our pricing strategy,
margins and profitabihty

Factors influencing the sustainability
of the supply chain

Place pressure on margin and will also chvert
financial and management resources from
more beneficial uses

Loss of profit or additional expenditure
caused by increased energy or fuel costs
Place pressure on margin and will also divert
financal and management resources from
more benefical uses

Risk and impact

i -
S

Risks associated with ciurency,
hedging, interest rates, credit,

and finandial
covenants under the credit facilities

Hinder atality to adjust rapidly to changing
market conditions and ympact earmngs
and cash flow

Hedging strategy may not adequately
protect operating results from the impact of
exchangerate fluctuations or may hrmit any
benefit caused by favourable movements

in exchange rates

Affect available cash and hquidity and could
have matenal effect on the business, results
of operations and financial condition
Shortfall in the pension fund

Increases in pension related babiities could
impact profits and cash flow

Example of mitigation Change”

The board conducts strategic business reviews which ensure that
managernent 15 focused on key pnonties and cost control. These reviews
also focus on the four pillars of the Groups strategy to build a leading
mternational, multi-channel brand

differentiated and exclusive cheice of brand products and categories within
agood/better/best pricing architecture Anunderstanding of customers
and ther needs 15 developed by listenung to thetr views, market intelligence
and reviewing key performance indicators which ensures that pnangis
competiive Debenhams 1s investing additional resources in custormer
analytics and insight

Debenhams brand and product strategy gives customers a unique, @

are mutually benehaal Both parties work towards the ohjective of
optirnising sustamable fulhlment and costs, which 1s measured regularly
by management through key performance inchcators Alongside this,
Debenhams develops mutltiple sourang routes to ensure pricing remains
competitive and that demand can be supplied.

Debenhams and s supphers will continue to work hard to dehver the best
performance possible in a very challenging market

Debenharns fosters excellent relatonships with its suppliers that @

Akey objective of the energy committee 1s to control energy usage,
mcluding the impact of the Carbon Reduction Commitment scheme
Anenergy hedging policy 1s in place to provide a high degree of

cost certainty

Example of mitigation Change*

R DI G

Debenharns hasa treasury policy mn place which covers counterparty
lirruts and hedging for interest rates, foreign exchange and energy
There1s also anmternal treasury function which is mandated by

the board and audited annually

Debenharms closely monitars all aspects of cash managerment to optimise
balance sheet metrics Effectivenessis measured regularly by management
through a senes of key performance indicators

Business cntical spreadsheets and databases used by the finance
department have beenidenthed and appropnate control measures
are used in ine with Debenhams policy to ensure dataintegnty

The trustees of the Groups pension schemes carefully mornitor the pension
fund and alter the investment strategy as appropnate Any shortfallin
funding 1sbrought to the attention of the board

Please refer to the Notes to the Financial Statements for other nsks n this category
*Changen severity and/or hkelthood of nsk dunng course of 2012
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Strategu:nsk
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Risk and impact

Inability to predict or fulfil customer
demands or preferences

Sales will be lower, market share reduced
and wali be forced to rely on markdown
and promotions to dispose of excess or
slow moving nveniory May be inventory
shortfalls on popular merchandise

Departure of key personnel and failure
to attract or retain talent

Sigmficantly delay or prevent achuevernent
of strategy

Failure toachieve the new storeroll
ot or acquisition targets

Reduced growth or a decline n gross
transaction value and may be required to
wirtte dowtl the value of any stock acquired
for sale mn an uncompleted store

Negative effect on reputation leading to loss
of stakeholder trust and confidence, matenal
adverse effect on the ability to attractand

retan third party brands, suppliers, designers,

concessionaires and franchiusees with
subsequent iImpact on performance and results

Example of mitigation

Debenhams utilises market, trend and customer awareness research
tounderstand cutrent dernands and preferences [t delivers these
requiremenis through multiple channels, including its store and non-store
sales channels Toachieve this these channels are constantty developed
and hugh operational standards maintained to differentiate from
competitors Stock levels and the supply chain are momitored closely
inorder to ensure product newness 1s maxinised.

Thisis adecreasing nsk as a number of strategic projects have been
undertaken to1mprove our understanding of ourcustomers

Inorder to attract and retain talent, both succession and personal
development plans are 1n place throughout the Group In addition,
target-led, performance-related incentive schermnes exist

Debenhams undertakes research of key markets and demographics to
identfy potential locabions to dnve growth through new space A full
wmvestment appraisal 1s conducted as part of the decision makung process
and a speciahst team has responsibility for end-to-end management

of each project once the decision is made

Ethical sourcing, legislative change and corporate responsibibity matters
are key areas of focus for the sustainability comnuttee

Toensure that Debenhams has the most current information available,
1tisamember of relevant industry bodies that provide awareness of
changes to standards and legislation

Debenhamsis an active member of Ethical Trading Imitiative (ETI) and
expectsall suppliers to follow the ET1base code and adhere to Debenhams
own supplier code of conduct.

Areliance on third party suppliers, the challenges of the current economc
environment and the complexity of new and exasting legislahon makes this
anongoing nsk which Debenhams and its supphers have to manage

Adverse effect on mventory and gross
transaction value and will drvert financial
and management resources from more
benefinal uses In the case of terronsim,
custormer confidence may be impacted

Adverse effect onmvertory and gross
transaction value and will divert financial
and management resources frorm more
benehtaluses

Examp!eof mitigation
— Nl |

Thebusiness contimuty commuttee 1s compnsed of seruor executives and
works to a framework based on the most recent international standard

The key objectives of this commuttee are to ensure that potennal threats to
the orgarusation and the impacts that those threats might cause have been
wentified, that a framework that bunlds orgamsational resithience to known
threatsis in place and that the framework has the capabihty to deliveran
effective response to safeguard the Group

Insurance policies have been placed as appropriate to rmniumise the impact
of specificrisks

- I B G —
Debenhams has specialist accounting, taxation and legal and secretanat
teamns and 1s also a member of key industry bodies which provide
awareness of changes to standards and legislation,

Forums exist to focus on speaficareas of legislation Speaific busmess
policies and procedures are m place to ensure roles and responsibilines are
understood across the Group

*Change mseventy and/for likelhood of nsk dunng course of 2012
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Risk review continued

Negatve effect on reputation leading

to loss of stakeholder trust and confidence,
with subsequent inpact on performance
and results and will divert finanaal

and management resources from

more beneficidl uses

Personal‘llﬁuryorpmpenydamage
relating to amajor Debenhams or
supplier location

Inyury or loss of hife to staff or customers
Negative effect on reputation and will divert
finanaal and management resources from
more beneficial uses

Disruptions or other adverse events
affecting relationships with or the
performance of major suppliers,
franchise partners, store card providers,
designers or concessionaires

Costs associated with the transfer of
the operations or the potential of extra
operational cost from a new provider

Changes 1n exclusivity arrangements with
designers or any decline in their populanty
could have a matenal adverse impact

Loss of a number of smportant concession
partners may adversely affect GTV

Adverse events within the supply chain
could restmct the availability or sigmificantly
increase the cost of goods

Credit msuranice difficulnies for a sigrficant
number of suppliers could lead toa
detnmental vanation of termns or alternative
suppliers used to source some goods
Fraud. theft orindustrial espionage
Negative effect onreputation and will divert
financial and management resources from
more berteficial uses

Example of mitigation Change*

Theinformation secunty forum reviews projects and key activities for
comphance tothe relevant standards. Debenhams’ comphance to the
PCl standard 1s monitored by management and reported to the Audit
Comurittee A number of secunty tools are employed to protect data,
including encry pticn, mtruder detection and data loss prevention

The executive health and safety commutiee reviews complance in thisarea
and a number of participants are members of various relevant industry
bodies The comrmittee recerves mput from speciahist teams which focuson
discrete aspects Theseinchile health and safety, bullding services, insurance
and buying and merchandising. To support cornpliance and to mantain
high operanonal standards, health and safety awareness programimes are
n place and each site has its own health and safety committee

In order to rmimirmuse the impact of any third party relanonship or
performance 1ssues, Debenhams’ objectives are to- mamtain excellent third
party relationships by ensunng strategies are aligned, have appropnate,
unambiguous contracts in place, ensure third parties are finanaally robust
and have contingency plans n place in the event of a failure (e.g. conversion
of space to own bought for concessionarre falure, multiple sourcing routes
for suppher failure)

This 15 an increasing nsk due to the ongoing, global economuc situaticn
and the impact this could have on a sigruficant supphier or partner

In order to mitigate fraud across all channels in which Debenhams
operates, a number of preventative measures are in place These include
accounting polices and procedures, systerns access restnctions,
expenditure authonsation levels, whistleblowing and anti-bribery and
corruption policies and a code of business conduct, all of which provide
employees with guidelines on how to escalate anissue confidentially
Avanety of monitonng mechanisms are used todentfy fraudulent
actwity mcluding data rmming actoss pont of sale and head office
functions. As part of the organisahion-wide risk assessrment, individual
managers signan anti-fraud, bnbery and cormuption declaration Issues
dentified are investigated and reported to the Audit Comrruttee

*Change 1n seventy and/or likelihood of nsk during course of 2012
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Failure to deliver abusiness
critical project

Divert financial and managemnent rescurces
from more benefitial uses and significantly
damage abihty to manage informaton
technology systems

Ineffective brand awareness

and marketing programmes

Loss of market share, customer loyalty,
reduction 1n gross transaction value and a
decline n sales on discretionary purchases

Risks assoclated with

leasehold properties

Sigmificant alterations inrental terms
could have amatenal adverse effect

on the business, as would failure to
secure desirable locahions

Disputes over store modernisations may
lead to reinstatement costs and termination
of leases may lead to dilapidation costs
being incurred

Failure to manage asbestos it specific
properties may lead to fines or other habilines
affecting Debenhams reputation and the full
or partial closure of properties

Risks associated with

systems
failure, external attack of systems
or datainaccuracy

Divert financial and management resources
from more benefinal uses and sigrificantly
damage ability to manage information
technology systems

Inapproprtate decisions could be made using
wrong or ambiguous information

Unable to continue operations smoothly
1n the event of amajor incadent

Divert financial and management resources
from more beneficial uses

Exzample of mitigation

A fullinvestment appraisal 1 conducted as part of the decision making
process and must be signed offby a board member before any project
1sundertaken

As part of project governance, a steering commuittee monitors all key areas
nvolved in the delivery of the project, a project framework s used, selected
projects will be reviewed by internal audit and post investment appraisals
are undertaken

Debenhams 1s undertaking a head office move during 2013 which
ncreases the nsk ratng compared to last year

Debenhams utihses market, trend and customer awareness research to
understand current dernands and preferences This information s used to
dennfy specific segments of the market to target and to form aproposal asa
campalgn. A full investment appraisal 1s conducted and must be
signed off by aboard member before any campaign 1s undertaken. Carmpaign
effectiveness1s monutored through external feedback and internal analysis

Debenhams has a specalist property team which manages all aspects of
leasehold property, iIncluding cost renegotiations, cornrmunication of the
store modermusanon programme, lease renewals and adherence toall legal
obligathcns under thelease

Debenhams 1s also a member of key mdustry bodies which provide
awareness of changes to standards and legislation

Debenhams consults with industry experts to ensure that the asbestos
policy and asbestos register are fully up to date All locations where asbestos
has been identified are clearly marked with signage and the condibon 1s
checked on a regular basts with action taken in the event of any
detenoration. Any works undertaken in these areas are approved by both
the health and safety and building services teams prior to any work permits
being 1ssued with specialist companies used as requured.

Debenhams is undertaking a head office move dunng 2013 which
ncreases the nsk rating compared tolast year

- i

Project governance, change control and implementation frameworks form
part of all project hifecycles and the IS management teamn 1s responsible for
ensurng that they are adhered to

Momtoring processes are 11 place across a nurmber of key business
systemns, alongside appropriately tramned specialist teams and aninternal
knowledge database

Disaster recovery site1s1n place and associated systerns are regularly tested
to ensure that mvocanon would work effectively if required

Thus nsk was previously included wathin other nsksin this section but has
niow been detalled separately, given the significance of the nsk shouldit ocour
' B} . I 1
The Business Contimuty Committee 1s comprsed of senior executives and
works to a framework based on the most recent international standard.

The key objectives of this commuittee are to ensure that potential threats to
the organisation and the impacts that those threats might cause have been
dentified, that a framewark that bunlds organisanonal resthence to known

threatsis in place and that the framewark has the capabihity for an effective
response to safeguard the Group

Debenhams1s undertaking a Head Office rnove duning 2013 which
increases the nsk rating compared tolast year

This nsk was previously iictuded within other nsks in this section but has now
been displayed separately, given the sigmificance of the nsk should it occur

*Change in sevenry and/or likelthood of nsk dunng course of 2012
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Sustainability review
Building the right future

Debenhams does not have a sustainability

deparlment. Forus, bemg environmentally
and socially responsible is embedded into

the business and into everyone's role.

Our sustainability commuttee represents all

key areas of the business. Our experts in every

ey & chatrotsustainably  3opect of retail have a deep understanding of
the direct benefits we can introduce by adopting
sustainability measures.

‘r “——tmtam— —_— I

‘ For more informaton go to
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Debenhamshasbeen trading successfully
for over 200 years. Our ability to endure

We doniot have a dedicated sustainability
department and our sustamability
committee may be relatively new but

our practice of sustainability pnnciples

15 well established. The matenal 1ssues

for our sustamability working groups -
ethical sustamable sourcing, logistics

and cistnbution, envirenment and people
-dernve from Debenhams' nsk register,
which has been a foundation of our business
strategy for many years The discipline

of annually updating the register has
created a culture where managers across
the business routinely seek to idenufy,
mitigate and eliminate nsks

Commercial dnvers have always been
paramount. All managers review practices
regularly to ensure their area s operating
as effectively and efficiently as possible.
Wherever possible, we seek economically
benehcial measures with positive social
and environmental impacts

Asounding board

Debenharns' sustainabihity commuttee
brings together experts from all aspects

of retail - from sourcing and supply through
to stores, staff and sales The commuttee
meets quarterly to update Debenhams’
sustainabihity chair Marona Kingon
progress towards our commitments

The commuttee alsoacts as a forum for
new 1deas amongst members and between
the different worlang groups, leading to
ncreased collaboration actoss the business
The advantage of embedding sustainabity
into everyonesrole 1s that all deaisionscan
be practically unplemented by the relevant
department heads

Plan toendure

Durning 2012, the sustainabhty commuttee
has been very active on both a practical and
strategiclevel Whilst working on targets set
for the year, we have alsoc been developing
alonger-term sustamability plan

We have now drawn up Debenhams “Plan

to Endure” (P2E"), the aim of which 1s to
contnuge to grow and be here for the duration
by doing the right things for our stakeholders.

F2E entails drving overall business
performance while Inang up to our
responsibilines as a retailer, employer
and business partner, as a steward of
the environment and our shareholders
mnvestments and as a member of

the communty

In line wath our business strategy to srmplify
asmuch as possible, P2E consolidates the
work of our fourinternal worlang groups -
ethical sustainable sourang, logistics and
chistribution, environment and people - Into
three main areas of focus which balance the
economic, environmental and social aspects
of sustainability

Sustainable supply

Sustamable supply brings together the
commutments of our ethical sustainable
sourcing worlang group with relevant
elerments of logistics and distribution -
namely, therr objectrve to ensure our supply
chainis robust so that goods always flow

Environmental responsibility

Our prionaes for environmental
responsibility are chmate change, energy and
waste We aim to reduce our environmental
footpnnt through vanous mihatives
undertaken by the logistics and distnbution
and environmental worlang groups

Connecting with people

Cur people working group 1s comumitted

to attracting, keeping and growing our
employees, to delwvenng the service,
standards and goods our custorners expect
and to making a positive contnbution to
local communities and nahonal chantes

Last year we committed tolaunchinga
dedicated website as our pnncipal method
of communication of sustainability 15sues
Ths site 1s now live at sustainability
debenhamsplccom Followingon from
P2E, our sustainability website focuses

on the three areas of sustainable supply,
environmental responsibility and
connecting with people.

The aim of the website 1s to update
stakeholders regulary with news about cur
sustainability progress as iitatives unfold
dunng the year The new site 1s atso horme
to detauls of cur sustaynability approach,
our policies and key performance data for
the year The following pages of this review
aim to lnghhight the progress Debenharms
has made on sustainability during 2012

Supply highlights

The market has continued to be volatle in
termsof costs of cotton and other matenals,
labour and shipping, but we were successful
inensuring the contired supply of goods
during the year at the quality and value our
customers expect.

One tnal that proved beneficial was workang
directly with mills supplying cotton, demm
and chinos. By conschdating orders actoss
internal dvisions, we were able to negotiate
directly with mufls to secure supphes at an
acceptable cost to us and our suppliers
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Sustainabihty drivers

1P amatens ssues for Deberh ims
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ndorg ster Commie ¢ ¥ drvershavealayvs
hec i oLt herevet prossle we
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P2E
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Whilewording on targets set for the year

wi hvealsoheendevelopingalonger ium
sustainib v plan We have now drawn
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